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INDEPENDENT AUDITIREPORT

To the Board of County Commissioners
Bertie County, North Carolina

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financg&htements of the governmental activities, the
businesdype activities, the aggregate discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of Bertie County, North Carolina, as of andefgear

then ended Joe 30,2017 and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively

O2YLINRKAAS . SNIAS /2dzyieQa olFaArd FAYyLFLYyOAILf adalasSy
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Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and mignance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

' dZRAG2NNA wSaLRyaAroAatAade

Our responsibility is to express opinions on thésancial statements based on our audit. We did

not audit the financial statements of Bertie County ABC Boalhdch represents 100 percent of the
assets, net position, and revenues of the aggregate discretely presented componentTinuite
financialstatements were audited by other auditors whose report has been furnished to us, and our
opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the Bertie County ABC Board is based
solely on the report of the other auditors. We conducted our audit aeccaidance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained i@overnment Auditing Standardssued by the Comptroller General of

the United States. Those standards reguinat we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. The
financial statements of Bertie County ABC Board were not audited in accordance with
Governmental Auditing 8hdards.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
RA&aOf28dz2NBa Ay GKS FAYIYOALE adlraSySydao ¢KS
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
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design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
SELINBaaAy3a |y 2LAYAR2Y 2y GKS S¥FSOUiAOSySaa 27
no such opinion. An audélso includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audievidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other auditors, the financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the
governmental activities, busine$gpe activities, the agregate discretely presented component
unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Bertie County, North
Carolina as of June 3B017, and the respective changes in financial position arghdbbws, where
applicable, thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementaryfémmation

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
al ylI3SYSyidiQa 5 A & Ordpages4thfoudh Y@Re QthgrlPbste@plogiment Benefits
Schedules of Funding Progress and Employer Contributionsage 4%, the Local Government
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schedules of the Changes in Total Pension Liability and Total Pension Liability as a Percentage of
Coveed Payroll, page81 and 82, be presented to supplement the basic financial stateme&tgh
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essequdralof financial reporting for

placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.
We and other auditors have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance Wi auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the

AYF2NXEGAZ2Y YR O2YLINAY3I (GKS AYF2NNIFGA2Y F2NJ (

inquiries,the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficieidesxce to express

an opinion or provide any assurance.



Supplementary and Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the basic financial statements of Bertie CoiNdyth Carolina. The combining

and individual fund statements, budgetary schedules, other schedules as well as the accompanying
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards, as requir€ildoyyz US Code of Federal
Regulations(CFR) Part 200Unform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awardse presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual fund financial statements, budgetary schedules, other schedules and
the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards are the responsibility of management
and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying actong and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and recotiog such information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America by us and other auditors. In our opinion, based on our
audit, the procedures performed as described above, and the report of the other auditors, the
combining and individual fund financial statements, budgetary sclesdwther schedules, and the
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards are fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In acordance withGovernment Auditing Standardae have also issued our report datédnuary
30,20182y 2dzNJ O2YyaARSNI (GA2y 2F . SNIAS /2dzyieqQa Ay
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regoketj contracts, and grant agreements

and other matters. The purposef the report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal

control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide

an opinion on internatontrol over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral

part of an audit performed in accordance wiBovernment Auditing Standards considering Bertie

| 2dzyieQa AYUSNYylLf O2yiNRf 20SNJ FAYlFYyOAlFf NBLRZNI
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Belhaven North Carolina
January 302018
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narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of Bertie County for the fiscal year ended

June 302017. We encourage readers to read the information presented here in conjunction with
FRRAGAZ2YFE AYF2NXIFGA2Y GKIFIOG 6S KIFE@S FdNYyAAKSR |
this narrative.

Financial Highlights

1 The assets and deferred outflows of resources of Bertie County exceeded its liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources at the close of the fiscal yea25338,625(net positior), as
reported in Exhibit 1

f ¢KS 3J2@0SNYYSyidQa G2 ad dy ®BFrHaE3 plidgm@dyAr dua 2oy/the A y ONB |
governmental fundsThe figure reflects the sum of governmental funds which increased
$459,927 and business activities (regional water system) which reflects a decrease of
$122,394 as indicated in FiguzeThis decreasef $122,394 in net position for the Regional
Water District Fund (business activities) is primarily attributable to capital project
expenditures of $129,898 during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 approved by the Board
of Commissioners local match rdagements to secure grant funds for various system
improvements. For example, the local match requirement for the Kelford project was
$125,458.

1 Currently there are six (6) multiyear capital projects, which are structured to secure more
than $2,000,000 irstate and federal grants in support of a Capital Improvement Program
FAYILYyOAYy3 Ay SEOSaa 2F bcop YAftAZ2Yy Ay adai!
system.

1 The three most significant water system projects being financed include:

U Water District Il - $1,339,350 State Revolving Loan (20 years at 0% interest) and
a local match of $26,787 to address Water Loss Reduction Improvements
identified in the 2014 Water System Operations Evaluation.

U Water District Ill- $1,717,000 USDA Rural Developmetd (ears at 2.875%
interest), a grant of $1,074,000 and a local match requirement of $264,000 for
the consolidation and merger with South Windsor Community Association
Water System and related improvements.

0 Water District IV- $1,178,550 State Revolvingdn (20 years at 0%) and
principal forgiveness (grant) of $500,000 and a local match requirement of
$33,571 for the merger and consolidation with the Town of Roxobel and related
water system improvements.
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As of the close of the current fiscal year, Betti2 dzy' 1 @ Q&4 3JI2FSNY YSy it f
combined ending fund balances $8,019,444 an increase of$433,024in comparison with

the prior year. ApproximatelB8.58% of this total amount or$3,093,537is restricted or
non-spendableby statute for stabilizatio purposes as reflected in Exhibit 3.

It is important to note that the combined ending fund balances of $8,019,444 and the
NELRZ2NISR AYyONBFaS 2F bPnooXnun A& LINAYINRTE @
$440,140

At the end of the current fiscal yeannassignedund balance for the General Fund was
$2,273,153 or 8.9%9% of total general fund expenditures 02%$283,790for the fiscal year,
while total fund balance for Governmental Funds repres@&83% of that ssme amount.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 Bertie County experienced two (2) five hundred
year flood events with Tropical Storm Julia on September 21, 2016 and Hurricane Matthew
on October 8, 2016. Expenditures incurred during the emergenqgyorese and recovery
periods totaled $428,712; $236,762 for Julia and $191,950 for Matthew.

Efforts to recoup these funds included insurance proceeds from Julia of $182,950 and
$11,859 for Hurricane Matthew. FEMA reimbursements for emergency response and
recovery costs were received in the amount of $123,888 for a total of $318,697 in net funds
recovered. The net result for the General Fund was a loss of $110,015.

It should be noted that beginning with the audit for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, the
presentation of unassigned fund balance for the General Fund in Exhibit 3, includes separate
RStEAYSIGA2Y 2F a{dzoaSldsSyi $%&r3IaikepdSehRA ( dzNS &
the amount of appropriated fund balance in the adopted budget for theegt&inFund in FY

2017-2018.

¢tKAia OKFy3dS RSAONAROSR F020S FT2N GKS | dzRA G
segregation of appropriated fund balance for the subsequent fiscal year in the budget
ordinance, corrects the presentation of the unassigned fund balance, which had been
incorrectly reported for more than a decade.

By contrast, the final revised budget for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 included
$1,857,025 in appropriated fund balance for the General Fund budget, and the net change
in fund balance is reflected as arciease of $347,053 in Exhibit 6.

The FY 2012018 Adopted Budget Ordinance approved by the Board of Commissioners for
its subsequent year budget totals $23,912,844 or $1,370,946 less than the $25,283,790 in
General Fund expenditures for the prior yeahe fiscal year ended June 30, 2017.
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In the three most recent fiscal years, the Board of Commissioners has approved the
investment of appropriated fund balance reserves for major capital improvements such as
0KS o60dzAif RAYy 3 NBY 2 oW Enforeeyhént aRd2Qednniukicatiofs [CENMRA theF Q& |
rehabilitation of existing physical assets including the Bertie County Courthouse built in

1887, the recent upgrades to the County Administration Building, and to address deferred
maintenance activities for mangf the county facilities supported by the General Fund,

which had been neglected for nearly a decade.

General Fund capital project activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 included:

103,426 Courthouse renovations and rehabilitation

28,777 Blue Jay Recreation Park improvements-phase one
146,769 Capital outlay for equipment

90,568 Capital outlay for building improvements

46,739 Vehicle acquisition for General purposes
174,243 Vehicle acquisition for public safety and law enforcem
590,522 Total expenditures for major projects and equipment

AR A
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funding basis rather than increasing the indebtedness for theeGd Fund.
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Bertie County General Fund Annual Net Changes in Fund Balance

Fiscal Year Net Change Fund Balance
1999-2000 $ 136,555 $ 4,576,226
2000-2001 $ 157,505 $ 4,733,731
2001-2002 $ 375,706 $ 5,109,437
2002-2003 $ 397,791 $ 5,507,228
2003-2004 $ 951,438 $ 6,458,666
2004-2005 $ 287,067 $ 6,745,733
2005-2006 $ (376,921) $ 6,368,812
2006-2007 $ 682,229 $ 7,051,038
2007-2008 $ (21,197) $ 7,029,841
2008-2009 $ (423,025)%$ 6,606,816
2009-2010 $ 556,810 $ 7,163,626
2010-2011 $ (49,930) $ 7,113,696
2011-2012 $ (601,157)$ 6,512,539
2012-2013 $ 535,608 $ 7,048,167
2013-2014 $ 650,080 $ 7,698,247
2014-2015 $ (620,906) $ 7,077,341
2015-2016 $ (696,478)$ 6,380,863
2016-2017 $ 347,053 $ 6,727,916

1 The fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 reflects a total fund balance for the General Fund of

$6,727,916 as noted in Exhibit 6 on the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance which is an increase $347,053 from the beginning balandy @n20D16.

Maintaining adequate cash reserves and fund balances allows the County to meet its
commitments for debt service payments, appropriations to the school system and general
county obligations for monthly operating expenses and payroll. ThedBifa€ommissioners
approves capital projects and major program initiatives, while being mindful of the burden
on taxpayers and the need to maintain a stable cash position for the County at all times, and
maintaining financial stability from year to year.

.SNIAS /2dzyteQa G2t RSol 2dziadlyRAYy3 | &
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this figure may appear to have changed significantly. teng debt oustanding for Bertie
County for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016 was reported as $57,934,453. The NC Local
Government Commission has provided revised reporting guidelines for this information based

on recent interpretations for GASB accounting standardarifying the presentation of
fAYAGSR 20fA3FL0dA2y 062yRa NBfIFIGSR G2 GKS [/ 2dz/i
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issuance of $11,770,000 of Limited Obligation Bonds for Water Districts I, II, Ill, and IV
G20FftAy3 PMHIHcTEIMAAN AY LI N FY2dzylid ¢KAa STT
of 3.58% with a final maturity of June 1, 2040.

Bertie County, through this diligence by the governing body achieved the following debt
service savings:

U Gross Savings: $ 2,401,046.21
U NetPresent Value Savings: $ 1,583,349.10
U Net Present Value % Savings: 12.91%

In the fiscal year ending June 30, 2017, the governing body continued its examination of
unfunded actuarial liability for other postmployment benefits (OPERBhd the impact on

GKS /2dzyieQa OFlakK LRaAAGAZ2Y aGlFroAfAde NBEI (A
reporting and adherence to increasing financial impacts. At issue is the cost of health
insurance requirements for retired county employees, athet expenditure for this

obligation in this year is $383,980. The budgeted amount for retiree health insurance in FY
2017-2018 is ¢37,500and the Board of Commissioners is continuing to review the impact

for taxpayers to meet this lonagerm obligation.

I FdzZA t RAaOdzAaarAzy 2F (KS /2dzyieéQa h@Bor 20fA:
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 the Net OPEB Obligation for the Coubi95%,$40

an increase of 85,873F N2 Y (G KS LINA 2NJ & S| NI ofIDécemibér B1j SR Ay
2015, the plan was not funded. The actuarial liability for benefits and, thus, the unfunded
actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) wakl$67,702 ¢

Employees hired after July 1, 2016 will not be eligible for retiree health insurance.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 the governing body established an annual funding
requirement in the adopted budget ordinance for an irrevocable trust OPEB reserve
appropriation to meet future retiree health insurance obligations.

Tax collection rate wa85.73for FY20162017. This represents a sligbecrease from last
year.

Historical perspective Please note as previously stated, the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017
included two (2) fivehundred year flooding events with Tropical Storm Julia and Humeic
Matthew in the fall of 2016.

Currently, there are fortynine (49) accounts in bankruptcy, eighty (80) accounts in
foreclosure, fiftysix (56) accounts under wage garnishment, and 135 accounts with
payment plans established by the tax administrator.
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1 As a result of the flooding, thirtfwo (32) business and residential were late in paying their
2016 property taxes. The Tax Office has been flexible and accommodating to work with
these accounts which are typically paid in timely fashion.

In addition, the County continues to review and audit business personal property accounts,
the discoveries for which, generated foittyo (42) delinquent accounts as of June 30, 2017
and are now paid in full in the amount of $100,845.
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Delinquent Taxes Owed to Bertie County
(Each Year Includes the Current Year Plus the Prior 9 Years)
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Required Components of Annual Financial Report

Figurel

Management's
Discussion and
Analysis
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Basic Financial Statements

Government-
wide Financial
Statements

Summary

Fund Financial
Statements

Notes to the
Financial
Statements

Basic Financial Statements

The first two statements (Exhibits 1 and 2) in the basic financial statements a@abernment
wide Financial StatementsThey provide both short and loAgS NY A Y T2 NXY I+ GA 2 Y

financialstatus.

The next statements (Exhibits 3 throuty@) areFund Financial Statement§ hese statements focus
0§KS AYRAGARdzZ f
detail than the governmentvide statements. The are four parts to the Fund Financial
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governmentwide financial statements, 2) funiihancial statements, and 3) notes to the financial
statements (see Figure 1). The basic financial statements present two different views of the County
through the use of governmemwide statements and fund financial statements. In addition to the
basic inancial statements, this report contains other supplemental information that will enhance
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Statements: 1) the governmental funds statements; 2) the budgetary comparison statements; 3)
the proprietary fund statements; and 4) the fiduciary fund statements.

The next section of the basic financial statements isiibies. The notes to the financial statements
explain in detail some of the data contained in those statements. After the netggplemental

information A & 4 K2 ¢ s ma@riidndnéndnajdr goRedninental K S

LINE OA RSR

2

-11-

/

7

uK

20



Bertie County, North Carolina
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funds and internal service fundgjth the nonmajor fundsadded together in one column on the
basic financial statements. Budgetary information required by the General Statutes also can be
found in this part of the stat@ments.

Following the notes is the required supplemental information. This section contains funding
AYF2NXIGA2Y Fo2dzi GKS [/ 2dzydieQa LISyairzy LIy FyR

Governmentwide Financial Statements

The governmentide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad
2O0SNIASE 2F GUKS [/ 2dzyieQa FAYylFLyOSasz aAixdcod NJ Ay
business. The governmemtide statements provide short and losigrm information about the

/| 2dzy 18 Q& FAYlIYyOAlLf adriddza a I K2t So
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resouces and total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. Measuring net position is one way

G2 31 dAS GKS [/ 2dzyieQa FAYlIYOALf O2yRAGAZ2Y D

The governmentvide statements are divided into three categories: 1) governmental activities; 2)
businesgype actvities; and 3) component units. The governmental activities include most of the

/| 2dzyieQa ol aArAl0 aSNWAOSa &dzOK |a LldzmtAO alkfFfSdaex
Property taxes and state and federal grant funds finance most of these mdivithe businestype

activities are those that the County charges customers to provide. These include the water services
offered by Bertie County. The final category is the component unit. Although legally separate from

the County, the ABC Board is imaott to the County because the County is financially accountable

for the Board by appointing its members and because the Board is required to distribute a portion

of its profits to the County.

The governmentvide financial statements are on Exhibits 1 @ndf this report.
Fund Financial Statements

¢tKS FdzyR FAYyLFYyOAIlf &GFrGSYSydta LINRPOARS | Y2NB
activities. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources

that have been egregated for specific activities or objectives. Bertie County, like all other
governmental entities in North Carolina, uses fund accounting to ensure and reflect compliance (or
non-compliance) with financeelated legal requirements, such as the Genergtuses or the

/| 2dzyGeéQa o0dzRISHE 2NRAYFyOSo 1ff 2F (KS TFdzyRa 27F
governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental Fundg, Governmental funds are used to account for those functiceorted as

governmental activities in the governmeatA RS FA Yl yOALFf adl dSySytao az
services are accounted for in governmental funds. These funds focus on how assets can readily be
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converted into cash flow in and out, and what mah@re left at yeaend that will be available for

spending in the next year. Governmental funds are reported using an accounting method called
modified accrual accounting-his method also has a current financial resources focus. As a result,

the governmetal fund financial statements give the reader a detailed shemntn view that helps

KAY 2NJ KSNJ RSGSNXYAYS AT GKSNB INB Y2NB 2N fSaa
programs. The relationship between government activities (reportedhimn Statement of Net

Position and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds is described in a reconciliation
that is a part of the fund financial statements.

Bertie County adopts an annual budget for its General Fund, as required by the Gatatuéds.

The budget is a legally adopted document that incorporates input from the citizens of the County,
the management of the County, and the decisions of the Board about which services to provide and
how to pay for them. It also authorizes the County obtain funds from identified sources to
finance these current period activities. The budgetary statement provided for the General Fund
demonstrates how well the County complied with the budget ordinance and whether or not the
County succeeded in prowdy the services as planned when the budget was adopted. The
budgetary comparison statenm¢ uses the budgetary basis ad@unting and is presented using the
same format, language, and classifications as the legal budget document. The statement shows four
columns: 1) the original budget as adopted by the board; 2) the final budget as amended by the
board; 3) the actual resources, charges to appropriations, and ending balances in the General Fund;
and 4) the difference or variance between the final budged #re actual resources and charges.

Proprietary Funds; Bertie County has one kind of proprietary furithterprise Fundare used to
report the same functions presented as businggse activities in the governmeswide financial
statements. Bertie Countyses enterprise funds to account for its water operations. These funds
are the same as those separate activities shown in the busiypssactivities in the Statement of
Net Position and the Statement of Activities.

Fiduciary Fundg Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties
outside the government. Bertie County has four fiduciary funds, one of which is a pension trust fund
and three of which are agency funds.

Notes to the Financial Statemeat; The notes provide additional information that is essential to a
full understanding of the data provided in the governmavite and fund financial statements. The
notes to the financial statements stash page32 of this report.

Other Information ¢ In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this
NBLI2ZNI AyOfdzRSE OSNIFAY NBIjdzA NSR adzlJLl SYSy i NB
funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to its employees. Required supplary
information can be found beginning on pageof this report.

Interdependence with Other Entitieg The County depends on financial resources flowing from, or

associated with, both the Federal Government and the State of North Carolina. Bedatlss o
dependency, the County is subject to changes in specific flows of intergovernmental revenues
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based on modifications to Federal and State laws and Federal and State appropriations. It is also
subject to changes in investment earnings and asset valassciated with US Treasury Securities
because of actions by foreign government and other holders of publicly held US Treasury Securities.

GovernmentWide Financial Analysis
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and deferred inflows ofesources by $5,338,625as of June 3020170 ¢ KS / 2dzy & Qa ySi
increased by $37,533for the fiscal year ended June 3@017. One of the largest portions
$26,649,652(10517> 0 NB Ff SOG a ( &sBnent i dayithl &aets (a/gSIand, byldings,
machinery, and equipment). Bertie County uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens;
O2yaSlidSyidtes (GKSasS lFraaSda IINB y24d I@FrAftlrotS$S
investment in is capital assets is reported net of the outstanding related debt, the resources
needed to repay that debt must be provided by other sources, since the capital assets cannot be
dzZaSR G2 fALdARIGS GKSAS Al oAf A lthpdisionB,098537F RRA (A 2
(12.21%) represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used.

The remaining balance of46404,564 is unrestricted

Bertie County's Net Position

Figure 2
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Current and other assets $ 13,291,739 $ 14,096,959 $ 1,865,588 $ 1,922,540 $ 15,157,327 $ 16,019,499
Capital assets 30,837,861 30,370,141 28,650,647 27,295,533 59,488,508 57,665,674
Total assets 44,129,600 44,467,100 30,516,235 29,218,073 74,645,835 73,685,173
Total deferred outflows of resources 2,120,820 585,337 123,083 34,984 2,243,903 620,321
Current and other liabilities 706,857 1,311,053 557,801 293,061 1,264,658 1,604,114
Long-term liabilities outstanding 37,224,561 35,722,569 12,919,111 11,666,037 50,143,672 47,388,606
Total liabilities 37,931,418 37,033,622 13,476,912 11,959,098 51,408,330 48,992,720
Total deferred inflows of resources 138,100 297,840 4,683 13,842 142,783 311,682
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 8,493,749 8,194,773 18,155,903 16,409,139 26,649,652 24,603,912
Restricted 3,093,537 1,484,183 - - 3,093,537 1,484,183
Unrestricted (3,406,384)  (1,957,981) (998,180) 870,978 (4,404,564) (1,087,003
Total net position $ 8,180,902 $ 7,720,975 $ 17,157,723 $ 17,280,117 $ 25,338,625 $ 25,001,092

{ SOGSNI £ LI NI A Odzf | NJ inadcialSopeiiations 2odsitivélK iBfluenceddyeitétad &  F
unrestricted governmental net position:

1 Continued diligence in the listing of business personal property and the collection of
property taxes, both current year levy and prior year delinquent taxes.

1 Revenues were higher than budgeted in ad valorem taxes, sales taxes, beer and wine taxes,
state funding for aging, and other miscellaneous revenues and refunds.

-14-



I T . N e T

Bertie County, North Carolina

al yI38YSyid Qs 5Aa0dzaA

1 Savings were realized in several departments due to lapsed salaries, as well as unspent
supplies utilities and equipment appropriations.

Bertie County's Changes in Net Position

Figure 3
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Revenues:

Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 5,091,169 $ 4,537,669 $ 2,457,619 $ 2,636,014 $ 7,548,788 $ 7,173,683
Operating grants and contributions 5,420,257 4,419,080 - - 5,420,257 4,419,080
Capital grants and contributions 495,000 810,000 110,421 204,647 605,421 1,014,647

General revenues:
Property taxes 10,614,702 10,656,578 - - 10,614,702 10,656,578
Other taxes 2,586,366 2,102,106 - - 2,586,366 2,102,106
Investment earnings 744,507 743,201 4,243 434,993 748,750 1,178,194
Miscellaneous 372,701 1,207,905 1,620 4,677 374,321 1,212,582
Total revenues 25,324,702 24,476,539 2,573,903 3,280,331 27,898,605 27,756,870

Expenses:

General government 4,777,597 3,798,252 - - 4,777,597 3,798,252
Public safety 8,427,519 7,543,818 - - 8,427,519 7,543,818
Environmental protection 470,273 473,557 - - 470,273 473,557
Economic and physical development 633,106 1,644,663 - - 633,106 1,644,663
Human services 5,328,989 5,204,363 - - 5,328,989 5,204,363
Education 3,473,437 3,292,854 - - 3,473,437 3,292,854
Special appropriations 550,332 532,611 - - 550,332 532,611
Interest and fees on long-term debt 1,203,522 1,264,835 - - 1,203,522 1,264,835
Water districts - 2,696,297 3,869,920 2,696,297 3,869,920
Total expenses 24,864,775 23,754,953 2,696,297 3,869,920 27,561,072 27,624,872
Increase (decrease) in net position 459,927 721,586 (122,394) (589,589) 337,533 131,998
Net position, beginning 7,827,539 7,226,150 17,280,117 17,723,854 25,107,656 24,950,004
Net position, beginning, restated 7,720,975 6,999,389 17,280,117 17,869,706 25,001,092 24,869,095
Net position, June 30 $ 8,180,902 $ 7,720,975 $ 17,157,723 $ 17,280,117 $ 25,338,625 $ 25,001,093

Governmentalactiviiese D2 GSNY YSy Gl f | OGAGAGASA ApO8% I a4 SR

Key elements of thisicrease are as follows
9 Sales tax receipts which exceeded conservative budget projections.
1 Increase in investment earnings due@sChnterest on cash investments.

1 Increased tax revenueas a result of improved efforts to discover previously unlisted
business personal property for prior years.

Businesgype activities Businesdype activites deONB I aSR . SNIIAS [/ 2dzyieQa

$122,394 Key elements of this decrease are as follows:

9 During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 the governing body approved projects in the
Capital Improvement Program for the regional water system (busitygss activities)
including commitments of local matching funds expended during the fiscal year ended June
30, 2017 as previously discussed in this narrative.
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1 Increased water sales revenue resulting from water rate adjustments effective July 1, 2014
continue b contributed to the overall improved net position for the water system.

CAYlFYyOAIf !Iyltearsa 2F GKS /2dyieQsa CdzyR&

As noted earlier, Bertie County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
financerelated legal requirements.

Governmental Fundst KS F20dza 2F . SNIAS /2dzyiéQa 3I20SNYyYSy
nearterm inflows, outflows, and balances of usable resources. Such information is useful in
FaasSaaary3 . SNIAS | 2dzy 1@ Q& F Andl balénkey Availabl® ljodzA NB Y S
F LILINRLINRF GA2ya OFry 0SS | dzaSFdzZ YSIad2NBE 2F | 32¢
the end of the fiscal year

The General fund is the chief operating fund of Bertie County. At the end of the current fiscal year,
BS NI A S urassgnédustdbalance in the General Fund wé,273,153 while total fund
balance reache®7,288,416.The Governing Body of Bertie County has determined that the County
should maintain an available fund balance of 10% of general fundneipees in case of
unforeseen needs or opportunities, in addition to meeting the cash flow needs of the County. The
County currently has an unassigned available fund balan89&% of general fund expenditures,
while total fund balance represenf8.83%0f that same amount, of 35,283,790.

At June 302017, the governmental funds of Bertie County reported a combined fund balance of
$8,019,444 an5.71%increaseover last year.

General Fund Budgetary HighlightsDuring the fiscal year, the County revised the budget on
several occasions. Generally, budget amendments fall into one of three categories: 1) amendments
made to adjust the estimates that are used to prepare the original budget ordinance once exact
information is available; 2) amendments made to recognize new funding amounts from external
sources, such as Federal and State grants; and 3) increases in appropriations that become necessary
to maintain services.

Proprietary Funds . SNIi A S / 2idigfyifén@saproidslihd ddme type of information found

in the governmentwide statements but in more detail. Unrestricted net position of the Water
districts equaled ($998,180. There was a decrease in net position df2%,394.0Other factors
concerning the finances of these funds have already been addressed in the discussion of Bertie
| 2 dzy G & Q atypé attivifiey. S & &

Capital Asset and Debt Administration
Capital assets. SNIAS / 2dzy @& Q& OF LI {and business §/pezactivitidsNas A G4 3

of June 30,2017, totals $%9,488,508(net of accumulated depreciation). These assets include
buildings, land, equipment, and vehicles.
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Bertie County's Capital Assets
(net of depreciation)

Figure 4
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Land $ 1,693,469 $ 1,693,469 $ 129,994 $ 129,994 $ 1,823,463 $ 1,823,463
Building and system 25,248,751 25,848,361 26,189,144 26,553,894 51,437,895 52,402,255
Improvements 699,733 692,947 - - 699,733 692,947
Machinery and equipment 1,585,345 1,049,992 - 1,585,345 1,049,992
Vehicles and motorized equipment 1,089,331 516,551 39,074 68,565 1,128,405 585,116
Construction in progress 521,232 521,232 2,292,435 543,081 2,813,667 1,064,313
Total $ 30,837,861 $ 30,322,552 $ 28,650,647 $ 27,295,534 $ 59,488,508 $ 57,618,086

' RRAGAZ2Y LT AYT2NYI aaefs canfe foukd3n Note A5G @ Qa OF LIA G

Longterm Debt As of June 3@017, Bertie County had total debt outstanding$80,143,672

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016

Limited obligation bonds 20,345,000 20,630,000 10,320,000 10,700,000 30,665,000 31,330,000
Installment purchases 8,962,126 9,804,071 174,744 186,394 9,136,870 9,990,465
Bond anticipation note - 1,526,038 - 1,526,038 -
Original issue discount - - (41,919) (44,086) (41,919) (44,086)
Original issue premium - 500,996 526,899 500,996 526,899
Compensated absences 404,866 409,764 26,682 29,596 431,548 439,360
Net pension obligation 475,161 457,728 - 475,161 457,728
Net pension liability 2,264,404 415,542 133,634 26,631 2,398,038 442,173
Other postemployment benefits 4,773,004 4,005,464 278,936 240,603 5,051,940 4,246,067

Total $ 37,224,561 $ 35,722,569 $ 12,919,111 $ 11,666,037 $ 50,143,672 $ 47,388,606

The State of North Carolina limits the amount of general obligation debt that a unit of government
can issue to 8 percenbf the total assessed value of taxable property located within that
A2FSNYYSyYy (G Qa o 2 dzfRdrgmKoSBedie Chual B77, 903,859 RS o

Il RRAGAZ2Y L § AYTF2NXEGA2Y -tdihIdebiBah el foundSiNIudteSIIB/ 2 dzy G &
beginning orpage67 of thisaudited financial report.

Budget Highlights for the Fiscal Year Ending June28Q.,/

Governmental ActivitiesSales tax receipts, property tax collections and revenues from permits and
fees have been responsible for increases in revenue projections. The County will use these increases
in revenues to finance programs currently in place.

FY 201&017 represents e second complete fiscal year of operations with EMS Paramedic
program working in tandem with the NeBmergency Transport Service. EMS Paramedic services
expenditures for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 were $2,365,160 and were partially offset by
operating revenue of $982,931. Likewise, Nemergency Transport Service expenditures for the
same period were $779,117 and operating revenues of $878,892 yielded a net gain for the General
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Fund of $99,775. Examined collectively, the EMS Paramedic prograNoatimergency Transport
Service, when aggregated for total service costs, including the Medicaid cost settlement receipts of
$205,074 required a net tax support appropriation of $1,077,380 for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2017.

In terms of monthly opeational support, $89,782 per month was required for FY 2017; $107,269
per month was required for FY 2016; and $112,809 per month was required for FY 2015. The Board
has set a goal of $700,000 by the fifth year of operations, or $58,333 per month by FY 2019

Achieving this target is predicated on continued growth in the {Eamergency Transport Service.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 -eamergency transports averaged 324 per month. FY
2016 nonremergency transports averaged 148 per month; and FY B0bEmergency transports
averaged 42 per month. Six months of operations in FY -2018 reflect an average of 362 non
emergency transports per month, or a gain of 11.73 percent over the fiscal year ended June 30,
2017.

From an historical perspective, i important to note that during FY 202814 the Board of
Commissioners implemented a new approach to providing Emergency Medical Services, making a

AAIYATFAOLY G GNIyaAirdAzy FNBY | aFNI OlGdzNBBiE RSt AL
orgarizations with a mix of paid and volunteer personnel, to a county department operating 24
K2dzZNEX 1 RlI&a || 6SS]1® ¢KS I20SNYyAy3d o62ReQa ST¥FT2

Code requirements that County Government shall establish EMS Sy$fewis.EMS system shall
have: A defined geographic service area or areas; and the highest level of care offered within any
EMS provider service area must be available to (all) citizens within the service area 24 hours per
day.

In 2010, the Board of Commis2 Y SNE NBOSA PSR 'y AyRBB&REBEF I O2y
Services Operations Assessmemt,K A OK S @I fdzZt 1SR . SNIAS [/ 2dzyieQa
Statutes and its adherence to State EMS operational regulations. Specifically, the State requires
SIFOK 9a{ &aeéaidsSy oS dal O22NRAYFGSR FNNIy3aSYSyi
and facilities, organized to respond to medical emergencies and integrated with other health care

LINE A RSBINRE@®SENE GKIF G aiKS / 2 damiadd thatktlbé dvailddia tolalb f A & K
OAGAT Sya un K2dzNB LISNJ Rl & oé

¢KS O2yadzf GFydiQa NBLR2NI O2yOf dZRSR GKFd oFasSR 2y
available (and unavailable) data and feedback from all parties to this study suggest fhat;in
GOGKSNB Aa y2 9a{ Waiaraarep@ts@nmarifes thé&sidatiorSas folibwigy (i & ® €

G!' f0K2dza3K F2NJ 0KS adl dS5Qa LzN1LR2aSas o0& GANLdS ¢
Counties provide EMS, Bertie County is classifiedyas ® a{ WYae&adSYoQ Ly NBI
County is a function of four (4) independently incorporated, and separatepnaiit organizations;

a2YS LI ARX a2YS @2fdzyiSSNE &a2YS LINPGARAY3I WLYI
W, [ AaA0ZQingVi@®24bN® ORRe || ¢SS] O2@0SNI3IAS GKAES |yz2
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In FY 2012014, the Board established a separate County EMS department operating at the highest
pre-hospital level of care, paramedic, providing coverage countywide on-ko@d basis wib
permanent squads stationed at three municipal locations in the County. Nine months of operations
for the fiscal year ended June 20, 2014 resulted in actual expenditures of $1,087,239 for the EMS
Paramedic program and actual revenues of $397,284 for @éametupport requirement of $690,000

from General Fund. Prior to FY 20A@&14, the County allocated $135,000 in local funds to the four
independent ambulance providers. After adjusting for the original funding support of $135,000 the

| 2dzy i@ Qa AtgxGiaBdrt Fe§uremynb wias $555,000 for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2014.

In the subsequent fiscal years, the governing body initiated more aggressive EMS billing and
collection activities with a new vendor, which has greatly improved revenue peaftce
Additionally, the County initiated neemergency transport services which are improving revenues

FYR AAAYAFAOFIy(dfte NBRdAdzOAYy3I (GKS DSYSNIf CdzyRQa&a
services in the County.

Businesg; type Activities:

Bei AS / 2dzyiéeQa wSIA2y Lt 2FGSNI {eadSYy 2LISNI GAy3 |
total $2,457,619 or $178,395 less than the prior year which is primarily attributable to the decline in
the inmate population at the state prison in Windsor dweestaffing shortage.

Expenditures for the Regional Water System are reported as $2,295,718 on Exhibit 8 and include
local match grant commitments for capital project financing totaling $129,898 and is consistent
with the change in net position. The opeirad income gain of $161,901 for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2017 represents a significant adjustment as compared with the operating loss of $398,227
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016.

The Board of Commissioners has actively sought to achievendéiger and consolidation of the

| 2dzy i@ Qa NBIAA2Y L § gl GSNI a2adsSyYy aNoddidlle dnd Svas ¢ 2 gy a
successful in securing financing through the NC Drinking Water state revolving fund including a
$500,000 grant which reflects principébrgiveness for this loan. Additionally, the Board of
Commissioners consolidated Water District 1ll with the South Windsor Association community
water system in 2014 and has secured $3,055,000 in USDA Rural Development financing, of which
$1,074,000 is aefleral grant.

The water rates for residential, commercial and institutional customers in the County increased on

July 1, 2014 for all four water districts. The Board of Commissioners engaged a new consulting
engineering firm to perform a complete waterstgm evaluation and operational review. Most
y2iloftS Ay AGa FAYRAYIAZ 6SNB (KS O2yadzZ GFyidQa
.SNIAS /2dzyieqQa O02ad 2F 6F0GSNJ LINPRdzOGA2Y o6 SEOf d
gallons andts rate structure for commodity sales was $3.48 per 1,000 gallons for a net financial

loss of $1.02 per 1,000 gallons sold. Hence, the need for immediate corrective action and the
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consumer rate adjustments approved by the Board for the subsequent fisaality all four water
districts.

Additionally, the system evaluation noted during the last four calendar years, the County averaged

a forty-six percent (46%) unaccounted water loss which equates to more than 500,000 gallons per

day for the Bertie County dgional Water System comprised of the four water districts. The
O2yadzZ 6Qa NBLRNI ARSYGAFTASR GKS Y2ad tA1Ste O2
overflows, meter accuracy, basic data logging, and-meporting due to analog technologsgifures.

Further investigation confirmed both faulty and nemisting altitude valves on elevated storage

tanks, well performance deficiencies, meter inaccuracies and malfunctioning telemetry system
communication network connections.

As noted in prior year financial statements, the Board of Commissioners directed management staff
to immediately address these issues and provided funding allocated in the subsequent fiscal year to
address each of these issues. The Board also commissibeedevelopment of a water system
asset management plan, and a fiyear capital improvement plan including authorization to seek
grant funding through state and federal programs.

Requests for Information
This report is designed to provide an overvieWo il KS / 2dzy 18 Q& FTAYIlIyOSa F2NJ
this area. Questions concerning any of the information found in this report or requests for

additional information should be directed to the Director of Finance, Bertie County, PO Box 530,
Windsor, NC 2983.
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Bertie County North Carolina
Statementof Net Position
June 302017

Exhibit 1
Primary Government Component Unit
Governmental Business-type Bertie County
Activities Activities Total ABC Board
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 5,616,753 $ 1,137,030 $ 6,753,783 $ 33,109
Receivables, (net) 3,359,982 258,166 3,618,148 -
Grants receivable - 260,302 260,302 -
Notes receivable 3,754,504 - 3,754,504 -
Inventories - - - 94,240
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 560,500 210,090 770,590 -
Total current assets 13,291,739 1,865,588 15,157,327 127,349
Capital assets:
Land, improvements, and construction in progress 2,214,701 2,396,315 4,611,016 23,000
Other capital assets, net of depreciation 28,623,160 26,254,332 54,877,492 7,413
Total capital assets 30,837,861 28,650,647 59,488,508 30,413
Total assets 44,129,600 30,516,235 74,645,835 157,762
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 2,120,820 123,083 2,243,903 13,237
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 706,857 84,630 791,487 21,236
Liabilities to be paid from restricted assets - 473,171 473,171 -
Long-term liabilities
Net pension liability - LGERS 2,264,404 133,634 2,398,038 12,732
Total pension liability - LEOSSA 475,161 - 475,161 -
Due within one year 2,094,875 1,953,094 4,047,969 -
Due in more than one year 32,390,121 10,832,383 43,222,504 159,665
Total long-term liabilities 37,224,561 12,919,111 50,143,672 172,397
Total liabilities 37,931,418 13,476,912 51,408,330 193,633
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 138,100 4,683 142,783 446
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 8,493,749 18,155,903 26,649,652 30,413
Restricted for:
Drug task force 1,191 - 1,191 -
Stabilization by State Statute 3,092,346 - 3,092,346 -
Working capital - - - 23,413
Unrestricted (deficit) (3,406,384) (998,180) (4,404,564) (76,906)
Total net position $ 8,180,902 $ 17,157,723 $ 25,338,625 $ (23,080)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Bertie County, NorthCarolina
Statement ofActivities

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 3017
Exhibit 2

Program Revenues Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position
Primary Government Component Unit
Charges for  Operating Grants Capital Grants Governmental Business-type Bertie County
Functions/Programs Expenses Services  and Contributions and Contributions Activities Activities Total ABC Board
Primary government:
Governmental Activities:
General government $ 4777597 $ 116,355 $ 500,000 $ - $ (4161,242)% - $ (4161,242)$% -
Public safety 8,427,519 2,287,207 13,796 - (6,126,516) - (6,126,516) -
Environmental protection 470,273 1,844,833 408,778 - 1,783,338 - 1,783,338 -
Economic and physical development 633,106 - 89,645 - (543,461) - (543,461) -
Human services 5,328,989 842,774 4,408,038 - (78,177) - (78,177) -
Intergovernmental:
Education 3,473,437 - - 495,000 (2,978,437) - (2,978,437) -
Special appropriations 550,332 - - - (550,332) - (550,332) -
Debt service:
Interest and fees on long-term debt 1,203,522 - - - (1,203,522) - (1,203,522) -
Total governmental activities 24,864,775 5,091,169 5,420,257 495,000 (13,858,349) - (13,858,349) -
Business-type activities:
Water Districts 2,696,297 2,457,619 - 110,421 - (128,257) - -
Total business-type activities 2,696,297 2,457,619 - 110,421 - (128,257) - -
Total primary government $ 27,561,072 $ 7,548,788 $ 5,420,257 $ 605,421 $ (13,858,349)$ (128,257) $ (13,858,349)$ -
Component unit:
ABC Board $ 802,210 $ 785,789 $ - $ - $ - 3 - $ - $ (16,421)
General revenues:
Taxes:
Property taxes, levied for general purpose 10,614,702 - 10,614,702 -
Local option sales tax 2,397,874 - 2,397,874 -
Other taxes and licenses 188,492 - 188,492 -
Investment earnings, unrestricted 744,507 4,243 748,750 83
Miscellaneous, unrestricted 372,701 1,620 374,321 1,003
Profit distribution - - - (8,835)
Total general revenues 14,318,276 5,863 14,324,139 (7,749)
Change in net position 459,927 (122,394) 337,533 (24,170)
Net position-beginning, previously reported 7,827,539 17,280,117 25,107,656 1,090
Prior period adjustment 47,589 - 47,589 -
Restatement (154,153) - (154,153) -
Net position - beginning, restated 7,720,975 17,280,117 25,001,092 1,090
Net position-ending $ 8,180,902 $ 17,157,723 $ 25,338,625 $ (23,080)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Bertie County, NorthCarolina
Balance Sheet Governmental Fund
June 302017

Exhibit 3
Major Non-Major
Other Total
Governmental Governmental
General Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,878,325 $ 738,428 $ 5,616,753
Restricted cash 560,500 - 560,500
Receivables, (net):
Taxes 796,325 - 796,325
Accounts 2,051,647 508,478 2,560,125
Due from other funds 532,221 - 532,221
Notes - Vidant Medical Center 3,336,221 - 3,336,221
Notes - Landmark Asset Services 288,683 - 288,683
Notes - Bertie Memorial Limited Partnership 129,600 - 129,600
Total assets 12,573,522 1,246,906 13,820,428
LIABILITIES DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 685,649 20,878 706,527
Due to other funds - 495,000 495,000
Total liabilities 685,649 515,878 1,201,527
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 4,599,457 - 4,599,457
Fund balances:
Restricted:
Drug task force 1,191 - 1,191
Stabilization for State Statute 2,583,868 508,478 3,092,346
Committed:
Tax Revaluation 157,277 - 157,277
Education (Capital Reserve-Schools Fund) 403,223 - 403,223
OPEB Trust 242,400 - 242,400
Assigned:
Subsequent years' expenditures 1,627,304 222,550 1,849,854
Unassigned 2,273,153 - 2,273,153
Total fund balances 7,288,416 731,028 8,019,444
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and
fund balances $ 12,573,522 $ 1,246,906

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Bertie County, NorthCarolina
Balance Sheet Governmental Fund
June 302017

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position (Exhibit 1) are different because:

Exhibit 3

Total Fund Balance, Governmental Funds 8,019,444
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore

are not reported in the funds. 30,724,643
Contributions to pension plans in the current fiscal year are deferred outflows of resources

on the Statement of Net Positon. 2,113,582
Net pension liability (2,264,404
Total pension liabilities (475,161
Benefit payments and pension administration costs for LEOSSA are deferred outflows of resources

on the Statement on Net Position. 7,238

Pension related deferrals (89,472)
Deferred inflows of resources for taxes and special assessments 4,550,829
Some liabilities, including bonds payable and other postemployment benefits, are n

and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds. (34,484,996
The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included in governmental a

in the statement of net assets. 79,199

Net assets of governmental activities 8,180,902

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Bertie County, North Caroli

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance Governmental Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 3017

Exhibit 4
Major Non-Major
Other Total
Governmental Governmental
General Fund Funds Funds
REVENUES
Ad valorem taxes $ 11,175,900 $ - $ 11,175,900
Other taxes and licenses 378,358 - 378,358
Intergovernmental revenues 7,159,173 656,739 7,815,912
Licenses and permits 212,079 - 212,079
Sales and services 3,771,621 - 3,771,621
Investment earnings 744,284 223 744,507
Miscellaneous 1,787,523 - 1,787,523

Total revenues 25,228,938 656,962 25,885,900
EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government 3,719,867 - 3,719,867
Public safety 8,231,062 167,310 8,398,372
Environmental protection 470,273 - 470,273
Economic and physical development 474,671 1,776 476,447
Human services 5,245,681 - 5,245,681
Intergovernmental:

Education 3,473,437 - 3,473,437
Special appropriations 550,332 - 550,332
Debt service:

Principal 1,914,945 - 1,914,945
Interest and fees 1,203,522 - 1,203,522
Total expenditures 25,283,790 169,086 25,452,876

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over expenditures (54,852) 487,876 433,024
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers from other funds 495,000 - 495,000
Transfers to other funds - (495,000) (495,000)
Total other financing sources and uses 495,000 (495,000) -
Net change in fund balance 440,148 (7,124) 433,024
Fund balances-beginning 6,848,268 738,152 7,586,420
Fund balances-ending $ 7,288,416 $ 731,028 $ 8,019,444

The accompanying footnotes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Bertie County, North Carolina
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balang&overnmental Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 3017

Exhibit 5
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:
Net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 433,024
Governmentafunds report capital outlays as expenditures.However,in the Statementof Activitiesthe
cost of those assetsis allocatedover their estimatedusefullives and reported as depreciationexpense
This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation expense in the current year. 402,091
Contributions to the pension plan in the current fiscal year are not included on the Statement of Acti 1,528,245
County's portion of collective pension expense. (1,707,119
Benefit payments and pension administration costs for LEOSSA are deferred outflows of resources
on the Statement on Net Position. 7,238
Revenuesiot in the Statementof Activitiesthat do not providecurrentfinancialresourcesand reported as
revenues in the funds. (561,198)
Theissuanceof long-term debt provides current financial resourcesto governmentalfunds, while the
repaymentof the principalof long-term debt consumesthe current financialresourcesof governmenta
funds. Neither transactionhas any effect on net position. Also, governmentalfunds report the effect of
issuancecosts,premiums,discountsand similaritems when debt is first issued,whereastheseamounts
are deferred and amortized in the Statement of Activities. This amount is the net effect of these diffe
in the treatment of long-term debt and related items. 1,126,945
Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current financial re:
and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. (780,075)
Internal servicefunds are used by managementto chargethe costsof a telephonesystemto individual
funds. 10,776
Total changes in net position of governmental activities $ 459,927

The accompanying footnotes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Bertie County, North Cailma
General Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 3017

Exhibit 6
General Fund
Variance With
Final Positive
Original Budget  Final Budget Actual (Negative)
REVENUES
Ad valorem taxes $ 10,886,601 $ 10,956,601 $ 11,175,900 $ 219,299
Other taxes and licenses 404,200 404,200 378,358 (25,842)
Intergovernmental revenues 5,865,414 5,985,557 7,159,173 1,173,616
Licenses and permits 224,050 224,050 212,079 (11,971)
Sales and services 3,750,782 3,750,782 3,771,621 20,839
Investment earnings 20,000 20,000 16,301 (3,699)
Miscellaneous 1,266,591 1,455,594 1,787,523 331,929
Total revenues 22,417,638 22,796,784 24,500,955 1,704,171
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 4,078,470 4,264,591 3,719,867 544,724
Public safety 7,937,187 8,549,165 8,231,062 318,103
Environmental protection 472,308 472,308 470,273 2,035
Economic and physical development 521,192 509,407 474,671 34,736
Human services 5,589,070 5,607,639 5,245,681 361,958
Intergovernmental:
Education 3,515,520 3,613,389 3,473,437 139,952
Special appropriations 530,012 592,184 550,332 41,852
Debt service:
Principal 1,914,946 1,914,946 1,914,945 1
Interest and fees 1,203,526 1,203,526 1,203,522 4
Total expenditures 25,762,231 26,727,155 25,283,790 1,443,365
Revenues over (under) expenditures (3,344,593) (3,930,371) (782,835) 3,147,536
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers from other funds 2,343,346 2,343,346 1,580,584 (762,762,
Transfers to other funds (270,000) (270,000) (450,696) (180,696
Total other financing sources and uses 2,073,346 2,073,346 1,129,888 (943,458
Revenues and other financing sources over (under)
expenditures and other financing uses (1,271,247) (1,857,025) 347,053 2,204,078
Appropriated fund balance 1,271,247 1,857,025 - (1,857,025
Net change in fund balance $ - $ - 347,053 $ 347,053
Fund balances-beginning 6,380,863
Fund balances-ending $ 6,727,916

The legally budgeted Tax Revaluation Fund and Capital Reserve Fund are
consolidated into the General Fund for reporting purposes:

Investment earnings $ 727,983

Transfers in - General Fund 450,696

Transfers out - General Fund (1,085,584)
Fund balance, beginning 467,405
Fund balance, ending (Exhibit 4) $ 7,288,416

The accompanying footnotes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Bertie County North Carolina
Statement of Net Positiorg Proprietary Funds
June 302017

Exhibit 7
Business-type Activities - Governmental
Proprietary Funds - Major Activities -
Regional Internal Service
Water District Funds
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,137,030 $ -
Receivables, net 258,166 3,632
Grants receivable 260,302 -
Due (to) from other funds - (37,221)
Total current assets 1,655,498 (33,689)
Noncurrent assets:
Restricted assets:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 210,090
Capital assets:
Land and improvements 129,994
Construction in progress 2,266,321 -
Buildings, improvements, and equipment 36,898,537 305,185
Less accumulated depreciation (10,644,205) (191,967,
Total capital assets 28,650,647 113,218
Total noncurrent assets 28,860,737 113,218
Total assets 30,516,235 79,529
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 123,083
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 84,630 330
Compensated absences 26,682 -
Installment purchase 11,650
Limited obligation bonds 385,000
Bond anticipation notes 1,526,038
Original issue discount/premium 23,736 -
Total current liabilities 2,057,736 330
Noncurrent liabilities:
Liabilities payable from restricted assets:
Accounts payable 208,912
Retainage payable 54,169
Customer deposits 210,090
Installment purchase 163,094
Limited obligation bonds 9,935,000
Original issue discount/premium 435,341
Net pension liability 133,634
Other postemployment benefits 278,936
Total noncurrent liabilities 11,419,176 -
Total liabilities 13,476,912 330
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 4,683
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 18,155,903 113,218
Unrestricted (998,180) (34,019)
Total net position $ 17,157,723 $ 79,199

The accompanying footnotes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Bertie County, North Caratia
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Pasition
Proprietary Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 3017

Exhibit 8
Business-type Activities - Governmental
Proprietary Funds - Major Activities -
Regional Internal Service
Water District Funds
Operating revenue
User charges $ 2,457,619 $ 61,308
Total operating revenue 2,457,619 61,308
Operating expenses
Administrative expenses 1,536,710 41,413
Depreciation expense 759,008 9,119
Total operating expenses 2,295,718 50,532
Operating income (loss) 161,901 10,776
Nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Investment earnings 4,243 -
Miscellaneous income 1,620 -
Interest, fees and amortization (400,579) -
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (394,716) -
Income (loss) before contributions and
operating transfers (232,815) 10,776
Capital contributions 110,421 -
Total transfers and capital contributions 110,421 -
Change in net position (122,394) 10,776
Net position, beginning 17,280,117 20,834
Prior period adjustment - 47,589
Net position, beginning, restated 17,280,117 68,423
Net position, ending $ 17,157,723 $ 79,199

The accompanying footnotes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Bertie County, North Carolina
Statement of Cash FlowsProprietary Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 3017

Business-type Activities -
Proprietary Funds-Major

Regional

Water District

Exhibit 9

Governmental
Activities -
Internal
Service Funds

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash received from customers $ 2,240,354 $ 61,917
Cash paid for goods and services (952,388) (44,074)
Cash paid to employees for services (551,639) -
Customer deposits (net) 22,740 -
Other operating revenues 87,530 -
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 846,597 17,843
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Nonoperating income 1,620 -
Due to (from) other funds - 37,221
Net cash provided (used) from noncapital financing activities 1,620 37,221
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (1,859,640) (74,748)
Interest paid on construction debt (424,316) -
Principal paid on bond maturities and equipment contracts (391,650) -
Capital contributions - Federal grant 110,421 -
Proceeds from long-term borrowing 1,526,038 -
Net cash provided (used) for capital and related financing activities (1,039,147) (74,748)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest on investment 4,243 -
Net cash provided (used) for investing activities 4,243 -
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (186,687) (19,684)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning 1,533,807 19,684
Cash and cash equivalents, ending $ 1,347,120 $ -
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating revenues
Operating income (loss) $ 161,901 $ 10,776
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation 759,008 9,119
Change in assets, liabilities, and deferred outflows
and inflows of resources:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (129,735) 609
(Increase) decrease in deferred outflows of resources for pensions (88,099) -
Increase (decrease) in net pension liability 107,003 -
Increase (decrease) in deferred inflows of resources for pensions (9,159) -
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities (12,481) (2,661)
Increase (decrease) in customer deposits 22,740 -
Increase (decrease) in accrued vacation (2,914) -
Increase (decrease) in OPEB payable 38,333 -
Total adjustments 684,696 7,067
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $ 846,597 $ 17,843

The accompanying footnotes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Bertie County, North Carolina
Satement of Fiduciary Net Positioq Fiduciary Funds
June 302017

Exhibit 10
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,999
LIABILITIES
Miscellaneous liabilities 3,999
NET POSITION
Assets held in trust for social services $ -

The accompanying footnotes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Bertie County, North Carolina
Notes to Financial Statements

. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of Bertie County and its component unit conform to genacadpted
accounting principles as applicable to governments. The following is a summary of the more
significant accounting policies:

A. Reporting Entity

The County, which is governed by a fimember board of commissioners, is one of the 100

counties esablished in North Carolina under North Carolina General Statute-183As required

by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements present the County and its
component units, legally separate entities for which the County is fiadly accountable. One
component unit of the County has no financial transactions or account balances; therefore, it does

not appear in the combined financial statements. The blended component unit, although it is a
legally separate entity, is, insubs@is = LI NI 2F GKS [/ 2dzyGeQa 2LISNI G
O2YLRYSyYyid dzyAld o0St26 Aa NBLR2NISR Ay F  &aSLI NI
statements in order to emphasize that it is legally separate from the County.

Blended Component Unit

Bertie County Water Districts

Under State law [G.S. 163Ap6 = (G KS [/ 2dzyGeéQa o602 NR 2F O2YYAaaa
board for the Regional WatemDistrict. Therefore, theRegional Water District ieeported as an

Sy i SNLINX &S T dzyiRanchlystaténfers. ThRedgghal 3\@taDisFict dees not issue

separate financial statements.

Discretely Presented Component Units

Bertie County Industrial Facility and Pollution Control Financing Authority

Bertie County Industrial Facilityand2 £ f dzi A2y [/ 2y UNRt CAYylIyOAy3 ! dzil K
issue and service revenue bond debt of private businesses for economic development purposes.

The Authority is governed by a severember board of commissioners, all of whom are appointed

by the county commissioners. The County can remove any commissioner of the Authority with or
without cause. The Authority has no financial transactions or account balances; therefore, it is not
presented in the combined financial statements. The Authoritysdoet issue separate financial
statements.

Bertie County ABC Board

¢tKS YSYOSNR 2F GKS ! ./ . 2FNRQa 3IA20SNYyAy3dI o62Re |
required by state statute to distribute its surpluses to the General Fund of the County. The AB
Board, which has a June 30 y«aud, is presented as if it were a proprietary fund.
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Bertie County, North Carolina
Notes to Financial Statements

Complete financial statements of the component unit may be obtained at the administrative office
of the entity.

Bertie County ABC Board
P. O. Box 97
Windsor, North Carlina 27983

B.Basis of Presentation, Basis of Accounting
Basis of Presentation, Measurement FoayBasis of Accounting

Governmenwide StatementsThe statement of net position and the statement of activities display
information about the primary govement net position (the County) and its component units.
These statements include the financial activities of the overall government, except for fiduciary
activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting of internal activities. These
statements distinguish between thgovernmentaland businesgype activitiesof the County.
Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and
other nonrexchange transactions. Businggpe activities are finanakin whole or in part by fees
charged to external parties.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues
for the different businessl @ LIS | OGAGAGASaE 2F GKS [/ 2dzyié | yR
govermmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or
function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Indirect expense allocations
that have been made in the funds have been reverseditlier statement of activities. Program
revenues include (a) fees and charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the
programs and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a pdicular program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues,
including all taxes, are presented as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statemems ¢ KS Fdzy R FAYIFIYyOALf &GFGSYSydGa LINRC
funds, including its fiduciary funds and blended component units. Separate statements for each

fund categoryc governmental, proprietary, and fiduciakyare presented. The emphasis faind

financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate
column. All remaining governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as
nonmajor funds.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as ckardgor services, result from exchange
transactions associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in
which each party receives and gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperating revenues, such as
subsidies, result fronmon-exchange transactions. Other naperating items such as investment
earnings are ancillary activities.
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Bertie County, North Carolina
Notes to Financial Statements

The County reports the following major governmental fund:

General Fund ¢ KA & Aa (0KS /2dzyie Q& LINA YL Nl resoldeNdf G A y 3
the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. The Tax
Revaluation Fund and the Capital Reserves Schools Fund are legally budgeted funds under North
Carolina General Statutes; however, for statement sgrgation in accordance with GASB
Statement No. 54 they are consolidated in the General Fund.

The County reports the following major enterprise funds:

l.:.l
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The County also reports the following fund types:

Internal Service Fundhe Internal Service Fund, whishaproprietary fund,is used to account for

the financing of goods or services provided by one departnoeragency to other departments or
agencies of the governmental unit, or to other governmental units, on a cost reimbursement basis.
Bertie County has one internal service fund. The Bertie Telephone is an internal service fund, which
operates for County se only. The Bertie County Telephone Fund is consolidated with the
Governmental Funds in the governmenide statements.

Agency FundsAgency funds are custodial in nature and do not involve the measurement of
operating results. Agency Funds are usedatmount for assets the County holds on behalf of
others. The County maintains five Agency Funds: the Social Services Fund, which accounts for
monies held by the Department of Social Services for the benefit of certain individuals; the Fines
and ForfeituresFund, which accounts for various legal fines and forfeitures that the County is
required to remit to Bertie County Board of Education and the three percent interest on the first
month of delinquent motor vehicle taxes that the County is required to rémthe North Carolina
Department of Motor Vehicles; the Motor Vehicle Tax Fund, which accounts for registered motor
vehicle property taxes that are billed and collected by the County for various municipalities within
the County; the Pest Management Fundhigh accounts for the moneys received from local
farmers for Agriculture Extension services; and the Deed of Trust Fee Fund, which accounts for the
five dollars of each fee collected by the register of deeds for registering or filing a deed of trust or
mortgage and remitted to the State Treasurer on a monthly basis.

Nonmajor FundsThe County maintainthree legally budgeted funds. Theriergency Telephone
System Fun@nd the Lottery Proceeds Funare reported as nonmajor special revenue funds. The
Bertie Hgh School Construction Fursteported asa nonmajorcapital project fund.

In accordance with North Carolina General Statutes, all funds of the County are maintained during
the year using the modified accrual basis of accounting.

Governmemniwide, Proprietary, and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statemente governmentide,
proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus, except for the agency funds which have no measurement focus. The
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Bertie County, North Carolina
Notes to Financial Statements

governmentwide, proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the
time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the relatedhctisws take place. Neaxchange
transactions, in which the County gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving)
equal value in exchange, include property taxes, grants, entittements, and donations. On an accrual
basis, revenue from pragty taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied.
Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations are recognized in the fiscal year in which all
eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

Amounts reported as program revenuexlude 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and
contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general
revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services addgng and delivering goods

Ay O2yySOGA2Y 6AGK | LINBPLNASGIFENE FdzyRQa LINRAY O/
revenues of the County enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and services. The
County also recognizes as operating rawe the portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of
connecting new customers to the water and sewer system. Operating expenses for enterprise funds
include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets.

All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and
expenses.

Governmental Fund Financial Statemen®overnmental funds are reported using the current
financial resources measurement focus and the modifiecrwa basis of accounting. Under this
method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available.

Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and
interest on general longerm debt, claims and judgmentand compensated absences, which are
recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. General capital asset acquisitions are
reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of generattéomy debt and
acquisitions under capital leasase reported as other financing sources.

The County considers all revenues available if they are collected within 90 days aftemgear
except for property taxes. Ad valorem property taxes are not accrued as revenue because the
amount is not susceptiblto accrual. At June 30, taxes receivable for property other than motor
vehicles are materially past due and are not considered to be an available resource to finance the
operations of the current year. As of September 1, 2013, State law altered thedun@sefor the
assessment and collection of property taxes on registered motor vehicles in North Carolina.
Effective with the change in the law, the State of North Carolina is responsible for billing and
collecting the property taxes on registered motor &@bs on behalf of all municipalities and special

tax districts. Property taxes are due when vehicles are registered. The billed taxes are applicable to
the fiscal year in which they are received. Uncollected taxes that were billed in periods prior to
Sepember 1, 2013 and for limited registration plates are shown as a receivable in these financial
statements and are offset by deferred inflows of resources.
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Sales taxes and certain intergovernmental revenues, such as the utilities franchise tax, caltected
held by the State at yeand on behalf of the County are recognized as revenue. Intergovernmental
revenues and sales and services are not susceptible to accrual because generally they are not
measurable until received in cash. Expenditdreven grans are recognized as revenue when the
qualifying expenditures have been incurred and all other grant requirements have been satisfied.

Under the terms of grant agreements, the County funds certain programs by a combination of
specific costeimbursementgrants, categorical block grants, and general revenues. Thus when
program expenses are incurred, there are both restricted and unrestricted net position available to
FAYLFYOS GKS LINPIANI YD LG A a-reimluseniedt drsintl rés@ces thJ2 £ A O &
such programs, followed by categorical block grants, and then by general revenues.

C.Budgetary Data

¢KS /2dzyieQad o06dzRISG& NP R2LIGSR a NBIdzANBR 0
budget is adopted for the General Fund, Sped&alvenue Funds, (excluding the Community
Development Block Grant Funds), the Enterprise Funds, the Internal Service Funds and the Capital
Project Funds. All annual appropriations lapse at the fiscalemdr Project ordinances are adopted

for the Communiy Development Block Grant Funds which is a Special Revenue fund type, and the
Enterprise Capital Projects Funds, which are consolidated with the enterprise operating funds for
reporting purposes.

All budgets are prepared using the modified accrual bagiaccounting. Expenditures may not
legally exceed appropriations at the functional level for all annually budgeted funds and at the
object level for the multiyear funds. Amendments are required for any revisions that alter total
expenditures of any funar that change functional appropriations by more than $5,000. The
governing board must approve all amendments. During the year, several amendments to the
original budget were necessary. The budget ordinance must be adopted by July 1 of the fiscal year
or the governing board must adopt an interim budget that covers that time until the annual
ordinance can be adopted.

D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Inflonand Outflowsof Resources, and Fund Equity

1. Deposits and Investments

All deposits of the Countgnd Bertie County ABC Board are made in balsignated official
depositories and are secured as required by G.S:-3159The County and the ABC Board may
designate, as an official depository, any bank or savings association whose principal offideds loca

in North Carolina. Also, the County and the ABC Board may establish time deposit accounts such as
NOW and SuperNOW accounts, money market accounts, and certificates of deposit.

State law [G.S. 1580(c)] authorizes the County and the ABC Board teshin obligations of the
United States or obligations fully guaranteed both as to principal and interest by the United States;
obligations of the State of North Carolina; bonds and notes of any North Carolina local government
or public authority; obligatins of certain nomguaranteed federal agencies; certain high quality
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issues of commercial paper and bankers' acceptances and the North Carolina Capital Management
Trust (NCCMT).

¢CKS /2dzyGe |yR (KS ! .darrieda faiNRIGENonpaftidigating MitSrgsti a | NB
earning contracts are accounted for at cost. The NC Capital Management Trust Cash Portfolio, a
SEQegistered2ar SEGSNY I f Ay @SadySyid L2tz Aa YSI &adz2NBR
share price. The NCCMT Term Pofdia a4 SOdzNAGASAa FNB @It dzSR Fd FIA

2.Cash and Cash Equivalents

The County pools moneys from several funds to facilitate disbursement and investment and to
maximize investment income. Therefore, all cash and investments are essentially demasitsiep

and are considered cash and cash equivalents. The ABC Board considers demand deposits and
investments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less, which are not limited as to
use, to be cash and cash equivalents.

3. Restricted Assets

Customer deposits held by the County before any services are supplied are restricted to the service
for which the deposit was collected. Money in the Tax Revaluation Fund is classified as restricted
assets because its use is restricted per North Car@ieaeral Statute 153A50. Money in the Tax
Revaluation Fund and the Capital Reserve Schools Fund are also classified as restricted assets
because its use is restricted per North Carolina General Statute-153A

Governmental Activities

General Fund Tax Revaluation $ 157,277
Capital Reserves Schools 403,223
Total Governmental Activities $ 560,500

Business-type Activities

Water District Regional Customer deposits 210,090
Total Business-type Activities $ 210,090
Total Restricted Cash $ 770,590

4. Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable

In accordance with State law [G.S. i®%/ and G.S. 1583(a)], the County levies ad valorem taxes

on property other than motor vehicles on July 1, the beginning of the fiscal year. The taxes are due

on September 1 (lien date); however, penalties and irgerédo not accrue until the following

January 6. These taxes are based on the assessed values as of Januay As 20déwed by State

law, the County has established a schedule of discounts that apply to taxes that are paid prior to the
due date. In the/ 2dzy 1@ Q& DSYySNI}f CdzyRX IR @Fft2NBY (I E
discounts.
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5. Allowances for Doubtful Accounts

All receivables that historically experience uncollectible accounts are shown net of an allowance for
doubtful accounts. This amourg estimated by analyzing the percentage of receivables that were
written off in prior years.

6. Inventories and Prepaid Iltems

The inventories of the ABC Board are valued at cost-{firdirst-out), which approximates market.
The inventory of the ABBoard consists of materials and supplies held for consumption or resale.
The cost of the inventory for the ABC Board is recorded as an expense as it is consumed or sold.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periodarandcorded
as prepaid items in both governmentide and fund financial statements.

7. Capital Assets

Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than
$5,000 and an estimated useful life in excessaaf years. Purchased or constructed capital assets

are reported at cost or estimated historical cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at their
estimated fair value at the date of donation. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do
notaddtoKS @It dz2§ 2F GKS adasSd 2N YIGSNALtte& SEGSYR

The County holds title to certain Bertie County Board of Education properties that have not been
included in capital assets. The properties have been deeded to the Coungrrat pnstallment
purchase financing of acquisition and construction costs and to permit the County to receive
refunds of sales tax paid for construction costs. Agreements between the County and the Board of
Education give the Board of Education full u¢he facilities, full responsibility for maintenance of

the facilities, and provide that the County will convey title to the property back to the Board of
Education, once all restrictions of the financing agreements and all sales tax reimbursement
requirements have been met. The properties are reflected as capital assets in the financial
statements of the Bertie County Board of Education.

The County holds title to the Bertie High School property. The property has been deeded to the
County to permit limiéd obligation bond financing for construction. Agreements between the
County and the Board of Education give the Board of Education full use of the facilities, full
responsibility for maintenance of the facilities, but provides that the County will reiento the

property.
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Capital assets of the County are depreciated on a strdightbasis over the following estimated
useful lives:

Years
Buildings 50
Improvements 10-20
Furniture and equipment 10
Vehicles 3-5
Computer equipment 5

Capital assets of the ABC Board are depreciated over their useful lives on a dinaididsis as
follows:

Years
Buildings 20
Furniture and equipment 10
Vehicles 3-5
Leasehold improvements 10-20
Computers 3

8. Deferred outflows/inflows ofresources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section
for deferred outflow of resources. This separate financial statement eleni@eferred Outflows of
Resourcesrepresents a consumption of net ptien that applies to a future period and so will not

be recognized as an expense or expenditure until then. The Countiwbaisems that meet this
criterion ¢ pension related deferrals and contributions make to the pension plan in the current fiscal
year. In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position can also report a separate section
for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement elenbaferred Inflows of
Resourcesrepresents an acquisition of net position thegbplies to a future period and so will not

be recognized as revenue until then. The Coumg twoitems that meets the criterion for this
categoryc prepaid taxesnd other pension related deferrals.

9. Longterm Obligations

In the governmeniwide financial statements and in the proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, longerm debt and other londerm obligations are reported as liabilities in the
applicable governmental activities, busindgpe activities, or proprietary fund typetatement of

net position.

In the fund financial statements for governmental fund types, the face amount of debt issued is
reported as an other financing source.
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10.Compensated Absences

The vacation policies of the County and the ABC Board providadadcumulation of up to thirty

days earned vacation leave with such leave being fully vested when earned. For the County's
governmentwide and proprietary funds and the ABC Board, an expense and a liability for
compensated absences and the saleglated payments are recorded as the leave is earned.

The sick leave policies of the County and the ABC Board provide for an unlimited accumulation of
earned sick leave. Sick leave does not vest, but any unused sick leave accumulated at the time of
retirement may be used in the determination of length of service for retirement benefit purposes.
Since neither the County nor the ABC Board has any obligation for accumulated sick leave until it is
actually taken, no accrual for sick leave has been made.

11.Net Pogtion/Fund Balances

Net Position

Net position in governmentvide and proprietary fund financial statements are classified as net
investment in capital assets, restricted, and unrestricted. Restricted net position represents
constraints on resources that are either a) externally imposedrbdgitors, grantors, contributors,

or laws or regulations of other governments or b) imposed by law thr&afe statute.

Fund Balances

In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balance is composed of five classifications
designed to disclose the hierarchy of constraints placed on how fund balance can be spent.

The governmental fund types classify fund balances as follows:

Nonspendable Fund BalaneeThis classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because
they are either (a) not in spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained
intact. There is no nonspendable fund balance at Jun@D7.

Restricted Fund BalanegThis classification includes revenue sources that are restricted to specific
purposes externally imposed by creditors or imposed by law.

Restricted for Stabilization of State Statufeortion of fund balance that is restricted by
State Statute [G.S. 1858%a)].

Restricted for drug task foragportion of fund balance that is restricted by revenue source
for drug investigations.

Committed Fund Balance Portion of fund balance that caanly be used for specific purpose
AYLI2ASR o0& YlI22NRGe @20S 2F . SNIAS / amdkhge Qa
authority). Any changes or removal of specific purposes requires majority action by the governing
body.
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Committed for Tax Reuation ¢ portion of fund balance that can only be used for Tax
Revaluation.

Committed for Educatiorg portion of fund balance that can only be used for capital
reserves schools.

Committed for OPEB Trust portion of fund balance that can only be usear Other
Postemployment Benefit Trust

Assigned Fund Balaneg Portion of fund balance that the Bertie County governing board has
budgeted.

{ dz0 &4 S1j dzSy (i & S lcpartidn offhndiBajarck thatzisBppropriated in the next
@S ND& 0 dzivhBeiady dldssified inmréstricted or committed. The governing body
approves the appropriation.

Unassigned Fund BalancgePortion of fund balance that has not been restricted, committed, or
assigned to specific purposes or other funds.

Bertie County hs a revenue spending policy that provides guidance for programs with multiple
revenue sources. The Finance Director will use resources in the following hierarchy: bond proceeds,
federal funds, State funds, local neounty funds, and county funds. For poses of fund balance
classificationexpenditures are to be spent from restricted fund balance first, followedrdter by
committed fund balance, assigned fund balanaed lastly unassigned fund balance. The Finance
Director has the authority to deviatfrom this policy if its in the best interest of the County.

Bertie County has also adopted a minimum fund balance policy for the General Fund which
instructs management to conduct the business of the County in such a manner that available fund
balane is at least equal to or greater than 10% of budgeted expenditures. Any portion of the
General Fund balance in excess of 10% of budgeted expenditures may be appropriatedtforeone
expenditures and may not be used for any purpose that would obligateCibvgnty in a future
budget.

12. Defined Benefit Pension Plans

The County participates wne costsharing, multipleemployer, defined benefit pension plan thigt
FRYAYAAGSNBR o6& GKS {dFr4ST GKS [20Ff D2@OSNYyYSy
purposes of measuring the net pension asset, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, informadioout the fiduciary net
positions of the stateadministered defined benefit pension plan and additions to/deductions from
the stateadministered defined benefit pension pl@rfiduciary net positions have been determined
on the same basis as they are refgal by the stateadministered defined benefit pension plans. For
this purpose, plan member contributions are recognized in the period in which the contributions
FNB RdzS® ¢KS /2dzyiéQa SYLX 28SN) O2y i iNAodziA2ya | N
requirement to provide the contributions.Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and
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payable in accordance with the terms of the stai@ministered defined benefit pension plans.
Investments are reported at fair value.

E.Reconciliation of Governmnt-wide and Fund Financial Statements

1. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet
and the governmemwide statement of net position.

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation betweentaiad
fund balancefor the governmental funds and net positiofor the governmental
activities as reported in the governmentide statement of net psition. The net
adjustment of$161,458consists othe following

Description Amount

Capitalassetsusedin governmentalactivities are not financialresourcesand are therefore not reported in the

funds (total capital assets on government-wide statement in governmental activities column) $ 39,404,559
Less accumulated depreciation (8,679,916
Net capital assets 30,724,643
Contributions to the pension plan in the current fiscal year 2,113,582
Total pension liabilities (475,161)
Benefit payments and pension administration costs for LEOSSA 7,238
Pension related deferrals (89,472)
Liabilities for deferred inflows of resources reported in the fund statements but not the government-wide 4,550,829

Liabilitiesthat, becausehey arenot dueandpayablein the current period,do not require currentresourcesto pay
and are therefore not reported in the funds statements:

Bonds, leases, and installment financing (29,307,126
Net pension liability (2,264,404
Other postemployment benefit obligation (4,773,004
Compensated absences (404,866)
(36,749,400

Internal servicefunds are used by managementto chargethe costsof a data information systemto individual
funds. 79,199
Total adjustment $ 161,458
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2. Explanation of certain differencebetween the governmental fund statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance and the governmegdé
statement of activities

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances includes a reconciliatidbetween net changes in fund balancks the
governmental funds and changes in net position of governmental activities as
reported in the governmentvide statement of activities. Theotal adjustmentof
$26,903is comprised of the following

Description Amount

Capital outlay expenditures recorded in the funds statements but capitalized as assets in the statementof ar  $ 1,536,488

Depreciationexpense the allocationof those assetsover their useful lives, that is recorded on the statementof
activities but not in the fund statements. (1,134,397

New debt issuedduringthe yearis recordedas a sourceof funds on the fund statements;it has no effect on the
statement of activities - it affects only the government-wide statement of net position. (788,000)

Principalpaymentson debt owed are recordedas a useof funds on the fund statementsbut againaffect only the
statement of net position in the government-wide statements. 1,914,945

Contributions to the pension plan in the current fiscal year are not included on the Statement of Activities. 1,528,245

Benefit payments and administration costs for LEOSSA are deferred outflows of resources on the Statemer
Position. 7,238

Revenuesreported in the statement of activities that do not provide current resourcesare not recorded as
revenues in the fund statements.
Change in deferred revenue (561,198)

Expenseseported in the statementof activitiesthat do not require the useof current resourcesto pay are not
reported as expenditures in fund statements.

Compensated absences 4,898

Other postemployment benefit obligation (767,540)
Net pension obligation (17,433)
County's portion of collective pension expense (1,707,119

Internal servicefunds are used by managementto chargethe costsof a data information systemto individual
funds. 10,776

Total adjustment $ 26,903

F.Subsequent Events Date of Management Evaluatio

Management has evaluated subsequent events throdghuary 302018,the date on which the
financial statements were available to be issued.
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Il. Detail Notes on All Funds

A. Assets

1. Deposits

All of the County's and the ABC Board's depositedher insured or collateralized by using one of

two methods. Under the Dedicated Method, all deposits exceeding the federal depository insurance
coverage level are collateralized with securities held by the County's or the ABC Board's agents in
these unis' names. Under the Pooling Method, which is a collateral pool, all uninsured deposits are
collateralized with securities held by the State Treasurer's agent in the name of the State Treasurer.
Since the State Treasurer is acting in a fiduciary capamitthé County and the ABC Board, these
deposits are considered to be held by their agents in the entities' names. The amount of the
pledged collateral is based on an approved averaging method fointerest bearing deposits and

the actual current balancéor interestbearing deposits. Depositories using the Pooling Method
report to the State Treasurer the adequacy of their pooled collateral covering uninsured deposits.
The State Treasurer does not confirm this information with the County or the ABC @oattth the
escrow agent. Because of the inability to measure the exact amount of collateral pledged for the
County or the ABC Board under the Pooling Method, the potential exists for undercollaterization,
and this risk may increase in periods of high cistvs. However, the State Treasurer of North
Carolina enforces strict standards of financial stability for each depository that collateralizes public
deposits under the Pooling Method.

The State Treasurer enforces standards of minimum capitalizatioallfpooling method financial
institutions. The County relies on the State Treasurer to monitor those financial institutions. The
County analyzes the financial soundness of any other financial institution used by the County. The
County complies with the pxasions of G.S. 15391 when designating official depositories and
verifying that deposits are properly secured. The ABC Board has no formal policy regarding custodial
credit risk for deposits.

At June 302017 the County's deposits had a carrying amouoht$4,932,658 The bank balances
with financial institutions and with the State Treasurer wefg1d8,803and $2,923 respectively.
Of these bank balance$500,000was covered by federal depository insuran$2,923was covered
by collateral held by authorized escrow agents in the name of the State Treasure$4 @6%,146
in interest bearing deposits were covered by collateral held under the Pooling Method.

At June 302017, Bertie Countyad $1,225cash on hand.

At June 302017, the carrying amount of deposits for Bertie County ABC Boar&8B434and the
bank balance wa$49,735 All of the bank balance was coveredfégieral depository insurance.

2. Investments

At June 302017z ( KS / 2simerits2cOnsistelbfy$594,489in the North Carolina Capital

alyr3aSySyid ¢NHzaGQa /I aK t2NIF2fA22 6KAOK OF NNAS

The County has no policy on credit risk.
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At June 302017 the ABC Board had no invesints.

3. Property Tax UseValue Assessment on Certain Lands

In accordance with the general statutes, agriculture, horticulture, and forestland may be taxed by
the County at the presenise value as opposed to market value. When the property loses its
eligibility for usevalue taxation, the property tax is recomputed at market value for the current
year and the three preceding fiscal years, along with the accrued interest from the original due
date. This tax is immediately due and payable. The folloaregproperty taxes that could become
due if present use&alue eligibility is lost. These amounts have not been recorded in the financial
statements.

Year Levied Tax Interest Total
2014 $ 1,431,443 $ 468,783 $ 1,900,226
2015 1,449,040 344,132 1,793,172
2016 1,436,068 211,805 1,647,873
2017 1,426,603 82,020 1,508,623
Total $ 5,743,154 $ 1,106,740 $ 6,849,894

4. Receivables

Receivables at the gos@ament-wide level at June 3@017, were as follows:

Taxes and Due from
Related Accrued Other
Accounts Interest Governments Other Total
Governmental activities:

General $ 1,265,467 $ 917,501 $ 786,180 $ 3,754,504 $ 6,723,652

Other Governmental 508,478 - - - 508,478

Internal Service Fund 3,532 - - - 3,632
Total receivables 1,777,477 917,501 786,180 3,754,504 7,235,662
Allowance for doubtful accounts - (121,176) - - (121,176

Total governmental activities $ 1,777,477 $ 796,325 $ 786,180 $ 3,754,504 $ 7,114,486
Business-type activities:

Regional Water District $ 298,241 $ - $ 260,302 $ - $ 558,543
Total receivables 298,241 - 260,302 - 558,543
Allowance for doubtful accounts (40,075) - - - (40,075)
Total business-type activities $ 258,166 $ - $ 260,302 $ - $ 518,468

The due from other governments that owed to the County consists of the following:

Local option sales tax $ 617,028
Sales tax receivable 169,152
$ 786,180
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5. Capital Assets

Primary Government

Capital asset activity for the year ended JuneZ,7, was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Governmental Activities: Balances Increases Decreases Balances
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 1,693,469 $ - $ - $ 1,693,469
Construction in progress 521,232 - - 521,232
Total capital assets not being depreciated 2,214,701 - - 2,214,701
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 30,236,738 - - 30,236,738
Improvements 1,123,274 62,466 - 1,185,740
Equipment 2,630,856 791,221 11,993 3,410,084
Vehicles and motor equipment 1,720,197 805,138 45,704 2,479,631
Total capital assets being depreciated 35,711,065 1,658,825 57,697 37,312,193
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings 4,388,377 599,610 - 4,987,987
Improvements 430,327 55,680 - 486,007
Equipment 1,580,864 255,868 11,993 1,824,739
Vehicles and motor equipment 1,203,646 232,358 45,704 1,390,300
Total accumulated depreciation 7,603,214 1,143,516 57,697 8,689,033
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 28,107,851 28,623,160
Governmental activity capital assets, net $ 30,322,552 $ 30,837,861

Depreciation expense was chargedmctions/programs of the primary government as follows:

General government $ 573,072
Public safety 305,939
Human services 107,846
Parks and Recreation 156,659
Total depreciation expense $ 1,143,516
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Business-type Activities: Beginning Ending
Water Districts Balances Increases Decreases Balances
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 129,994 $ - $ - $ 129,994
Construction in progress 543,081 2,032,968 283,614 2,292,435
Total capital assets not being depreciated 673,075 2,032,968 283,614 2,422,429
Capital assets being depreciated:
Plant and distribution systems 36,357,428 342,170 - 36,699,598
Vehicles 150,228 22,597 - 172,825
Total capital assets being depreciated 36,507,656 364,767 - 36,872,423
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Plant and distribution systems 9,803,534 706,920 - 10,510,454
Vehicles 81,663 52,088 - 133,751
Total accumulated depreciation 9,885,197 759,008 - 10,644,205
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 26,622,459 26,228,218
Water Districts capital assets, net $ 27,295,534 $ 28,650,647

Construction commitments

The government has active construction projects as of Jun2(®BJ, The projects include the water
district projectsand the Bertie High School constructioAt June 3020172 G KS 3I2@3SNYYS
commitments with contractors are as follows:

Remaining

Project Spent-to-date Commitment
Bertie High School $ 21,440,762 $ 94,238
Drinking Water State Revolving Loan Fund - SCADA 190,047 1,176,090
USDA Rural Development Fund 1,810,660 1,244,340
USDA Rural Development Fund - Kelford 53,744 143,976
Drinking Water State Revolving Loan Fund - Roxobel Merger 237,984 1,474,137

Total $ 23,733,197 $ 4,132,781
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Discretely presented componeninits

Activity for the ABC Board for the year ended June2BQy, was as follows:

Beginning Ending
ABC Board: Balances Increases Decreases Balances
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 3,789 $ - 3 - $ 3,789
Total capital assets not being depreciated 3,789 - - 3,789
Capital assets being depreciated:
Land improvements 19,211 - - 19,211
Leasehold improvements 25,582 - - 25,582
Furniture and equipment 115,784 - - 115,784
Vehicles 1,470 - - 1,470
Total capital assets being depreciated 162,047 - - 162,047
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvements 17,899 1,312 - 19,211
Furniture and equipment 3,062 3,358 - 6,420
Leasehold improvements 104,759 3,563 - 108,322
Vehicles 1,470 - - 1,470
Total accumulated depreciation 127,190 8,233 - 135,423
ABC capital assets, net $ 38,646 $ 30,413

6. Gost-sharing commitments

Bertie County and the Town of Windsor and Bertie County Water District 1l entered into an
agreement on June 10, 2002 to purchase land jointly. The land was purchased in August 2003 and
the North Carolina Department of Corrections completed constructing a 1,80@eétention center

on the land in July 2006. The Bertie County Water District 1l is the exclusive provider of water
services to the detention center and the Town provides electric and sewer utility services. Once the
prison was completed, the County andwin began deducting monthly 10% of the gross revenue

for each utility and equally dividing between the County and the Town. These payments will
continue until the purchase price and costs of establishing each utility service is paid in full. For the
fiscalyear ending June 30, 2017, Bertie County paid the Town of Windsor $19,501 from the water
fund. For the fiscal year ending June 30, 2017, the Town paid Bertie County $40,044 and $7,972
from the electric fund and water and sewer fund, respectively forréguired payments.

After the net purchase price and the net costs as defined have been paid in full, the obligation of
the County and the Town to monthly deduct 10% of gross revenue for each utility shall cease. The
County and the Town will then monthlyeduct 1% of the gross revenue for each utility, which
monies will be applied towards an economic development fund to be administered by a joint
County and Town board for the benefit of the citizens of the County and Town.
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B. Liabilities

1. Payables

Payables at the governmemtide level at June 3@017, were as follows:

Vendors Total
Governmental Activities:
General $ 685649 $ 685,649
Other Governmental 20,878 20,878
Internal Service Fund 330 330
Total governmental funds $ 706,857 $ 706,857

Business-type Activities:
Regional Water Districts
Total business-type activities

84,630 $ 84,630
84,630 $ 84,630

& |

2. Pension Plan and Other Postemployment Obligations

a. Local Governmental Employees' Retirement System

Plan Description The County is a participating employer in the statewide Local Governmental
9YLX 28585aQ wSiANBYS ysharing endltipl&viplogef defned{bénEfit gension2 &

plan administered by the State of North Carolina. LGERS membership is comprigederl

employees and local law enforcement officers (LEOS) of participating local governmental entities.
Article 3 of G.S. Chapter 128 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the
North Carolina General Assembly. Management & filan is vested in the LGERS Board of
Trustees, which consists of 13 memberaine appointed by the Governor, one appointed by the

state Senate, one appointed by the state House of Representatives, and the State Treasurer and
State Superintendent, who pee as e FFAOA2 YSYOSNER® ¢KS [20Ff Dz
Retirement System is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of
b2NIK /FTNREAYlI® ¢KS {dGradsSQa /! Ccw AyOfdzRSa FAy
information for LGERS. That report may be obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller,

1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 22699, by calling (919) 98454, or at
WWW.0SC.NC.goV

Benefits Povided LGERS provides retirement and survivor benefits. Retirement benefits are
RSGSN¥YAYSR a moyp: 2F GKS YSYoSNDa F@SNI IS FA
ONBRAGI oS &ASNBAOSP® ! YSYOSNDa | OSNIraSof RAY I £ (
YSYOSNRA F2dzNJ KAIKSald 02yaSOdziagsS &@SIFENBR 2F 02 VYL
full retirement benefits at age 65 with five years of creditable service, at age 60 with 25 years of
creditable service, or at any age with 30 yeaf<reditable service. Plan members are eligible to

retire with partial retirement benefits at age 50 with 20 years of creditable service or at age 60 with

five years of creditable service (age 55 for firefighters). Survivor benefits are available lite eligi
beneficiaries of members who die while in active service or within 180 days of their last day of
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service and who have either completed 20 years of creditable service regardless of age (15 years of
creditable service for firefighters and rescue squadmhbers who are killed in the line of duty) or

have completed five years of service and have reached age 60. Eligible beneficiaries may elect to
NEOSAGS || Y2yliKfeé {dNBAG2NDa !'f iSNYyILiS .SySTAd
The plan doesnot provide for automatic postetirement benefit increases. Increases are
contingent upon actuarial gains of the plan.

LGERS plan members who are LEOs are eligible to retire with full retirement benefits at age 55 with

five years of creditable service as officer, or at any age with 30 years of creditable service. LEO

plan members are eligible to retire with partial retirement benefits at age 50 with 15 years of
creditable service as an officer. Survivor benefits are available to eligible benefi@arledsO

members who die while in active service or within 180 days of their last day of service and who also

have either completed 20 years of creditable service regardless of age, or have completed 15 years

of service as a LEO and have reached age 5@wver dompleted five years of creditable service as a

LEO and have reached age 55, or have completed 15 years of creditable service as a LEO if killed in
GKS fAYyS 2F Rdziéed 9fA3A0fS 60SYSTAOAIFINARASA Yl & Sf
fAFTS 2NJ I NBOdzNYy 2F GKS YSYOSNRa O2yiNROGdziA2yad

Contributions. Contribution provisions are established by General Statute-3®2&nd may be

amended only by the North Carolina General Assembly. County employees are required to
contribute 6% of their comgnsation. Employer contributions are actuarially determined and set
Fyydz-ffte o6& GKS [DO9w{ .2FNR 2F ¢NHz2Z(GSSad ¢KS / 2
the year ended June 3@017, was7.28% ofcompensation for law enforcement officers aid 7%

for general employeedirefighters and the register of deedsctuarially determined as an amount

that, when combined with employee contributions, is expected to finance the costs of benefits
earned byemployees during the year. Contributions to the pension plan from the County were
$523,363for the year ended June 3Q017.

Refunds of Contributiong County employees who have terminated service as a contributing

member of LGERS, may file an application for a refund of their contributions. By state law, refunds

to members with at least five years of service include 4% interest. State law requires a 60 day
waiting period after service termination before the refundaynbe paid. The acceptance of a refund

LI dYSyid OFlyOSta G(GKS AYRAGARIzZ £ Qd NARIKG G2 SYLX 2
LGERS.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resourcefelated to Pensions

At June 302017, the County reported &ability of $2,420311for its proportionae share of the net

pension liability. The net pension liabilityas measured as of June 316 The total pension

liability used to calculate the net pensidiability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of
December 312015 The total pension liability was then rolled forward to the measurement date of

June 302016dzG A f AT Ay 3 dzLJRFGS LINPOSRdAzNBEE Ay O2NLIR2 NI (GAyY:
proportion of the net pension liabty 6 & o6 aSR 2y | LINR 2 Sebniisha@edof 2 F (1 K.
future payroll covered by the pension plan, relative to the projected future payroll covered by the
pension plan of all participating LGERS employers, actuarially determined. At JU2@180the
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/[ 2dzy (& Qa waiNR40®6Nadhishawds mincrease 0009324 from its proportion measured
as of June 3@®015

For the year ended June 38017, the County recognized pension expense t&405. At June 30,
2017, the County reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resotetasd
to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $ 45473 $ 84,810
Changes in assumptions 165,770 -
Net difference between projected and actual earningson pension
plan investments 1,338,127 -
Changes in proportion and differences between County
contributions and proportionate share of contributions 156,481 -
County contributions subsequent to the measurement date 523,363 -
Total $ 2,229,214 $ 84,810

$523363reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from County
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized ascagase of the net
pension liabilityin the year ended June 3R018 Other amounts reported as deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended June 30:

2018 $ 275,602
2019 275,765
2020 678,575
2021 391,099
2022 -
Thereafter -
$ 1,621,041

Actuarial AssumptionsThe total pension liability in the December 2D15actuarial valuation was
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the
measurement:

Inflation 3.0 percent

Salary increases 3.5 to 7.75 percent, including inflation and
productivity factor

Investment rate of return 7.25 percent, net of pension plan

investment expense, including inflation
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The plan currently uses mitity tables that vary by age, gender, employee group (i.e. general, law
enforcement officer) and health status (i.e. disabled and healthy). The current mortality rates are
based on published tables and based on studies that cover significant portiotise ob).S.
population. The healthy mortality rates also contain a provision to reflect future mortality
improvements.

The actuarial assumptions used in the DecembeB15valuation were based on the results af a
actuarial experience stydfor the period January 1, 2010 through December 31, 2014

Future ad hoc COLA amounts are not considered to be substantively automatic and are therefore
not included in the measurement.

The projected longerm investment retuns and inflation assumptions are developed through
review of current and historical capital markets data, -sale investment research, consultant
whitepapers, and historical performance of investment strategies. Fixed income return projections
reflect curent yields across the U.S. Treasury yield curve and market expectations of forward yields
projected and interpolated for multiple tenors and over multiple year horizons. Global public equity
return projections are established through analysis of the ggusk premium and the fixed income
NBGdzZNY LINRP2SOlA2yad hiKSNI aasSad OFdiS3az2NASa | yR
and historical data analysis. These projections are combined to produce theelongexpected

rate of return by weighhg the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation
percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic
real rates of return for each major asset class as of Jun2@Bare summarized in the following
table:

Long-Term

Expected Real Rate
Asset Class Target Allocation of Return
Fixed Income 29.00% 1.40%
Global Equity 42.00% 5.30%
Real Estate 8.00% 4.30%
Alternatives 8.00% 8.90%
Credit 7.00% 6.00%
Inflation Protection 6.00% 4.00%

Total 100.00%

The information above is based on 30 yeapectations developed with the consulting actuary for
the 2015 asset liability, and investment policy study for the North Carolina Retirement Systems,
including LGERS. The lgegn nominal rates of return uretlying the real rates of return are
arithmetic annualized figures. The real rates of return are calculated from nominal rates by
multiplicatively subtracting a longerm inflation assumption of 8%. All rates of return and
inflation are annualized.
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Disount rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.25%. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan
members will be made at the current contribution rate and that cdnitions from employers will

be made at statutorily required rates, actuarially determined. Based on these assumptions, the
LISyaAz2y LI IFyQa FARAOAINE ySi LRAAGAZY o6l a LINRE
benefit payments of the current plamembers. Therefore, the loAgrm expected rate of return on

pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine

the total pension liability.

{SyarilAorite 2F (GKS [/ 2dzyieQa $SNRdindel ih the distoint a K I NE
rated ¢KS F2fft2¢gAy3a LINBaSyda GKS /[ 2dzy i coliabilityJNE L32 NI
Ol £ Odzf 6 SR dzaAy3 (GKS RA&O2dzyd NIF 4GS 2F T dup LISND
of the net pension assedr net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate

that is Xpercentagepoint lower (6.25 percent) or-percentagepoint higher (8.25 percent) than

the current rate:

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(6.25%) (7.25%) (8.25%)

County'sproportionate shareof the net position
liability (asset) $ 5744527 $ 2,420,311 $ (356,321

Pension plan fiduciary net positon 5 SGF Af SR AYTFT2NXIF A2y | o62dzi GK
position is available in the separately issued Comprehensive Annual iginrdeport CAFR) for the
State of North Carolina.

b. Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance

1. Plan Description.

Bertie County administers a public employee retirement system (the Separation Allowance), a
singleSYLJ 28 SNJ RSTAYSR o0SYSTFAG LISyaArzy LXFyYy GKFG |
qualified sworn law enforcement officers under the age of 62 who have aiggpht least 30 years

of creditable service or have attained 55 years of age and have completed five or more years of
creditable service. The Separation Allowance is equal to 0.85 percent of the annual equivalent of

the base rate of compensation most egtly applicable to the officer for each year of creditable

service. The retirement benefits are not subject to any increases in salary or retirement allowances

that may be authorized by the General Assembly. Article 12D of G.S. Chapter 143 assigns the
authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly.

All fulltime County law enforcement officers are covered by the Separation Allowance.
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l'd 5SOSYOSNJomMI HamcE GKS {SLINIGA2Yy !'fft26l yOSQ

Retirees receiving benefits 1
Active plan members 24
Total 25

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Polisie

Basis of AccountingThe County has chosen to fund the Separation Allowance on a pay as you go
basis. Pension expenditures are made from the General Fund, which is maintained on the modified
accrual basis of accounting. Benefits are recognized when due and payable in aceoxita the

terms of the plan.

The Separation Allowance has no assets accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria which are
outlined in GASB Statement 73.

3. Actuarial Assumptions
The entry age actuarial cost method was used in the DecembeR@5 valuation. The total

pension liability was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods
included in the measurement:

Inflation 3.0 percent
Salary increases  3.50 to 7.35 percen
Discount rate 3.86 percent

The disount rate is based on the weekly averagfethe Bond Buyer General Obligation 20 year
Municipal Bond Inde&s of December 31, 2016.

Mortality rates are based on thdRR2014 Mortality tables with adjustments for mortajit
improvements

3. Contributions.

The County is required by Article 12D of G.S. Chapter 143 to provide these retirement benefits and
has chosen to fund the amountsecessary to cover the benefits earned on a pay as you go basis
through appropriations made in the General Fund operating budget. There were no contributions
YIRS o6& SyLiz2eSSao ¢CKS [/ 2dzyGeQa 206ftAAL0GA2y (2
amended by the North Carolina General Assembly. Administration costs of the Separation
Allowance are financed through investment earnings. The County Adidi#6as benefits came

due for the reporting period.
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Pension Liabilities, Pension ExpensadaDeferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2017, the County reported aabpension liability of $475,161 The total pension
liability was measured as of December 31, 2016 based on a Decemi&g1Flactuarial valuation.

The total pension liability was rolled forward to December 31, 2016 utilizing update procedures
incorporating the actuarial assumptions. For the year ended June 30, 2017, the Countyizedog
pension expense of $41,300

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $ - $ -
Changes of assumptions - 9,003
County benefit payments and plan administrative

expense made subsequent to the measurement date 7,238 -
Total $ 7,238 $ 9,003

$7,238 reported as deferred outflows of resourceslated to pensions resulting from benefit
payments made and administrative expenses incurred subsequent to the measurement date will be
recognized as a decrease of the total pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2018. Other
amounts reported as defred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in
pension expense as follows:

Year ended June 30:

2018 $ 1,591
2019 1,591
2020 1,591
2021 1,591
2022 1,591
Thereafter 1,048
Total $ 9,003

$7,238 paid as benefits came due andO $of administrative expenses subsequent to the
measurement date are reported as deferred outflows of resources.

{SyariliArorite 27F GKS t podiaigesOm thelidBdolnt ratdTiseyfalldwihy f A | 0
LINBaSyia GKS /2dzyieéeQa (widgthe didciuyt date Dfy3.8@réehtoak f A (& ¢
Sttt a ¢6KIG GKS /2dzyaeQa (201Kt LISyarzy fAFOATA
that is l-percentagepoint lower (2.86percent) orl-percentagepoint higher (4.86percent) than

the current rate:
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1 % Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(2.86%) (3.86%) (4.86%)
Total pension liability $ 512,939 $ 475,161 $ 440,812

Schedule of Changes in Total Pension Liability
Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance

Beginning balance 457,728
Service cost 26,421
Interest on the total pension liability 16,082

Changes of benefit terms -
Differences between expected and actual experience in the
measurement of the total pension liability -

Changes of assumptions or other inputs (10,594)
Benefit payments (14,476)
Other changes -

Ending balance of the total pension liability 475,161

The plan currently uses mortality tableésat vary by age, and health status (i.e. disabled and
healthy). The current mortality rates are based on published tables and based on studies that cover
significant portions of the U.S. population. The healthy mortality rates also contain a prowsion t
reflect future mortality improvements.

The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2015 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period January 1, 2010 through December 31, 2014.

c. Supplemental Retirement Inmme Plan for Law Enforcement Officeand General Employees

Plan Description.The County contributes to the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan (Plan), a
defined contribution pension plan administered by the Department of State Treasurer and a Board
of Trustees. The Plan provides retirement benefits to law enforcement officers employed by the
County. Article 5 of G.S. Chapter 135 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit
provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. The SupplementalrRatiréncome Plan for

Law Enforcement Officers is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the
{GFrGS 2F b2NIK /FNREAYIF® ¢KS {dGFrGdSQa /! Ccw AyOf
the Internal Revenue Code Section 4Q1glan that includes the Supplemental Retirement Income
Plan for Law Enforcement Officers. That report may be obtained by writing to the Office of the State
Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 24889, or by calling (919) 981

5454,

Funding PolicyArticle 12E of G.S. Chapter 143 requires the County to contribute each month an

amount equal to five percent of each officer's salary, and all amounts contributed are vested
immediately. Also, the law enforcement officers may make voluntary contributionhe plan.
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Contributionsfor the year endedlune 302017were $2,061which consisted of $3,991from the
County and 8,070from the law enforcemenbfficers.

TheCounty also elected to contribute an amount egl totwo percent of S OK ISy SNJ f SY LI
salary All amounts contributed are vested immediately. Also, the general employees may make
voluntary contributions to the plan. Contributions for the year ended Jun€807were £19,141

which consisted of $48,672from the County and #0,469from the general employees.

d. Reqisters of Deeds' Supplemental Pension Fund

Plan DescriptionCarolina County also contributes to the Registers of Deeds' SupplementaliPensio
Fund (RODSPF), a noncontributory, defined benefit plan administered by the North Carolina
Department of State Treasurer. RODSPF provides supplemental pension benefits to any eligible
county register of deeds who is retired under the Local Government@mgs' Retirement System
(LGERS) or an equivalent locally sponsored plan. Article 3 of G.S. Chapter 161 assigns the authority
to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. Management of
the plan is vested in the LGERS&8oof Trustees, which consists of 13 membersne appointed

by the Governor, one appointed by the state Senate, one appointed by the state House of
Representatives, and the State Treasurer and State Superintendent, who serveo#&iex
members. The RIA A GSNBR 2F 5SSRaQ {dzLJJ SYSyidlt tSyairzy
Lyydzrf CAYlFYyOALFf wSLERNI o6/!Cw0 F2NJ G4KS {aGFras 2
a0F0SYSyida FyR NBIdzA NER adzLlLX SYSy (i ISdplemanyaf 2 N |
Pension Fund. That report may be obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410

Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27688, by calling (919) 98454, or at
WWW.0SC.NC.goV

'.|:

Benefits Provided 'Y AYRADGARIZ f Qad o6SySTAGa F2N GKS &St
O2y iUNROGdziA2ya | @FAftlofS FT2NJ oSySTAda F2N) GKIG @&
eligibility is based on at least 10 years of ser¥icé | NBIAaGSNI 2F RSSRaA gAd

increasing with years of service. Because of the statutory limits noted above, not all contributions
available for benefits are distributed.

Contributions. Benefits and administrative expenses are fuddg investment income and 1.5% of

the receipts collected by each County Commission under Article 1 of Chapter 161 of the North

/ FNRPEftAYlF DSYSNIt {0FGdziSad ¢KS adl ddzi2aNE O2y i NX
required contribution. Theactuarially determined contribution this year and for the foreseeable

future is zero. Registers of Deeds do not contribute. Contribution provisions are established by
General Statute 1650 and may be amended only by the North Carolina General Assembly.
Catributions to the pension plan from the County werg,868for the year ended June 32017

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pgions

At June 302017 the County reported amsset of £2,273for its proportionate share of the net
pension asset. The net pension asset was measured as of Jup@180The total pension liability
used to calculate the net pension asset was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December
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31,2015 The total pension liability was then rolled forward to the measurement datduae 30,

2016dzG A f AT Ay 3 dzLJRF 0SS LINRPOSRAzINB& Ay O2NLIR NI GAy3a GKS
2T O0UKS yS4 LISyairzy laaSa e¢ta olFlaSR 2y GKS [ 2dzy
relative to contributions tothe pension plan of all participating RODSPF employers. At June 30,

201&& GUKS / 2dzyi@ Qa 11908@ fcNIvas2aglecrease of0.006B% from its

proportion measured as of June 315

For the year ended June 32017 the Couny recognized pension expense of $1,6422June 30,
2017, the County reportedleferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $ 24 $ 288
Net difference between projected and actual earningson pension
plan investments 38 -
Changes in proportion and differences between County
contributions and proportionate share of contributions 387 54
Change in assumptions 5,934
County contributions subsequent to the measurement date 1,068 -
Total $ 7,451 $ 342

$1,068 reported as deferred outflows of resoees related to pensions resulting from County
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as an increase of the net
pension asset in the year ended June 30, 20Qther amounts reported as deferred inflows of
resources related tognsions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended June 30:

2016 $ 2,597
2017 2,631
2018 1,063

2019 (250)
2020 -
Thereafter -
$ 6,041

Actuarial AssumptionsThe tdal pension liability in the December 30Q15actuarial valuation was
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the
measurement:

-58-



Bertie County, North Carolina
Notes to Financial Statements

Inflation 3.0 percent

Salary increases 3.5 to 7.75 percent, including inflation and
productivity factor

Investment rate of return 3.75 percent, net of pension plan investment

expense, including inflation
The plan currently uses mortality tables that vary by age, geretaployee group (i.e. general, law
enforcement officer) and health status (i.e. disabled and healthy). The current mortality rates are
based on published tables and based on studies that cover significant portions of the U.S.
population. The healthy moality rates also contain a provision to reflect future mortality
improvements.

The actuarial assumptions used in the DecembeB15valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience stly for theperiod January 1, 2010 through December 31, 2014

Future ad hoc COLA amounts are not considered to be substantively automatic and are therefore
not included in the measurement.

The projected longerm investment returns and inflation assumptions are deped through

review of current and historical capital markets data, -sele investment research, consultant
whitepapers, and historical performance of investment strategies. Fixed income return projections
reflect current yields across the U.S. Treasueyd curve and market expectations of forward yields
projected and interpolated for multiple tenors and over multiple year horizons. These projections
are combined to produce the lorgrm expected rate of return by weighting the expected future

real raes of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The
adopted asset allocation policy for the RODSPF is 100% in the fixed income asset class. The best
estimate of arithmetic real rate of return for the fixed incomeseschss as of June 3@016is

1.4%.

The information above is based on 30 year expectations developed witbathgulting actuary for

the 2016asset liability and investment policy study for the North CaroReirement Systems,
including LGERS. The ldegn nominal rates of return underlying the real rates of return are
arithmetic annualized figures. The real rates of return are calculated from nominal rates by
multiplicatively subtracting a longerm inflation assumption of 3.19%. All rates of return and
inflation are annualized.

Discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 5.75%. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contribufrons

employers will be made at statutorily required rates. Based on these assumptions, the pension

LI I yQa TFARAZOAFINE ySi LRaArAdgrAz2y ¢l a LINR2SOGSR (2
payments of the current plan members. Therefore, the loeign expected rate of return on

pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine

the total pension liability.

{SyarilA@graite 2F (GKS /2dzyieQa LINPLERNIA2YF(GS aKlF NE

rated ¢ KS F2ff2Ay3 LINBaSyida GKS /2dzyieQa LINELRNI

using the discountrate of 3.ARISNOSy iz &4 ¢Sttt la gKIFIG GKS /[ 2dzya
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pension asset would be if it were calculated using a distoate tha is 1-percentagepoint lower
(2.75 percent)r 1-percentagepoint higher (475 percent) than the current rate:

1% Decrease Discount 1% Increase
(2.75%) Rate (3.75%) (4.75%)

County'sproportionate shareof the net position
liability (asset) $ (17,959) $ (22,273) $ (25,896)

Pension plan fiduciary netopiton. 5 SGF Af SR AYyFT2NXI A2y | o62dzi GKS
position is available in the separately issued Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the
State of North Carolina.

e. Other Postemployment Benefit

Healthcare Benefits

PlanDescription.Under the terms of a County resolution, the County administers a sergfdoyer

defined benefit Healthcare Benefits Plan (the HCB Plan). This plan provides postemployment
healthcare benefits to retirees of the County, provided they partigpa the North Carolina Local
D2OSNYyYSyalrt 9YLX28SSaQ wSUANBYSyd {eadsSy o{e.
according to the following guidelines: a) The County will pay 50% of the cost of the premiums for an
employee who is at least 55 years @earetiring with 15 years of continuous service with Bertie

County; b) The County will pay 100% of the cost of the premiums for an employee retiring with 20
years of continuous service with Bertie County; ¢) The County will pay 100% of the cost of the
premiums for an employee retiring with 25 years of roontinuous service with Bertie County;
Coverage will continue until the employee becomes eligible for Medicare, at which time the County

will convert coverage to a Medicare Supplement policy. The cosi fiérS SYLX 28S5S5Qa akl
premiums, if any, will be determined on an annual basis. Service time credit with the County will be
calculated based on actual service time and any sick leave time that is on balance with the County

at the time of retirement. e health insurance provision of this article shall apply to County
Commissioners. The County pays the full cost of coverage for these benefits through private
insurers. The Board of Commissioners may amend the benefit provisions. A separate report was not
issued for the plan.

Employees hired after July 1, 2016, are not eligible for retiree health insurance benefits upon
retirement.

Membership of the HCB Plan consisted of the following at Decemb@O0335, the date of the latest
actuarial valuation:
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Law
General Enforcement
Employees Officers EMS
Retirees and dependents receiving benefits 41 3 -
Active plan members 105 22 35
146 25 35

FundingPolicy The County pays the fulbst of coverage for the healthcare benefits paid to
qualified retirees under a County resolution that can be amended by County Commissioners. The
County has chosen to fund the healthcare benefits on agsayou-go basis.

The current ARC rate 2.546 d annual covered payroll. For the current year, the County
contributed $334,4420r 5.78% of annual covered payroll. The County obtains healthcare coverage
GKNRdzZZAK LINAGIFGS AyadaNENB® ¢KS /2dzyieQa NBI dzi NE
employees not engaged in law enforcement and for law enforcement officers represér@8élo

and .052%of covered payroll, respectively. There were no contributions made by employees. The

| 2dzyieQa 206fA3ILGA2Y G2 O2yUNROGdzGS G2 ICounty t €y |
Commissioners.

Summary of Significant Accounting PolicieBostempyment expenditures are made from the
General Fund, which is maintained on the modified accrual basis of accounting. No funds are set
aside to pay benefits and administration costs. These expenditures are paid as they come due.

Annual OPEB Cost and N&®EB Obligatioh ¢tKS /2dzyieQa lyydzf ht9o. O
based on theannual required contribution of the employ@&RC), an amount actuarially determined

in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a leveingf f

that, if paid on an ongoing basis is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any
unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. The
F2ft26Ay3 Gl 0fS aKz2ga (K Sal QPEB tdst josSthelydar, thefamouktS / 2 o
I Olidz- tfte& O2yiNAROdzGSR (2 (GKS LXIFIyX FYyR OKFIy3Sa A
benefits:

Annual Required Contribution $ 1,251,565
Interest on net OPEB obligation 169,843
Adjustment to annual required contribution (236,106
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 1,185,302
Contributions made (379,429
Increase (decrease) in net OPEB obligation 805,873
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year 4,246,067
Net OPEB obligation, end of year $ 5,051,940

O«

¢CKS [/ 2dzy(ieQa lyydzf hto. 2a0> GKS LISNOSydGlr3as 2

the net OPEB obligation for 2DWvere as follows:
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For Year Ended Annual Percentage of Annual Net OPEB
June 30 OPEB Cost OPEB Cost Contributed Obligation
2015 $ 709,567 34.71% $ 3,849,010
2016 $ 731,499 45.70% $ 4,246,067
2017 $ 1,185,302 32.00% $ 5,051,940

FundedStatus and Funding ProgresAs of December 32015 the most recent actuarial valuation
date, the plan was nofunded. The actuarial liability for benefits and, thus, the unfunded actuarial
accrued liability (UAAL) wad 967,702 The covered payro(annual payroll of active employees
covered by the plan) wass$776,863and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll 28%8.2%.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and healthcarentts. Amounts determined
regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are
subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new
estimates are made about the future. Tlsehedule of funding progress, presented as required
supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements, presents information
about the actuarial value of plan asseisd theactuarialy accrued liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and AssumptionsProjections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are
based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and
include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation dredHistorical pattern of
sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members at that point. The actuarial
methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short
term volatility in actuarial accrued lidities and the actuarial value assets, consistent with the {ong
term perspective of the calculations.

In the December 312015actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit actuarial cost method was

used. The actuarial assumptions included a 4.0% invast rate of return (net of administrative
expenses), which is the expected lengS Nl Ay @SadyYSyd NBGdz2Ny&a 2y GKS
calculated based on the funded level of the plan at the valuation date, and an annual medical cost
trend increase of7.73% to 5.00% annually. The investment rate included(® Bercent inflation
assumption. The actuarial value of assets, if any, was determined using techniques that spread the
effects of longterm volatility in the market value of investments over a @awyperiod. The UAAL is

being amortized as a level percentage of projectedt credit on a level percent gfayroll on an

open basis. The remaining amortization period at Decembe2@15was30years

f. Other Employment Benefits

The County has elected to provide death benefits to law enforcement officers through the Death
.SYSTFAL tfly FT2NJ YSYOSNE 2F GKS [ 201t D2@SNYYSy
Plan), a multipleemployer, Stateadministered, cossharing plarfunded on a oneyear term cost

basis. The beneficiaries of those employees who die in active service after one year of contributing
membership in the System, or who die within 180 days after retirement or termination of service

and have at least one yeaf oontributing membership service in the system at the time of death
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are eligible for death benefits. Lump sum death benefit payments to beneficiaries are equal to the
employee's 12 highest months salary in a row during the 24 months prior to the empajesth,

but the benefit will be a minimum of $25,000 and will not exceed $50,000. All death benefit
payments are made from the Death Benefit Plan. The County has no liability beyond the payment of
monthly contributions. The contributions to the Death B&h&lan cannot be separated between

the post employment benefit amount and the other benefit amount. The County considers these
contributions to be immaterial.

3. Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources

Deferred inflows of resources at yeand is conprised of the following:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Pensions - difference between expected and actual experience

LGERS $ 45473 % 84,810

Register of Deeds 24 288
Pensions - difference between projected and actual investment earnings

LGERS 1,338,127 -

Register of Deeds 38 -
Pensions - change in proportion and difference between employer
contributions and proportionate share of contributions

LGERS 156,481 -

Register of Deeds 387 54
Changes in assumptions

LGERS 165,770 -

Register of Deeds 5,934 -

LEOSSA - 9,003
Contributions to pension plan in 2016-2017 fiscal year

LGERS 523,363 -

Register of Deeds 1,068 -
Benefit payments/adminstration costs paid subsequent to the
measurement date - LEOSSA 7,238 -
Prepaid taxes not yet earned (General) - 48,628
Taxes receivables, net (General) - 796,325
Special assessments receivable, net (General) - 3,754,504

$ 2,243,903 $ 4,693,612

4. RiskManagement

The County is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The County
participates in two selfunded riskfinancing pod¢s administered by the North Carolina Association
of County Commissioners. Through these pools, the County obtains property coverage equal to
replacement cost values of owned property subject to a limit of $125.5 million for any one
occurrence, general, &o, professional, and employment practices liability coverage of $2 million
per occurrence, auto physical damage coverage for owned autos at actual cash value, crime
coverage of $250,000 per occurrence, and workers' compensation coverage up to the statutor
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limits. The pools are audited annually by certified public accountants, and the audited financial
statements are available to the County upon request. Two of the pools are reinsured through a
multi-state public entity captive for single occurrence lossesxcess of $500,000 up to a $2 million

limit for liability coverage, $600,000 of aggregate annual losses in excess of $50,000 per occurrence
for property, auto physical damage, and crime coverage, and single occurrence losses of $350,000
for workers' canpensation. The pool is reinsured through commercial carrier for individual losses in
excess of $100,000.

.fdzS /I Nraak.fdzS {KASEtR 2F Db2NIK /I NRfAYylF LINROJA
insurance is provided bguardian

The County carrieBood insurance through the National Flood Insurance Plan (NFIP). Because the
County is in an areaf the Statell K it KlFa o06SSy YI LIWSR FyR RSaA3aylds
a river, lake, or stream) by the Federal Emergency Management Agency, they @eligible to

purchase coverage of $500,000 per structure through the NFIP. The County also is eligible to but

has not purchased commercial flood insurance for another $3,500,000 of coverage per structure.

In accordance with G.S. 189> U K S enipidydns that Qave access to $100 or more at any
IAGSYy GAYS 2F GKS [/ 2dzyieQa FdzyRaA | NBE LISNF2NX¥I y(
Director of Finance, the Tax Collector, and the Register of Deeds are each individually bonded for
$50,000 eachThe Sheriff is individually bonded for $25,000. The remaining employees that have
access to funds are bonded under a blanket bond for $250,000.

The County carries commercial coverage for all other risks of loss. There have been no significant
reductionsin insurance coverage from the previous year and settled claims have not exceeded
coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

Bertie County ABC Board is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assetserrors and omissions; injury to employees; and natural disasters. The Board
has property, general liability, auto liability, workers' compensation, and employee health coverage.
The Board also has liquor legal liability coverage. There have been nficaignieductions in
insurance coverage from the previous year and settled claims have not exceeded coverage in any of
the past three fiscal years.

5. Contingent Liabilities
At June 302017 the County was a defeR I yi (2 @ NA2dza fl gadAadiaod Ly

management and the County attorney, the ultimate effect of these legal matters will not have a
YFEGSNAIE T ROSNES STFSOU 2y GKS /2dzyieqQa FTAylLyOA
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6. LongTerm Obligations

a. Installment Purchase

Serviced by the General Fund:

In February 2000, the County entered into an installment purchase contract for $9,950,000 to
finance construction on a new hospital. Principal and interest payments of $68,888 are payable
monthly. Inteest is payable at a 5.5% rate. The County leases the new facilities to Vidant Medical
Center. The amount of the lease payments shall be equal to the future debt service and all
associated costs on the debt incurred by the County for the purpose of cotisguihe new
facility. The final payment is due January 2022.

In February 2004, the County entered into an installment purchase contract for $1,000,000 to
finance construction on a new Health Department Building. The financing contract requires 180
fixed principal payments of $5,556 and varying interest payments at a rate of 3.57% beginning in
March 2004, and ending February 2019.

As authorized by State law [G.S.160A and 153A158.1], the County financed various property
acquisitions for use by BertieoGnty Board of Education during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004
by installment purchase. The installment purchase was issued pursuant to a deed of trust that
requires that legal title remain with the County as long as the debt is outstanding. TheyCGmamt
entered into a lease with Bertie County Board of Education that transfers the rights and
responsibilities for maintenance and insurance of the property to the Board of Education. The lease
calls for nominal annual lease payments and also containargatm purchase option. The lease
term is the same as that of the installment purchase obligation. Due to the economic substance of
the transaction, the capital assets associated with the installment purchase obligation are recorded
by the Board of Educati.

The installment purchase was executed on July 1, 2003 for various property improvements for use
by Bertie County Board of Education. The transaction requires fifteen principal payments by the
County of $212,18&ndingDecember 2023There is no interest due. The payments are deposited
into an interest drawing account. The remainder of the payments, totaling $787,572, will be made
from the interest account.

The installment purchase was executed on October 12, 2007 for variousrpramprovements for

use by Bertie County Board of Education. The transaction requires fifteen principal payments by the
County of $109,46@nding October 2024 There is no interest due. The payments are deposited
into an interest drawing account. The ramder of the payments, totaling $358,100, will be made
from the interest account.

In November 2005, the County entered into an installment purchase contract for $6,000,000 to
finance the construction on a new Middle School. The financing contract reg8@esemannual

fixed principal payments of $200,000 and varying interest payments at a rate of 3.8% beginning
May 31, 2006 and ending November 2020.

-65-



Bertie County, North Carolina
Notes to Financial Statements

In October 2006, the County entered into an installment purchase contract for $3,300,000 to
finance theconstruction of the new Department of Social Services Building. The financing contract
requires 15 annual fixed principal payments of $220,000 with an interest rate of 3.93% beginning
October 2007. In October 2012, the County modified their agreement théhender for a lower
interest rate of 2.93%. The payment schedule continues without interruption and will be paid out
October 2021

In April 2017 the County entered into an installment purchase contract fB8&000to finance the
purchase of emergenogquipment The financing contract requires 15 annual paymeisluding
interest, of $64,821with an interest rate oR.73% beginning\pril 2018 and ending April 2032
Servicedy the Water Districts

In January 2014the County entered intaevolving dan for $277,046 to finance a water supply

system project for Water District [The financing contract requirds8 annualprincipalpayments of
$15,391ending May 2032The interest rate is 0.00%
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For Bertie County, the future minimum payments of thesstallment purchases as of June 30,

2017, including 813,81 20f interest, are:

Governmental Activities

Hospital Health Department DSS County Building
Year ending June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2018 $ 657,201 $ 169,449 $ 66,667 $ 2,878 $ 220,000 $ 26,290
2019 694,801 131,850 44,444 597 220,000 21,032
2020 734,319 92,331 - - 220,000 15,774
2021 776,562 50,008 - - 220,000 10,516
2022 473,338 8,874 - - 220,000 5,258
2023-2027 - - - - - -
2028-2032 - - - - - -
Principal and interest payment totals $ 3,336,221 $ 452,512 $ 111,111 $ 3,475 $ 1,100,000 $ 78,870

QZAB School QZAB Bertie
Project High Middle School Medical Equipment
Year ending June 30 Principal Principal Principal Interest Principal Interest
2018 $ 212,181 $ 109,460 $ 400,000 $ 43,940 $ 43,150 $ 21,671
2019 212,181 109,460 400,000 30,420 44,336 20,485
2020 212,181 109,460 400,000 16,900 45,556 19,265
2021 212,181 109,460 200,000 3,380 46,809 18,012
2022 212,181 109,460 - - 48,096 16,725
2023-2027 151,029 467,560 - - 261,063 63,042
2028-2032 - - - - 298,990 25,115
Principal and interest payment totals $ 1,211,934 $ 1,014,860 $ 1,400,000 $ 94,640 $ 788,000 $ 184,315
Business-type
Activities Totals

Year ending June 30 Principal Principal Interest
2018 $ 11,650 $ 1,720,309 $ 264,228
2019 11,650 1,736,872 204,384
2020 11,650 1,733,166 144,270
2021 11,650 1,576,662 81,916
2022 11,650 1,074,725 30,857
2023-2027 58,250 937,902 63,042
2028-2032 58,250 357,240 25,115
Principal and interest payment totals $ 174,750 $ 9,136,876 $ 813,812

b. Limited Obligation Bonds

Pursuant to North Carolina General Statutes, the Bertie County Board of Commissioners enters into
an installment contract and issues Limitgdbligation Bonds for the purpose of designing,
constructing and equipping a new high school for use by the Bertie County Board of Education. The
2012 Bonds are limited obligations of the County and payments thereon are limited to funds
appropriated for tha purpose by the Board of Commissioners of the County in its discretion. As
security for the Bonds, the County executed a Deed of Trust, Security Agreement and Fixture Filing

as of November 1, 2012 granting a lien of record on the site of the Projecthendetl estate

improvements thereon.

The proceeds of the 2012 Bonds were used to construct the new Bertie High School which is a
147,000 square foot facility, including a 500 seat auditorium, a 1,000 seat gymnasium and a
cafeteria designed to seat approxately 300 students. The facility was turned over to the Board of

Education in May 2014.
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The obligation to make payments with respect to the bonds is not a general obligation of the
County, and the taxing power of the County is not pledged directly arecity to secure any

monies due to the owners of the bonds. Principal and interest payments are appropriated when
due.

The Water Districts (a blended component unit of the County) issue General Obligation debt, the
proceeds of which are used to refurcisting USDA District debt. The County then issues Limited
Obligation Bonds in an amount sufficient enough to purchase all the Districts General Obligation
debt. Both the District and the County assign their rights to a third party trustee that recdieed t
debt payments from the District and uses those funds to make the debt service payments on the
Limited Obligation Bonds.

The County's limited obligation bonds payable at June28Q,7 are comprised of the followig
individual issues:

Limited obligation bonds serviced by the General Fund:

$18,030,000imited obligationSerie2012AQSCHBissuedNovember
2012duein semi-annualnterest paymentswith the principaldue in
2036. Interest at 4.667%. $ 18,030,000

$3,455,000limited obligation Series2012BissuedNovember2012

due in annualinstallmentsof $285,000to $420,000through 2022.

Interest at varying rates of 1% - 4%. 2,315,000
$ 20,345,000
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Limited obligation bonds serviced by the Regional Water District Fund:

$2,525,000refunding Series2013 issuedMay 2013 due in annual
installments of $85,000to $130,000 through 2036. Interest at
varying rates of 2% - 4%. $ 2,180,000

$3,540,000refunding Series2013 issuedMay 2013 due in annual
installments of $105,000to $180,000through 2037. Interest at
varying rates of 2% - 4%. 3,110,000

$2,290,000refunding Series2013 issuedMay 2013 due in annual
installments of $75,000to $120,000 through 2035. Interest at
varying rates of 2% - 4%. 1,960,000

$3,415,000refunding Series2013 issuedMay 2013 due in annual
installments of $80,000to $160,000 through 2040. Interest at
varying rates of 2% - 4%. 3,070,000

$ 10,320,000

Annual debt service requiments to maturity for the General Fund and the Water District Service
Fund limited obligation bonds are as follows:

Governmental activities Business-type activities
Totals Totals

Year ending June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest
2018 $ 285000 $ 898535 $ 385000 $ 407,106
2019 300,000 892,685 405,000 395,556
2020 555,000 881,360 415,000 379,356
2021 755,000 861,710 435,000 362,756
2022 420,000 841,460 455,000 345,356
2023-2027 - 4,207,300 2,525,000 1,440,531
2028-2032 - 4,207,300 2,810,000 897,381
2033-2037 - 4,207,300 2,435,000 347,725
2038-2040 18,030,000 420,730 455,000 36,200
Principal and interest payment totals $ 20,345,000 $ 17,418,380 $ 10,320,000 $ 4,611,967
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c. Bond Anticipation Notes

The Regional Water District within Bertie County fssied a bond anticipation note, in order to
finance water projects

$1,717,000Water Note issuedon September29, 2016; interest at

1.23%.Thenote will berepaidfrom a bondissueexpectedto be sold

in the next fiscalyear. At June30, 2017 only $1,526,038had been

received by the County. $ 1,526,038

At June 302017, Bertie County had a legal debt margin @7$®05,859

¢CKS F2fft2¢Ay3a Aa | &dzY Yl NBerm2obligatbks fgf & fiscalygar G K S
ended June 3®017
Current
Balance Balance Portion of

June 30, 2016 Increases Decreases June 30, 2017 Balance

Governmental activities:

Installment purchase $ 9,804,071 $ 788,000 $ 1,629,945 $ 8,962,126 $ 1,708,659
Limited obligation debt 20,630,000 - 285,000 20,345,000 285,000
Compensated absences 409,764 - 4,898 404,866 101,216
Total pension liability (LEOSSA) 457,728 17,433 - 475,161 -
Net pension liability (LGERS) 415,542 1,848,862 - 2,264,404 -
Other postemployment benefits 4,005,464 767,540 - 4,773,004 -
Total governmental activities $ 35,722,569 $ 3,421,835 $ 1,919,843 $ 37,224,561 $ 2,094,875
Business-type activities:
Installment purchase $ 186,394 $ - $ 11,650 $ 174,744 $ 11,650
Limited obligation debt 10,700,000 - 380,000 10,320,000 385,000
Bond Anticipation Note - 1,526,038 - 1,526,038 1,526,038
Original issue discount (44,086) - (2,167) (41,919) (2,167)
Original issue premium 526,899 - 25,903 500,996 25,903
Compensated absences 29,596 - 2,914 26,682 6,670
Net pension liability (LGERS) 26,631 107,003 - 133,634 -
Other postemployment benefits 240,603 38,333 - 278,936 -
Total business-type activities $ 11,666,037 $ 1,671,374 $ 418,300 $ 12,919,111 $ 1,953,094
Discretely presented component unit:
Other postemployment benefits $ 151,675 $ 7,990 $ - $ 159,665 $ -
Total discretely presented component unit $ 151675 $ 7,990 $ - $ 159,665 % -

Compensated absences typically have beégmdated in the general fund and are accounted for on
a LIFO basis, assuming that employees are taking leave timis aarited.

d. Conduit Debt Obligations

Bertie County Industrial Facility and Pollution Control Authority has issued industrial eelaends

to provide financial assistance to private businesses for economic development purposes. These
bonds are secured by the properties financed as well as letters of credit and are payable solely from
payments received from the private businesses imegdl Ownership of the acquired facilities is in

the name of the private business served by the bond issuance. Neither the County, the Authority,
the State, nor any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for the repayment of the
bonds. Acordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial
statements. As of June 3R017, there were no industrial revenue bonds outstanding.
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Transferdo/f rom other funds at June 3@017, consist of the following:

Transferfrom the CapitalReserveSchoolsto the GeneralFundfor

debt services. $ 694,888
Transfer from the General Fund to the Revaluation Fund to
accumulate resources for the revaluation of real property. (60,000)
Transfer from the Lottery Fund to the General Fund for debt
services. 495,000
Total $ 1,129,888
D. Net Investment in Capital Assets
Governmental Business-type
Capital assets $ 30,837,861 $ 28,650,647
Less: long-term debt 29,307,128 10,494,744
Add: debt related to assets not owned by the County 6,963,016 -
Net investment in capital assets $ 8,493,749 $ 18,155,903

E Fund Balance

Bertie County has a revenue spending policy that provides guidance for programs with multiple
revenue sources. The Finance Director will use resources in the following hierarchy: bond proceeds,
federal funds, State funds, local neounty funds, and countfunds. For purposes of fund balance
classification expenditures are to be spent from restricted fund balance first, followedier by
committed fund balance, assigned fund balance and lastly unassigned fund balance. The Finance
Director hasthe authoi @ G2 RSQOAI GS FTNRY GKA& LRfAOe

AT AGQ:

The following schedule provides management and citizens with information on the portion of
General fund balance that is available for appropriations.

Total fund balance - General Fund $ 7,288,416

Less:
Drug 1,191
Stabilization by State Statute 2,583,868
Tax Revaluation 157,277
Education 403,223
Fund Balance Policy 2,391,284
Remaining Fund Balance 1,751,573
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Bertie County has adopted minimum fund balance policy for the General Fund which instructs
management to conduct the business of the County in such a manner that available fund balance is
at least equal to or greater than 10% of budgeted expenditures.

I1l. Joint Ventures

The County participates in a joint venture to operate the Albemarle Regional Library with three

other local governments. Each participating government appoints three board members to the
twelve member board of the Library. The County has an ongoing faedaesponsibility for the joint

@Sy idNE 0SSOl dzaS GKS [AONINEBQ& O2ylGAydzSR SEAAGS
continued funding. None of the participating governments have any equity interest in the Library,

SO no equity interest has been te€ted in the financial statements at June 2017. In accordance

with the intergovernmental agreement between the participating governments, the County
appropriated $40,973to the Library to supplement its actiigs. Complete financial statements for

GKS [AONINEB YIe& 06S 200FAYSR FTNRY (KS [AO0NI NEQA

The County participates in a joint venture to operate East Carolina Behavioral Health with nine

other counties. Each participating ggmment appoints members to the eighteen membmyard.

Bertie County appoints two members to the board. The County has an ongoing financial
NBalLRyaArAoAtAGe F2N) GKS 22AyiG @Syidda2NBE o06S0OldasS
participating governmein 8 Q O2y Ay dzSR Fdzy RAy3Id b2yS 2F GKS L
equity interest in the Center, so no equity interest has been reflected in the financial statements at

June 30,2017 In accordance with the intgpvernmental agreement between the participating
governments, the Countgppropriated $9,390to the Center to supplement its activities. Complete
FAYLFYOALE &GFGSYSyita FT2N 64KS /SyidaSNI YlFe o6S 2060l
College Roadhhoskie, North Carolina 27910.

The County participates in a joint venture to operate the Beurtin Regional Jail (Jail) with one

other local government. Each participating government appoints three board members to the six
member board of the Jail. €hCounty has an ongoing financial responsibility for the joint venture
050rdzasS GKS WIHAtQa O2yiliAaydzSR SEAaGSYyOS RSLISYyR:
funding. None of the participating governments have any equity interest in the Jail, so g equ

interest has been reflected in the financial statements at June2BQy. In accordance with the
governmental agreement between the participating governments, the County appropriated
$1,006,276to the Jail to suplement its activities. This amount represert§.5%of the total
contributions by the participating governments. Complete financial statements for the Jail may be
200FAYSR FNRY (KS WHAtQa 2FFAOS G wHon [/ 2dzyieé C

TheCounty participates in a joint venture to operate the Choanoke Public Transportation Authority

with three other local governments. Each participating government appoints board members to the

nine member board based upon population. Bertie County appdints members to the board.

¢CKS /2dzyGe KFa |y 2y32Ay3 FAYIYOALf NBalLR2yaAoa
O2yiAydzSR SEA&GSYyOS RSLISYyRa 2y (GKS LI NI AOALI GA:
participating governments have any equinterest in the Authority, so no equity interest has been

reflected in the financial statements at June 2017 In accordance with the intergovernmental
agreement between the participating governments, the Courgypropriated $10,000 to the
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Authority to supplement its activities. Complete financial statements for the Authority may be
200FAYSR FTNRY (GKS ! dzikK2NAGeQa 2FFAOS i tod ho

IV. Jointly Governed Organizations

The County, in conjunction with four other counties and thirtge municipalities, established the

Mid-East Council of Governments (Council). The participating governments established the Council

to coordinate various funding received from federal and t&tagencies. Each participating
A2PSNYYSyYy G FLIRAYyGA 2yS YSYOSNI G2 GKS /2dzyOAf Qa
fees 0f$6,863to the Council during the fiscal year ended June280,7.

V. Benefit Paymets Issued by the State

The amounts listed below were paid directly to individual recipients by the State from federal and
State moneys. County personnel are involved with certain functions, primarily eligibility
determinations that cause benefit paymertts be issued by the State. These amounts disclose this
additional aid to County recipients that do not appear in the basic financial statements because
they are not revenues and expenditures of the County.

Federal State

Medicaid $ 27,366,854 $ 15,346,725
Food stamp program 7,435,618 -
Energy assistance 131,300 -
Title 1V-E 58,852 14,655
Foster Care 2,772 -
SC/SA Domiciliary Care - 322,431

Total $ 34,995,396 $ 15,683,811

VI.Summary Disclosure of Significant Comménts and Contingencies

Federal and State Assisted Programs

The County has received proceeds from several federal and State grants. Periodic audits of these
grants are required and certain costs may be questioned as not being appropriate expenditures
under the grant agreements. Such audits could result in the refund of grant moneys to the grantor
agencies. Management believes that any required refunds will be immaterial. No provision has
been made in the accompanying financial statements for the refurgtasit monies.

VII. Supplemental and Additional Supplemental O#i¢alf of One Percent Local Government Sales
and Use Tax

State law (Chapter 105, Articles 40 and 42, of the North Carolina General Statutes) requires the
County to use a portion of the procde of its supplemental and additional supplemental sales
taxes, or local option sales taxes, for public school capital outlays or to retire public school
indebtedness. During the fiscal year ended June28Q,7, the County reported these local option
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sales taxes within its General Fund and Capital Projects Fund. The County expended the restricted
portion of these taxes for public school capital outlays and retirement of school indebtedness.

VIII. Public SchooBuilding Capital Fund

This program is funded using a portion of the corporate income taxes which are imposed on
corporations doing business in the State. Each calendar quarter, the Department of Revenue shall
remit to the State Treasurer for credit in tfand, an amount equal to the applicable fraction
provided by the following table of the net collections of corporate income taxes received during the
previous quarter minus $2.5 million, which it deposits into the Critical School Facilities Needs Fund.
Fa the period from 10/01/1999 to 9/30/2000, the applicable fraction was -doerteenth (1/14) of

the net collections; for periods after 9/30/2000, the applicable fraction is five -sixihs (5/69) of

the net collections of corporate taxes.

Monies in thefund are allocated to Bertie County on the basis of the average daily membership

(ADM) for Bertie County Board of Education as determined and certified by the State Board of
Education. The Office of State Budget and Management establishes and maintainBNn

allocation account for the County. At June 20172 G KS ot fFyO0S 2F GKS [/ 2dzy
account wasp3,002 The County must match this balance on the basis of one dollar for every three

dollars of Statedzy Ra >~ F2NJ FAYylFIyOAy3d GKS aoOKz22ft dzyAidQa
technology plan does not require a county matchis program is also funded in part, using a portion

of the lottery funds collected from the NC Education Lottery. Distrilmgtiof the lottery money are

YIRS o0lFaSR 2y (GKS /2dzyieQa I @SNI IS RIFEFAf& YSYoSN
June 302017 GKS o6l flyOS 2F (KS wa2®ay 688 iddods Aoliraq8ide C dzy F
a county match.

After approving a school capital project authorized by the Act, the Office of State Budget and

al yrasSySyiad gAftf GNIyaFSN FdzyRa FTNRY GKS [/ 2dzyieQ
maintained with the State rEasurer. At June 3®017Z GKS / 2dzy i@ Q& RAAa0dzNBRA
balance 0f$2,923

Funds in the allocation and disbursing accounts are considered State monies until the County issues
warrants to disburse them. Ai KI & GAYSX GKS@& IINB NBO23ayAl SR Ay
restricted intergovernmental revenue.

IX. Notes Receivable

General Fund

In December 1999, the County entered into a capital lease agreement with Vidant Medical Center
(formerly Pitt County Memorial Hospital). The County is responsible for the construction and
financing of a new hospital. As of June 20, 2002, the hospital @apleted and the County began
leasing the new facilities to Vidant. The title to the facilities transfers to Vidant at the end of the
lease term, thus creating a note receivable from Vidant. At Jun@@UY, the far market value of

the leasewas $3,336,221
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Bertie County, North Carolina
Notes to Financial Statements

In December 1993, the County accepted a note receivable from Landmark Asset Services, Inc., in
exchange for 6.78 acres of land. The face value of the note is $90,000, due in one single principal
payment in 2044and is noAnterest bearing. The note is valued on the financial statements at the
fair market value of the land of $39,163 and is recorded as deferred revenue because the revenue is
measurable, but not availahle

In December 1995, the County accepted a note receivable from Landmark Asset Services, Inc., in
consideration for environmental clearp and site improvement expenditures incurred by the
County. The face value of the note$249,520,due in one single payemt in 2046 and is non
interest bearing. The note is valued on the financial statements at face value and is recorded as a
deferred revenue because the revenue is measurable, but not available

In July 2004, the County accepted a note receivable fromieBbtemorial Limited Partnership in
consideration for environmental clearp and site improvement expenditures incurred by the
County. The face value of the note$i$29,600 due in eighteen payments beginning in 2037 and is
norrinterest bearing. The note ivalued on the financial statements at face value and is recorded as
a deferred revenue because the revenue is measurable, but not available

X. Prior Period Adjustments

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 20the County determined theapital assetin the Bertie
TelephoneFund vere understated by $7,589 Therefore, an adjustment to beginning net position
has been recorded to account for this item, the net effect of wintheased beginning net position
by $47,589in the Bertie Telephone Fund

Xl. Change in Accounting Principles/Restatement

The County implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) No. Statement 73,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related Assets That Are Not within the Scope
of GASB Statement 68)d Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB Statements 67 ,andta8

fiscal year ending June 30, 2017. The implementation of the statement required the County to
record beginning total pension liability and the effects on net position of benefit patsnand
FRYAYAAGNI GAOPS SELSyasSa LIAR o6& GKS /2dzyie G2
Allowance during the measurement period. As a result, net position for the governmental activities
decreased $54,153 The County also implemented GAS&e®nent No. 74Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Rtanthe Healthcare Benefits Plan. The
implementation of this statement had no effect on net position.
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Other Postemployment Benefits
RequiredSupplemental Information
Schedule of Funding Progress

Schedule 1
Actuarial Covered UAAL as a
Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Payroll for Percentage
Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL) - AAL Funded Year Ending of Covered
Valuation Assets Proj Unit Credit (UAAL) Ratio on Val Date Payroll
Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)
12/31/2008 $ - $ 8,201,098 $ 8,201,098 0.00% $ 4,552,443 180.15%
12/31/2009 $ - $ 8,129,891 $ 8,129,891 0.00% $ 4,311,982 188.54%
12/31/2013 $ - $ 8,878,477 $ 8,878,477 0.00% $ 4,422,714 200.75%
12/31/2015 $ - $ 11,967,702 $ 11,967,702 0.00% $ 5,776,863 207.17%

Schedule of Employer Contributions

Year Ended Annual Required Percentage

June 30 Contribution Contributed
2014 $ 708,811 40.40%
2015 $ 709,567 34.71%
2016 $ 724,619 46.15%
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Required Supplemental Information
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of the Net Pension Liability (Asset)

Schedule 2
2017 2016 2015 2014
County's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) (%) 0.1140% 0.1047% 0.0811% 0.8310%

County's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) ( $ 2,420,311 $ 469,977 $ (478,284)$ 1,001,674
County's covered-employee payroll $ 7,198,427 $ 6,638,186 $ 6,546,107 $ 5,337,910

County'sproportionate shareof the net pensionliability (asset)asa
percentage of its covered-employee payroll 33.62% 7.08% (7.31)% 18.77%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentageof the total pension
liability 91.47% 98.09% 102.64% 94.35%
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Schedule 3
2017 2016 2015 2014
Contractually required contribution $ 523,363 $ 445210 $ 428,252 $ 354,841
Contributions in relation to the contractually required contribution 523,363 445,210 428,252 354,841
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - $ - $ -3
County's covered-employee payroll $ 7,198,427 $ 6,638,186 $ 6,546,107 $ 5,337,910
Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 7.27% 6.71% 6.54% 6.65%
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Register of Deeds Supplemental Pension Fund
Required Supplemental Information
{OKSRdz S 2F GUKS [/ 2dzyieéQa
of the Net Pension Liability (Asset)

Schedule 4
2017 2016 2015 2014
County's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) (%) 0.11913% 0.11998% 0.12285% 0.11879%

County's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) ( $ (22,273) $  (27,804) $ (27,841) $  (25,374)
County's covered-employee payroll $ 133,877 $ 122,973 $ 119,148 $ 118,870

County'sproportionate shareof the net pensionliability (asset)asa
percentage of its covered-employee payroll -16.64% -22.61% -23.37% -21.35%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentageof the total pension
liability 160.17% 197.29% 193.88% 190.50%
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Register of Deeds Supplemental Pension Fund
Required Supplemental Information
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Schedule 5
2017 2016 2015 2014
Contractually required contribution $ 1,068 $ 973 $ 960 $ 1,003
Contributions in relation to the contractually required contribution 1,068 973 960 1,003
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - $ - 3 - $
County's covered-employee payroll $ 133877 $ 122,973 $ 119,148 $ 118,870
Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 0.80% 0.79% 0.81% 0.84%
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RequiredSupplemental Information
Schedule of Changes in Total Pension Liability

Schedule 6
2017
Beginning balance $ 457,728
Service Cost 26,421
Interest on the total pension liability 16,082
Changes of assumptions or other inputs (10,594)
Benefit payments (14,476)
Ending balance of the total pension liability $475,161

The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the prior December 3
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Schedule of Total Pension Liability as a Percentage of Covered Payro

Schedule 7

2017
Total pension liability $ 475,161
Covered payroll 1,049,983
Total pension liability as a percentage of covered payroll 45.25%

Notes to the schedules:

Bertie County has no assets accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in
paragraph 4 of GASB Statement 73 to pay related benefits.
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Bertie County, North Carolina
General Fundschedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund BalancéBudget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 3017

Schedule 8
Variance
Positive
Final Budget Actual (Negative)
REVENUES
Ad valorem taxes
Current year $ 10,632,699
Prior years 384,698
Penalties and interest 158,503
Total $ 10,956,601 11,175,900 $ 219,299
Other taxes
Local 1 percergales tax-article 39 298,876
Scrap tire disposal tax 27,491
NC excise tax 51,938
Lease vehicle tax 53
Total 404,200 378,358 (25,842)
Intergovernmental revenues:
Wine and beer 64,154
Emergency Management 39,292
Local1/2 &l tS8a GlIERmFNIAOES nn 1,069,972
[20Ff wMkH aktsSa dFrEmnkNILGAOES nx 418,811
[ 20Ff MkH aktsSa dFrEnFNGAOES nn 610,215
State DWI reimbursement 849
Payment in lieu of taxes 58,734
Veteran services 2,000
Aging office 227,725
CAMA 250
Soil conservation 23,298
Juvenile Crime Prevention Council 98,067
Court facility fees 40,113
Officer fees 45,693
Restricted drug money 501
Law Enforcement Grant 3,697
School Resource Officer - Board of Ed 67,413
Rural General Public Transportation 56,853
Aging - Senior outreach 3,020
Social services - general administration 2,300,444
Day Care 612,205
Child support 341,002
Foster care 24,369
Elderly/Handicapped transportation 62,327
Shiip Grant 1,750
Foster Child Adoption Incentive 36,000
Solid Waste Disposal 11,814
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Bertie County, North Carolina
General Fundschedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund BalancdBudget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 3017

Schedule 8
Variance
Positive
Final Budget Actual (Negative)
Medicaid EMS Cost Settlement 205,074
EFNEP program assistant 24,000
Equipment Grant 32,000
PARTF Grant 500,000
MIPPA Grant 1,283
Eat Smart Move More 7,500
4-H Cooking camp 3,500
Low Income Energy Assistance 131,300
Mid East 33,948
Total 5,985,557 7,159,173 1,173,616
Licenses and permits:
Recording fees 48,887
Vital record fees 14,316
Concealed weapons 10,070
Recreation fees 5,002
Peddlers license 50
Other fees 44,166
Inspection fees and building permits 81,814
Cultural resources 2,381
Floodplain mapping fee 5,238
Concession profits 155
Total 224,050 212,079 (11,971)
Sales and services:
Rents and concessions 48,768
Jail fees 3,611
Ambulance fees 982,931
Non-Emergency transport 878,892
Landfill host fees 1,839,595
Aging Program income 13,237
Registration fees 105
Vehicle tax collection fees 4,482
Total 3,750,782 3,771,621 20,839
Investment earnings 20,000 16,301 (3,699)
Miscellaneous:
Fuel tax 67,032
Miscellaneous 124,051
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General Fundschedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund BalancdBudget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 3017

Schedule 8
Variance
Positive
Final Budget Actual (Negative)
ABC profits 10,000
5 LISNIozGdtS GIE 2,951
Sale of assets 8,657
Sale of land 13,600
Indirect cost 244,778
Insurance proceeds 20,435
Insurance proceeds - Hurricane Matthew 11,859
Insurance proceeds Tropical Storm Julia 182,950
Hurricane Reimbursement - FEMA 123,888
Hospital lease revenue 826,650
5% water gross receipts 19,501
5% electric gross receipts 40,044
5% sewer gross receipts 7,973
Reimbursement Cooperative Extension Program Income 3,586
KB Reynolds Grant 51,450
Implemental functions of NC911 28,118
Total 1,455,594 1,787,523 331,929
Total revenues 22,796,784 24,500,955 1,704,171
EXPENDITURES
General Government
Governing body:
Salaries and benefits 70,288
Travel 54,469
Telephone and postage 900
Dues and subscriptions 5,668
Advertising 1,825
Insurance and bonds 52,421
Contracted Services 2,995
Miscellaneous 12,688
Total 210,958 201,254 9,704
Administration:
Salaries and benefits 218,692
Telephone and postage 4,053
Advertising 1,711
Travel 7,372
Supplies and materials 12,878
Dues and subscriptions 1,502

-85-



B T i -
Bertie County, North Carolina
General Fundschedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund BalancdBudget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 3017

Schedule 8
Variance
Positive
Final Budget Actual (Negative)
Insurance and bonds 619
Employee training 1,945
Total 250,430 248,772 1,658
Finance:
Salaries and benefits 195,445
Supplies and materials 7,167
Travel 1,555
Telephone and postage 6,439
Contracted services 25,965
Dues and subscriptions 50
Maintenance and repairs 2,541
Insurance and bonds 175
Employee training 575
Total 261,950 239,912 22,038
Human Resources and Risk Service:
Salaries and benefits 63,426
Telephone and postage 619
Travel 1,067
Supplies and materials 969
Contracted services 20,436
Dues and subscriptions 35
Employee training 435
Total 95,037 86,987 8,050
Elections:
Salaries and benefits 97,138
Telephone and postage 5,206
Travel 8,968
Buildings and equipment rents 375
Advertising 750
Supplies and materials 7,530
Maintenance and repairs 17,428
Contracted services 7,648
Dues and subscriptions 10
Insurance and bonds 366
Employee training 3,184
Total 154,156 148,603 5,553
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General Fundschedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund BalancdBudget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 3017

Schedule 8
Variance
Positive
Final Budget Actual (Negative)
Tax Collections:
Salaries and benefits 366,895
Telephone and postage 16,058
Travel 1,255
Insurance and bonds 450
Advertising 12,433
Office supplies 4,727
Contracted services 193,653
Maintenance and repairs 1,839
Dues and subscriptions 290
Miscellaneous 35,598
Total 661,155 633,198 27,957
Legal:
Contracted services 93,928
Tax foreclosures 87,768
Total 182,769 181,696 1,073
Register of Deeds:
Salaries and benefits 183,828
Telephone and postage 2,854
Travel 2,739
Supplies and materials 5,029
Fees 1,905
Contracted services 22,381
Dues and subscriptions 375
Insurance and bonds 1,258
Maintenance and repairs 41,683
Conveyance tax 25,450
Domestic violence 2,450
Floodplain mapping plan 5,238
Employee training 750
Total 305,971 295,940 10,031
Data Center:
Salaries and benefits 163,469
Telephone and postage 18,276
Travel 644
Supplies and materials 9,707
Maintenance and repairs 31,593
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Bertie County, North Carolina
General Fundschedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund BalancéBudget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 3017

Schedule 8
Variance
Positive
Final Budget Actual (Negative)
Employee training 150
Capital outlay 6,000
Total 236,177 229,839 6,338
Public Buildings:
Salaries and benefits 321,890
Telephone and postage 1,693
Utilities 63,586
Maintenance and repairs - buildings 151,168
Maintenance and repairs - vehicles and equipment 4,130
Automotive supplies 7,963
Supplies and materials 15,849
Contracted services 13,311
Insurance and bonds 32,562
Uniforms 1,559
Travel 137
Blue Jay Park 28,778
Capital outlay 183,055
Miscellaneous 430
948,013 826,111 121,902
Allocated to court facilities (46,000) (46,000) -
Total 902,013 780,111 121,902
Court Facilities:
Utilities and telephone 27,977
Buildings and equipment rents 372
Miscellaneous 4,691
43,872 33,040 10,832
Allocated from public buildings 46,000 46,000 -
Total 89,872 79,040 10,832
Parks and Recreation:
Salaries and benefits 146,384
Supplies and materials 25,331
Travel 56
Telephone and postage 1,828
Maintenance and repairs 5,921
Advertising 60
Insurance and bonds 3,391
Supplemental grants 9,750
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Changes in Fund BalancdBudget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 3017

Schedule 8
Variance
Positive
Final Budget Actual (Negative)
Contracted services 6,106
Utilities 11,708
Total 287,722 210,535 77,187
Appropriations:
Retiree health insurance 383,980
Total 626,381 383,980 242,401
Total General Government 4,264,591 3,719,867 544,724
Public Safety
Sheriff:
Salaries and benefits 1,699,925
Employee training 2,442
Telephone and postage 15,651
Travel 1,404
Maintenance and repairs - equipment 7,615
Maintenance and repairs - vehicles 64,267
Maintenance and repairs - building 7,699
Automotive supplies 130,883
Supplies and materials 72,749
Dues and subscriptions 421
Insurance and bonds 31,585
Uniforms 18,177
Utilities 27,954
Restricted drug money 23,425
Employee physical 210
Miscellaneous 4,448
Equipment grant 7,500
Sheriff's office move 1,161
Contracted services 2,450
Capital outlay - equipment 29,009
Capital outlay - vehicles 111,611
Total 2,404,762 2,260,586 144,176
Emergency Management:
Salaries and benefits 77,134
Telephone and postage 1,608
Travel 1,647
Insurance and bonds 2,171
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Changes in Fund BalancdBudget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 3017

Schedule 8
Variance
Positive
Final Budget Actual (Negative)
Supplies and materials 22,069
Maintenance and repairs 9,354
Contracted services 5,684
Fire department 360,000
Uniforms 213
Rescue squad 16,000
Supplemental grant 1,475
Capital outlay - equipment 12,152
Total 517,622 509,507 8,115
Emergency Services:
Salaries and benefits 1,953,690
Telephone and postage 3,794
Supplies and materials 197,312
Maintenance and repairs 37,105
Training 3,662
Insurance and bonds 19,430
Capital outlay 70,752
Utilities 21,024
Contracted services 58,391
Total 2,437,525 2,365,160 72,365
Non-Emergency Services:
Salaries and benefits 670,679
Telephone and postage 3,079
Supplies and materials 51,934
Maintenance and repairs 36,822
Advertising 8,483
Capital outlay - equipment 8,120
Total 781,314 779,117 2,197
Planning and inspection:
Salaries and benefits 269,723
Telephone and postage 3,492
Travel 6,363
Maintenance and repairs 459
Automotive supplies 7,585
Supplies and materials 2,366
Dues and subscriptions 685
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Changes in Fund BalancdBudget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 3017

Schedule 8
Variance
Positive
Final Budget Actual (Negative)
Insurance and bonds 1,856
Contracted services 15,055
Miscellaneous 1,425
Total 324,022 309,009 15,013
Animal Control:
Salaries and benefits 81,682
Utilities 2,048
Maintenance and repairs 2,250
Telephone and postage 1,527
Automotive supplies 9,207
Supplies and materials 5,360
Insurance and bonds 1,496
Contracted services 12,662
Uniforms 808
Total 174,725 117,040 57,685
Medical Examiner:
Professional services 33,200 33,200 -
Communications
Salaries and benefits 370,060
Telephone and postage 5,852
Utilities 6,822
Travel 16
Supplies and materials 1,569
Insurance and bonds 657
Maintenance contracts 37,479
Total 432,268 422,455 9,813
Tropical Storm Julia:.
Travel 1,201
Maintenance and repair 196,939
EOC expenses 1,404
Debris removal 4,108
Micellaneous expense 33,110
Total 236,768 236,762 6
Hurricane Matthew:
Salaries and wages 25,195
Travel 2,694
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Schedule 8
Variance
Positive
Final Budget Actual (Negative)
Utilities 6,805
Maintenace and repair 41,552
EOC expenses 393
Debris removal 42,955
Building and egipment 49,500
Miscellaneous expense 22,856
Total 200,683 191,950 8,733
Appropriations:
Bertie-Martin Regional Jail 1,006,276
Total 1,006,276 1,006,276 -
Total Public Safety 8,549,165 8,231,062 309,364
Environmental Protection:
Sanitation:
Tire disposal 22,355
Convenience centers 442,308
Contracted services 5,610
Total 472,308 470,273 2,035
Total Environmental Protection 472,308 470,273 2,035
Economic and Physical Development:
Agricultural Extension:
Salaries and benefits 203,178
Maintenance and repairs - equipment 1,162
Telephone and postage 6,284
Programs 8,461
Eat Smart Move More 7,517
4-H Cooking Camp 3,484
Travel 6,386
Supplies and materials 17,102
Dues and subscriptions 699
Contracted services 400
Total 261,452 254,673 6,779
Economic Development:
Salaries and benefits 73,775
Telephone and postage 801
Travel 5,704
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General Fundschedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund BalancdBudget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 3017

Schedule 8
Variance
Positive
Final Budget Actual (Negative)
Supplies and materials 148
Contracted services 59,008
Peanut Belt Rural Planning 5,782
Employee training 267
Total 166,860 145,485 21,375
Soil Conservation:
Salaries and benefits 67,402
Dues and subscriptions 546
Transportation 1,600
Aquatic weed control 4,965
Total 81,095 74,513 6,582
Total Economic & Physical Development 509,407 474,671 34,736
Human Services:
Health:
Administration:
Insurance and bonds 1,611
Management fee yearly appropriation 96,000
Total 98,000 97,611 389
Total Health 98,000 97,611 389
Social Services:
Administration:
Salaries and benefits 2,294,121
Telephone and postage 39,261
Utilities 32,253
Travel 13,018
Maintenance and repairs 12,053
Food stamp - EBT 10,055
Maintenance contracts 3,485
Vehicle supplies 4,158
Supplies and materials 28,017
Contracted services 17,400
Dues and subscriptions 988
Insurance 7,505
Vidant Bertie Hospital - Indigent Care 120,000
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Bertie County, North Carolina
General Fundschedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund BalancdBudget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 3017

Schedule 8
Variance
Positive
Final Budget Actual (Negative)

Miscellaneous expense 2,081
Capital outlay 24,538

Total 2,803,774 2,608,933 194,841

General Assistance:

Public assistance 831
SAA 333,971
State Foster care 3,653
Day Care 612,205
Medicaid 49
Legal services 34,470
Chore services 42,511
Adoption assistance 17,938
Foster Child Adoption Incentive 22,379
Transport of patients and other 110,223
Work First 20,687
AFDC - Foster Care 28,291
Crisis Intervention 130,323
Jobs programs 7,000
Aid to blind 1,525
Low Income Home Energy 131,300
DNA testing 1,260
Child support 426,194

Total 2,077,256 1,924,810 152,446

Aid to Aged and Disabled:

Salaries and benefits 198,860
Advertising 628
Vehicles supplies 70
Telephone and postage 4,103
Travel 8,878
Maintenance and repairs 54,558
Building and equipment rent 7,800
Respite 70,791
Transportation of patients 45,979
Utilities 13,675
Home delivered meals 41,707
Food and provisions 51,716
Insurance and bonds 2,588
Janitor 1,798
Senior Center 4,938
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Bertie County, North Carolina
General Fundschedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund BalancéBudget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 3017

Schedule 8
Variance
Positive
Final Budget Actual (Negative)
Classes 3,321
SHIIP Grant 2,237
2 Hot 2 Trot grant 110
Supplies and materials 4,000
Dues and subscriptions 207
Employee training 489
Total 522,214 518,453 3,761
Total Social Services 5,403,244 5,052,196 351,048
Veterans Service Office:
Salaries and benefits 33,740
Telephone and postage 502
Travel 1,393
Employee training 60
Supplies and materials 714
Dues and subscriptions 75
Total 47,005 36,484 10,521
Appropriations:
Mental health 44,590
Mental health - ABC 5 4,800
Choanoke Public Transit Authority 10,000
Total 59,390 59,390 -
Total Human Services 5,607,639 5,245,681 361,958
Education:
Public schools current expense
Public schools current expense 3,103,000
Public Schools capital outlay 232,917
Martin Community College 70,138
Martin Community College Bertie Campus 12,382
Roanoke Chowan Community College 55,000
Total 3,613,389 3,473,437 139,952
Total Education 3,613,389 3,473,437 139,952
Special Appropriations:
Other Agencies:
Arts Council 3,000
Airport 20,000
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Schedule 8
Variance
Positive
Final Budget Actual (Negative)
Mideast Commission 6,863
Better Beginnings 52,540
Roanoke River Partners 2,062
Forest service 104,250
Historical group 15,000
Bertie County YMCA 20,000
Library 140,973
CADA 4,800
CBA task force 6,052
Roanoke River Basin 2,000
Windsor Area Chamber 4,000
Food Bank of Albemarle 1,000
Partnership for the Sounds 8,000
Roanoke-Chowan Safe 2,000
Rural general public transpiration 40,559
Highway 17 Association 4,000
Three Rivers Healthy Carolina 500
Children Matters 34,733
Humane Society 2,000
Vocation Jobs/Education 38,500
Visions for View 10,000
Second Chance Counts 27,500
Total 592,184 550,332 41,852
Total Special Appropriations 592,184 550,332 41,852
Debt Service:
Principal retirement 1,914,946 1,914,945
Interest and fees 1,203,526 1,203,522
Total 3,118,472 3,118,467 5
Total Debt Service 3,118,472 3,118,467 5
Total expenditures 26,727,155 25,283,790 1,434,626
Revenues over (under) expenditures (3,930,371) (782,835) (3,147,536
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Changes in Fund BalancdBudget and Actual
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Schedule 8
Variance
Positive
Final Budget Actual (Negative)
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers from other funds:
Capital Reserve Schools Fund 2,343,346 1,085,584 (1,257,762
Lottery Fund - 495,000 495,000
Transfers to other funds:
Tax Revaluation Fund (60,000) (60,000) -
Capital Reserve Schools Fund (210,000) (390,696) (180,696)
Total other financing sources and (uses) 2,073,346 1,129,888 (943,458)
Revenues and other sources over (under)
expenditures and other uses (1,857,025) 347,053 2,204,078
Appropriated fund balance 1,857,025 - (1,857,025
Net change in fund balance $ - 347,053 $ 347,053
Fund balance-beginning 6,380,863
Fund balance-ending $ 6,727,916
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Revaluation Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund BalancdBudget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 3017

Schedule 9
2017
Variance
Positive
Final Budget Actual (Negative)
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Revaluation 60,000 $ - 60,000
Total expenditures 60,000 - 60,000
Revenues over (under) expenditures 60,000 - 60,000
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in - General Fund 60,000 60,000 -
Revenues and other sources over (under) expenditures - 60,000 60,000
Fund balance, beginning 97,277
Fund balance, ending $ 157,277
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REVENUES
Investment earnings
QSCB interest

Bertie County, North Carolina
Capital Reserve Schools Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund BalancdBudget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 3017

Total revenue

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in - General Fund
Transfers in - Lottery
Transfers out - General Fund

Total transfers

Revenues and other sources over (under) expenditures

Appropriated fund balance

Revenues, other uses, and appropriated fund balance over

(under) expenditures

Fund balances, beginning

Fund balances, ending

Schedule 10
2017
Variance
Positive
Final Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 100 $ 2,831 $ 2,731
- 725,152 725,152
100 727,983 727,883
210,000 390,696 180,696
355,000 - (355,000)
(2,343,346) (1,085,584) 1,257,762
(1,778,346) (694,888) 1,083,458
(1,778,246) 33,095 1,811,341
1,778,246 - (1,778,246
$ - 33,095 $ 33,095
370,128
$ 403,223
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Bertie County, NorthCarolina
Nonmajor Governmental Funds Combining Balance Sheet

June 302017

Schedule 11
Special Revenue Funds Capital Project Funds
Total Total Total
Emergency Nonmajor Bertie Nonmajor Nonmajor
Telephone Lottery Special Revenue High Capital Projects Governmental
System Fund Funds School Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 80,154 $ - $ 80,154 $ 658,274 $ 658,274 $ 738,428
Accounts receivable (net) 13,478 495,000 508,478 - - 508,478
Total assets $ 93,632 $ 495,000 $ 588,632 $ 658,274 $ 658,274 $ 1,246,906
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 20,878 $ -3 20,878 $ - $ -3 20,878
Due to other funds - 495,000 495,000 - - 495,000
Total liabilities 20,878 495,000 515,878 - - 515,878
FUND BALANCES
Restricted:
Stabilization by State Statute 13,478 495,000 508,478 - - 508,478
Unassigned 59,276 (495,000) (435,724) 658,274 658,274 222,550
Total fund balances 72,754 - 72,754 658,274 658,274 731,028
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 93,632 $ 495,000 $ 588,632 $ 658,274 $ 658,274 $ 1,246,906
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Bertie County, North Carolina
Nonmajor Governmental Funds Combining Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
For The Fiscal Year Ended JuneZ11,7

Schedule 12
Special Revenue Funds Capital Project Funds
Total Total Total
Emergency Nonmajor Bertie Nonmajor Nonmajor
Telephone Lottery Special Revenue High Capital ProjectsGovernmental
System Proceeds Funds School Funds Funds
REVENUES
Investment earnings $ 223 % - $ 223 % - $ - $ 223
Intergovernmental revenues 161,739 495,000 656,739 - - 656,739
Total revenues 161,962 495,000 656,962 - - 656,962
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Public safety 167,310 - 167,310 - - 167,310
Economic and physical development - - - 1,776 1,776 1,776
Total expenditures 167,310 - 167,310 1,776 1,776 169,086
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures (5,348) 495,000 489,652 (1,776) (1,776) 487,876
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out - (495,000) (495,000) - - (495,000,
Total other financing sources (uses) - (495,000) (495,000) - - (495,000}
Net change in fund balance (5,348) - (5,348) (1,776) (1,776) (7,124)
Fund balance, beginning 78,102 - 78,102 660,050 660,050 738,152
Fund balance, ending $ 72,754 $ - $ 72,754 $ 658,274 $ 658,274 $ 731,028
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Bertie County, North Carolina
Emergency Telephone System Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balane8udget and Actual
For The Fiscal Year Ended JuneZi,7

Schedule 13
2017
Variance
Positive
Final Budget Actual (Negative)
REVENUES
Restricted intergovernmental $ 161,740 $ 161,739 $ 1)
Investment earnings 500 223 277)
Miscellaneous - - -
Total 162,240 161,962 (278)
EXPENDITURES
Implemental functions 29,540 28,118 1,422
Telephone 68,979 51,170 17,809
Furniture 4,066 3,940 126
Software maintenance 8,223 8,223 -
Hardware maintenance 43,608 25,276 18,332
Training 655 319 336
Capital outlay - equipment 50,309 50,264 45
Total expenditures 205,380 167,310 38,070
Revenues and other sources over (under) expenditures (43,140) (5,348) 37,792
Appropriated fund balance 43,140 - (43,140)
Revenues, other uses, and appropriated fund balance over
(under) expenditures - (5,348) $ (5,348)
Fund balances, beginning 78,102
Fund balances, ending $ 72,754
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Bertie County, North Carolina
Lottery Proceeds Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balane8udget and Actual
For The Fiscal Year Ended JuneZi,7

Schedule 14
2017
Variance
Positive
Final Budget Actual (Negative)
REVENUES
Restricted intergovernmental $ 495,000 $ 495,000 $ -
Total 495,000 495,000 -
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfer to General Fund (495,000) (495,000) -
Total other financing sources (uses) (495,000) (495,000) -
Revenues over (under) expenditures and other
financing uses - - 8 -

Fund balances, beginning -
Fund balances, ending $ -
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Bertie County, North Carolina
Bertie High School Construction Fund
Scheduleof Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balane8udget and Actual
From Inception and for the Fiscal Year Ended June28Q,7

Schedule 15
Actual
Variance
Project Prior Current Total to Positive
Authorization Years Year Date (Negative)
REVENUES:
NC Department of Transportation $ - % 50,000 $ - % 50,000 $ 50,000
Investment earnings - 5,274 - 5,274 5,274
Tax refunds - 693,561 - 693,561 693,561
Total revenue - 748,835 - 748,835 748,835
EXPENDITURES:
Construction 19,837,611 19,804,082 - 19,804,082 33,529
Engineer and architectural fees 910,121 899,159 - 899,159 10,962
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 350,000 349,541 - 349,541 459
Legal fees 367,795 344,726 1,776 346,502 21,293
Bond insurance and issuance costs 69,473 41,478 - 41,478 27,995
Total expenditures 21,535,000 21,438,986 1,776 21,440,762 94,238
Revenues over (under) expenditures (21,535,000) (20,690,151) (1,776) (20,691,927) 843,073
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Qualified School Construction Bonds 18,030,000 18,030,000 - 18,030,000 -
Limited Obligation Bonds 3,455,000 3,455,000 - 3,455,000 -
Bond discounts/premiums - 41,962 - 41,962 41,962
Transfer in - School Capital Projects 700,000 700,000 - 700,000 -
Transfer out - School Capital Projects (650,000) (650,000) - (650,000) -
Total other financing sources (uses) 21,535,000 21,576,962 - 21,576,962 41,962
Net change in fund balance $ - $ 886,811 (1,776) $ 885,035 $ 885,035
Fund balance, beginning 660,050
Fund balance, ending $ 658,274
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Bertie County, NorthCarolina
Regional Water District Fund
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures
Budget and Actual (NoiGAAP)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 2017

Schedule 16
2017
Variance
Positive
Final Budget Actual (Negative)
Operating revenues:
Charges for services $ 2,324,680
Water taps 45,409
Other operating revenue 87,530

Total operating revenues

Nonoperating revenues:

$ 2,806,400 2,457,619 $ (348,781)

Investment earnings 4,243
Miscellaneous revenue 1,620
Total nonoperating revenues 15,000 5,863 (9,137)

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Water administration:

2,821,400 2,463,482 (357,918)

Salaries and benefits 551,639
Telephone and postage 78,848
Repairs and maintenance 34,044
Maintenance contracts 3,115
Supplies 143,167
Uniforms 2,555
Contracted services 173,834
Professional fees 28,600
Dues and subscriptions 3,570
Chemicals 8,812
Employee training 1,008
Insurance 24,396
Utilities 115,746
Water testing 19,044
Other expenses 303,168
Total 2,018,599 1,491,546 527,053
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Bertie County, NorthCarolina
Regional Water District Fund
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures
Budget and Actual (NoiGAAP)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 3017

Schedule 16
2017
Variance
Positive
Final Budget Actual (Negative)
Debt service:
Principal 391,650
Interest, fees and amortization 424,315
Total 802,308 815,965 (13,657)
Total expenditures 2,820,907 2,307,511 513,396
Revenues over (under) expenditures 493 155,971 155,478
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfer out-Kelford (125,458) -
Transfer out-Asset Inventory (4,440) -
Appropriated net assets 129,405 -
Total other financing sources (uses) (493) - 493
Revenues and other financing sources over
(under) expenditures $ - 155,971 $ 155,971
Reconciliation from budgetary basis (modified accrual)
to full accrual:
Revenues over (under) expenditures 155,971
Reconciling items:
Depreciation (759,008)
Amortization 23,736
Debt principal 391,650
Capital contributions 110,421
Increase (decrease) in deferred outflows of resources - pensions 88,099
(Increase) decrease in net pension liability (1207,003)
(Increase) decrease in deferred inflows of resources - pensions 9,159
(Increase) decrease in accrued vacation payable 2,914
(Increase) decrease in other postemployment benefits (38,333)
Change in net position $ (122,394)
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Bertie County, NorthCarolina

Asset Inventoryg Phase IV Fund

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures

Budget and Actual (NoiGAAP)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 2017

Schedule 17
Actual
Variance
Project Prior Current Total to Positive
Authorization Years Year Date (Negative)
REVENUES:
Restricted intergovernmental:
State grants $ 88,800 $ - $ 53,950 $ 53,950 $ (34,850)
Total revenues 88,800 53,950 53,950 (34,850)
EXPENDITURES:
Engineering $ 91,908 $ -3 57,058 $ 57,058 $ 34,850
Administration 1,332 1,332 1,332 -
Total expenditures 93,240 58,390 58,390 34,850
Revenues over (under) expenditures (4,440) (4,440) (4,440)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfer from Water 4,440 4,440 4,440
Total other financing sources (uses) 4,440 4,440 4,440
Revenues and other sources over (under) expenditures $ - $ $ $ $
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Bertie County, North Carolina
Drinking Water State Revolving Loan Fun8 CADA
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures
Budget and Actual (NoiGAAP)
From Inception and for the Fiscal Year Ended June28Q,7

Schedule 18
Actual
Variance
Project Prior Current Total to Positive
Authorization Years Year Date (Negative)
EXPENDITURES:
Construction $ 859,000 - $ - $ - $ 859,000
Engineering 379,500 71,500 118,294 189,794 189,706
Acquisition 5,000 - - - 5,000
Administration 1,500 - - - 1,500
Legal 6,100 - - - 6,100
Miscellaneous 29,287 - 253 253 29,034
Contingency 85,750 - - - 85,750
Total expenditures 1,366,137 71,500 118,547 190,047 1,176,090
Revenues over (under) expenditures (1,366,137) (71,500) (118,547) (190,047) 1,176,090
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
NC DWSRR Loan 1,339,350 - - - 1,339,350
Transfer from Water 26,787 26,787 - 26,787 -
Total other financing sources (uses) 1,366,137 26,787 - 26,787 1,339,350
Revenues and other sources over (under) expenditures $ - (44,713) $ (118,547) $ (163,260) $ (163,260
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Bertie County, NorthCarolina
2012 Community Development Block Grant Fund
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures

Budget and Actual (NoiGAAP)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 3017

Schedule 19
Actual
Variance
Project Prior Current Total to Positive
Authorization Years Year Date (Negative)
REVENUES:
Restricted intergovernmental:
Federal grants $ 284,000 $ 248,900 $ 34,714 $ 283,614 $ (386)
Total revenues 284,000 248,900 34,714 283,614 (386)
EXPENDITURES:
C-1 Water improvement 256,200 237,865 17,960 255,825 375
C-1 Administration 27,800 19,635 8,154 27,789 11
Total expenditures 284,000 257,500 26,114 283,614 386
Revenues over (under) expenditures $ - $ (8,600) $ 8,600 $ - $
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Bertie County, North Carolina
USDA Rural Development Fund

Scheduleof Revenues and Expenditures

Budget and Actual (NoiGAAP)

From Inception and For the Fiscal Year Ended Jun2@G07

Schedule 20
Actual
Variance
Project Prior Current Total to Positive
Authorization Years Year Date (Negative)
REVENUES:
Restricted intergovernmental:
State grants $ 1,074,000 $ - $ - 3 - $ (1,074,000
Total revenues 1,074,000 - - - (1,074,000
EXPENDITURES:
Construction $ 2,351,755 $ - $ 1455368 $ 1,455,368 $ 896,387
Engineering 371,400 136,050 199,162 335,212 36,188
Acquisition 5,000 - - - 5,000
Administration 11,500 1,363 1,630 2,993 8,507
Legal 10,000 - 2,037 2,037 7,963
Miscellaneous 20,000 - 15,050 15,050 4,950
Contingency 235,176 - - - 235,176
Interest 50,169 - - - 50,169
Total expenditures 3,055,000 137,413 1,673,247 1,810,660 1,244,340
Revenues over (under) expenditures (1,981,000) (137,413) (1,673,247) (1,810,660) 170,340
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
NC DWSRR Loan 1,717,000 - 1,526,038 1,526,038 190,962
Transfer from Water 264,000 264,000 - 264,000 -
Total other financing sources (uses) 1,981,000 264,000 1,526,038 1,790,038 190,962
Revenues and other sources over (under) expenditures $ - $ 126,587 $ (147,209)$  (20,622) $ (20,622)
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Bertie County, North Caroli

Department of Commerce Rural Center Funidelford
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures
Budget and Actual (NoiGAAP)

From Inception and For the Fiscal Year Ended Jun2@G07

Schedule 21
Actual
Variance
Project Prior Current Total to Positive
Authorization Years Year Date (Negative)
REVENUES:
Restricted intergovernmental:
State grants $ 72,262 $ - $ 21,757 $ 21,757 $ (50,505)
72,262 - 21,757 21,757 (50,505)

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
31,987 $ 31,987 $ 136,333

Construction 168,320 -
Engineering 29,400 - 21,757 21,757 7,643
Total expenditures 197,720 - 53,744 53,744 143,976
Revenues over (under) expenditures (125,458) - (31,987) (31,987) 93,471
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfer from Water 125,458 - 125,458 125,458
Total other financing sources (uses) 125,458 - 125,458 125,458
Revenues and other sources over (under) expenditures $ - $ - $ 93,471 $ 93,471 $ 93,471
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Bertie County, North Carolina
Drinking Water State Revolving Loan Fug&oxobel Merger
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures
Budget and Actual (NoiGAAP)
From Inception and For the Fiscal Year Ended Jun2@G07

Schedule 22
Actual
Variance
Project Prior Current Total to Positive
Authorization Years Year Date (Negative)
REVENUES:
Restricted intergovernmental:
State grants $ 500,000 $ - $ - $ - $ (500,000
Total revenues 500,000 - - - (500,000]
EXPENDITURES:
Construction $ 1,168,200 $ - $ 23,162 $ 23,162 $ 1,145,038
Engineering 388,500 73,000 119,704 192,704 195,796
Acquisition 15,000 850 14,502 15,352 (352)
Legal 3,000 2,818 2,805 5,623 (2,623)
Miscellaneous 35,601 - 1,143 1,143 34,458
Contingency 101,820 - - - 101,820
Total expenditures 1,712,121 76,668 161,316 237,984 1,474,137
Revenues over (under) expenditures (1,212,121) (76,668) (161,316) (237,984) 974,137
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
NC DWSRR Loan 1,178,550 - - - 1,178,550
Transfer from Water 33,571 33,571 - 33,571 -
Total other financing sources (uses) 1,212,121 33,571 - 33,571 1,178,550
Revenues and other sources over (under) expenditures $ - $ (43,097) $ (161,316) $ (204,413) $ (204,413;
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Bertie County, North Carolina
Bertie Telephondnternal Service Fund
Statement of Net Position
June 302017

Schedule 23
2017
ASSETS
Current assets:
Accounts receivable (net): $ 3,532
Total 3,532
Fixed assets (net) 113,218
Total assets 116,750
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 330
Due to other funds 37,221
Total liabilities 37,551
NET ASSETS
Unrestricted 79,199
Total net position $ 79,199
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Bertie County, North Carolina
Bertie Telephone Internal Service Fund
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures
Budget and Actual (NoiGAAP)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 3017

Schedule 24
2017
Variance
Positive
Final Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Operating revenues:
User charges $ 70,000 $ 61,308 $ (8,692)
Total revenues 70,000 61,308 (8,692)
Expenditures:
Operating:
Telephone 47,410 40,175 7,235
Maintenance contracts 1,290 1,238 52
Capital outlay 74,800 - 74,800
Total expenditures 123,500 41,413 82,087
Appropriated fund balance 53,500 - (53,500)
Revenues and appropriated fund balance
over (under) expenditures $ - $ 19,895 $ 19,895
Reconciliation from budgetary basis (modified accrual)
to full accrual:
Depreciation (9,119)
Change in net position $ 10,776
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Bertie County, NorthCarolina
Bertie Telephone Internal Service Fund
Statement of Cash Flows

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 3017

Schedule 25
2017
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from users $ 61,917
Cash paid for goods and services (44,074)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 17,843
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Due to (from ) other funds 37,221
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities 37,221
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (74,748)
Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities (74,748)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (19,684)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 19,684
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ -
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:
Operating income (loss) $ 10,776
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation expense 9,119
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 609
Increase (decrease) | accounts payable and accrued liabilities (2,661)
Total adjustments 7,067
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $ 17,843

-115-



Bertie County, North Carolina
AgencyFunds
Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 3017

Schedule 26
Balance Balance
July 01, 2016 Additions Deductions  June 30, 2017
Social Services
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 416 $ - $ - $ 416
Liabilities:
Miscellaneous liabilities $ 416 $ - $ - $ 416
Motor Vehicle Tax
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 102 $ 659,133 $ 659,044 $ 191
Liabilities:
Intergovernmental payable $ 102 $ 659,133 $ 659,044 $ 191
Pest Management
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,887 $ 10,340 $ 10,835 $ 3,392
Liabilities:
Miscellaneous liabilities $ 3,887 $ 10,340 $ 10,835 $ 3,392
Total - All Agency Funds
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,405 $ 669,473 $ 669,879 $ 3,999
Liabilities:
Miscellaneous liabilities $ 4405 $ 669,473 $ 669,879 $ 3,999
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Bertie County, North Carolina

General Fund Schedule of Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable
June 302017

Schedule 27
Uncollected Uncollected
Balance Collections Balance
Fiscal Year June 30,2016  Additions and Credits  June 30, 2017
2016 - 2017 $ - $11,123,214 10,647,937 $ 475,277
2015 - 2016 414,787 - 239,637 175,150
2014 - 2015 155,040 - 91,042 63,998
2013 -2014 91,182 - 34,607 56,575
2012 - 2013 51,517 - 10,072 41,445
2011 - 2012 35,799 - 7,538 28,261
2010 - 2011 25,759 - 5,904 19,855
2009 - 2010 20,739 - 2,569 18,170
2008 - 2009 22,381 - 1,995 20,386
2007 - 2008 19,230 - 846 18,384
2006 - 2007 13,888 - 13,888 -
$ 850,322 $ 11,123,214 $ 11,056,035 917,501
Less: Allowance for uncollectible accounts:
General Fund 121,176
Ad valorem taxes receivable - net:
General Fund $ 796,325
Reconciliation with revenues
Ad valorem taxes - General Fund $ 11,175,900
Reconciling items:
Interest collected (158,503)
Taxes written off 25,286
Discoveries and adjustments 13,352
Total collections and credits $ 11,056,035
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Bertie County, North Carolina

CountyWide Levy Analysis of Current Tax Levy
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 3017

Schedule 28
Total Levy
Property
County Wide Excluding
Registered Registered
Property Amount Motor Motor
Original Levy: Valuation Rate of Levy Vehicles Vehicles
Property taxed at current year's rate $1,311,238,554 0.0083 $ 10,883,280 $ 9,544,552 $ 1,338,728
Total 1,311,238,554 10,883,280 9,544,552 1,338,728
Discoveries:
Current year taxes 31,119,880 0.0083 258,295 258,295 -
Abatements taxed at current year's rate (864,699) 0.0083 (7,177) (6,784) (393)
Abatements taxed at prior year's rate (1,331,429) 0.0084 (11,184) - (11,184)
Total property valuation $1,340,162,306
Net Levy 11,123,214 9,796,063 1,327,151
Current year's taxes collected 10,647,937 9,320,941 1,326,996
Uncollected taxes at June 30, 2017 $ 475277 $ 475122 $ 155
Current levy collection percentage 95.73% 95.15% 99.99%
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N\ Jeff Best, CPA, P.L.L.C. Lt T G

TELEPHONE: 252-943-2723
= Certified Public Accountants

FAX: 252-943-2935

Report On Internal Control Over Financial Reporting And On Compliance and Other
Matters Based On An Audit Bfinancial Statements Performed In Accordance With
Government Auditing Standards
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To the Board o€Eommissioners
Bertie County, North Carolina

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits containe@awernment Auditing
Standardsissued by the Comptroller General of the United Statd® accompanying financial
statements of the governmental activities, the businggse activities,the discretely presented
component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund informatidertie County,

North Carolina as of and for thgear ended June 3@017 and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprisesS NIi A S bask @ingricidl Stétements, and have issued
our report thereondated January 302018 Our audit includes a reference to other auditors who
audited the financiastatementsof the Bertie County ABC Board, as described in our report on Bertie

| 2dzy e Qa FAYIYOALFfT adlFdSYSydad ¢KAAa NBLBgali R2Sa
internal control over financial reporting @omplianceand other matters that areeported separately

by those auditors. The financial statements of the Bertie County Ai@ Bvere not audited in
accordance witlGovernment Auditing Standards

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we consider€NII A S / 2 dzy ( &
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an apinbn the effectiveness @ertie Countp a

internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness dfdhatyQ a

internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for limited purpose described in the preceding pdnagrap
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that
were not identified. However, as describedthe accompanying schedule of findings and questioned
costs, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be matevehkness.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does ant all
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent

or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such thlere is a reasonable possibility that a
YFGSNRAFE YAadaadlraSySyid 2F (GKS SydirdeqQa FAYIFIYyOAL
corrected on a timely basi®Ve consider the deficienayescribed in the accompanying schedule of

findings and questined costsasitem 17-01to beamaterial weakness.
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A significant deficiency is a deficiency or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attentiothbge charged with
governance.We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be a
significantdeficieng. However, significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

l'a LINL 2F 200FAyAy3a NBFaz2ylofS | adadaNt yoOS | o2 dz
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliawgé which could have a direct and

material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion

on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinioiThe results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported und&overnment Auditing Standards

.SNIAS /2dzyieQa wSalLkRyaS (2 CAyYyRAyYy3a
.SNIAS /2dzyteQa NBalLkRyaS (2 G§KS FTAYRAYy3I ARSYyGA
A0KSRdZA S 2F FTAYRAY3IaA |yR ljdzSatAz2ySR O2ailad ¢K
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statemeantsl, accordingly, we express no opinem

it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the eféaess of the
SydArideqQa AyuSNyrt O2yadNBf 2N 2y O2YLX Al yOSo ¢ KA
FOO2NRIFIYyOS 6A0GK D2@SNYYSyd ! dZRAGAY3I {iGF yRINRa |
compliance. Accordingly, this communicatiemot suitable for any other purpose.

V%

Belhaven, North Carolina
January 302018
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Report On CompliancBorEach Major Federal ProgrgrReport on Internal Control
Over ComplianceWith OMBUniform Guidanceand the State Single Audit Implementation
Act

LYRSLISYRSyYy( ! dZRAG2NDA wSL}2 NI

To the Board o€ommissioners
BertieCounty, North Carolina

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have auditedBertie County North Carolina, compliance witthe types of compliance
requirements described in the OMBompliance Supplemeand theAudit Manual for Governmental

Auditors in North Carolinassued by the Local Government Commission, that could have a direct and
material effect on each dBertie Couil & riljor federal programs for the year ended June 3017,
.SNIAS VIZZRYNISFRRSNI £ LINPINIYa NB ARSYGATASR Ay
the accompanying schedule of findings and questiorests.

alylI3SySyidQa wSalLRyaAiroAafAade
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants applicable to its federal programs.

' dZRAG2NDa wSalLlRyaArAoAfAde

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each®NJi A S niajprdeddiad Q &
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditingdsess generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contain€bvarnment
Auditing Standardsissued by the Comptroller General of the United Statasg the audit
requirements of Title 2 USCode of Federal Regulationdart 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal AWaifdsm Guidance) and

the State Single Audit Implementation Act. Those standahds,Uniform Guidanceand the State
Single Audilmplementation Act require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to
above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal prog@ured. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence abous NIi A S  dompliayide &w@Ha those
requirements and performing such other procedures, as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonabbesis for our opinion on compliance for each major

federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination 8fNIi A S/ 2 dzy (i &
compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion,Bertie Countycomplied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major
federal programs for the year ended June 2017.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management ofBertie Countyis responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning
and performing our adit of compliance, we considered S NIi A S  inteéndityctniraD aver
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major
federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the cstames for

the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and
report on internal control over compliance in accordance i Uniform Guidancebut not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effeeness of internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectivened®edfe Countpa Ay iSNY I f O3
over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation ofral awer
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A mateveakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a fedeal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.
A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of complianceinegent of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance was fer ltmited purpose described in

the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify
any deficiencies imnternal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our

testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements
of the Uniform GuidanceAccordingly, this report igot suitable for any other purpose.

V. %

Belhaven, North Carolina
January 302018
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Report On Compliancé-orEach Major State PrograniReport on Internal Control Over
Compliance In Accordance wittOMB Uniform Guidanceand the State Single Audit
Implementation Act

LYRSLISYRSyYy( ! dZRAG2NDA wSL2 NI

To the Board o€ommissioners
BertieCounty, North Carolina

Report on Compliance for Each Major State Program

We have auditedBertie County North Carolina, compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in thAudit Manual for Governmental Auditors in North Carglisaued by

the Local Government Commission, that could have a daedt material effect on each of Bertie

Coui 2 Q& YIF 22N adl 4SS LINE I NI Y2017 BatICaurikgsa &YSI a2 NS yaR(SIF
LINEANF Y& FNBE ARSYOGAFASR Ay (GKS &adzYYFINE 27F | dzRA
findings and questioned cast

alylI3aSySyidQa wSalLRyaAiroAafAade
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants applicable to its state programs.

' dZRAG2NDa wSalLlRyaArAoAfAde

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compbafar each ofBertie Countpa Y I 22 NJ adl
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of Americahe standards applicable to financial audits containedGavernment

Auditing Standardsssued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and applicable sections of

Title 2 US Code of Federal Regulations Rt 2niform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles,

and Audit Requirements for Federal Awafldaiform Guidanceds described in thAudit Manual for
Governmental Auditors in North Carolirend the State Single Audit Implementation Act. Those
standardsUniform Guidanceand the State Single Audit Implementation Act require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a directraaterial effect on a major

state program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence aBohtli A S/ 2 dzy (i &
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures, as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.

We bdieve that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major

state program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determinatiomBestie / 2 dzy' (1 @ Q&
compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Staterogram

In our opinion,Bertie Countycomplied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major
state programs for the year ended June 3017.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management ofBertie Countyis responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to abovplanning

and performing our audit of compliance, we consideredS NIi A S intedndityctniraD aver
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major
state program to determine the auditing procedurést are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance for each major state program and to test and report
on internal control over compliance in accordance witle Uniform Guidancebut not for the
purpose of expessing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness 8INJi A S intetndizgaintolQ a
over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, nongliemce with a type of compliance
requirement of a state program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasoride possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a state program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or natidn of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet
important enough to merit attention by those chargedth governance.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that might be significant deficiescor material weaknesse®/e did not identify

any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified

The purpose of this report on internabntrol over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our

testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements
of the Uniform GuidanceAccordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

/%/m

Belhaven, North Carolina
January 302018
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Bertie County, North Carolina
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Year Ended June 3017

Section | - Summary of Auditor's Results
Financial Statements

Typeof report the auditor issuedon whether the financialstatementsaudited
were prepared in accordance to GAAP: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified? X  Yes No
Significant Deficiency(s) identified? Yes X  None Reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted Yes X No

Federal Awards

Internal control over major federal programs:

Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No
Significant Deficiency(s) identified? Yes X None Reported
Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major federal programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? Yes X No

Identification of major federal programs

CEDA Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster
93.778 Title XIX - Medicaid
10.760 Water and Waste Disposal Systems for

Rural Communities
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: $ 992,954

Auditee qualified as low-risk Auditee? Yes X No
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Bertie County, North Carolina
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Year Ended June 3017

State Awards

Internal control over major State programs:

Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No

Significant Deficiency(s) identified? Yes X None Reported
Noncompliance material to State award Yes X No
Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major federal programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? Yes X No

Identification of major State programs

Name of State Program or Cluster
Medical Assistance
Parks and Recreation Trust Fund
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Bertie County, North Carolina
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Year Ended June 3017

Section Il - Financial Statement Findings

Material Weakness

17-01 Prior Period Adjustment - Bertie Telephone Fund

Criteria The County should review their accounting records to ensure that all capital assets are properly recorded.
Condition Capital assets were not properly recorded.

Effect The assets of the Bertie Telephone Fund were understated by $47,589.

Cause The County did not thoroughly review their accounting records at year end to determine if they were accurate.

Recommendation TheCountyshouldthoroughlyreview all accountingrecordsat year end for all funds to determineif they
are accurate.

Views of responsibleofficials and planned corrective action: The County agreeswith this finding. The County will put
procedures in place to ensure the assets are reported.

Section Ill - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None reported

Section IV - State Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None reported
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Bertie County, North Carolina
Corrective Action Plan
For the Year Ended June 317

Section Il - Financial Statement Findings
17-01 Prior Period Adjustment - Bertie Telephone Fund

Name of Contact PersorScott Sauer, County Manager

Corrective Action The County will put procedures in place to ensure that all assets are accurately reported.

Proposed Completion DatérThe County will implement the above procedure immediately.

Section Il - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None reported

Section IV - State Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None reported
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Bertie County, North Carolina
SummarySchedule of Prior Year Audit Findings
For the Year Ended June 3017

Findings:

16-01 Prior Period Adjustment - Bertie High School Construciton Fund
Status:  Corrected

16-02 Travel Expenditures

Status:  Corrected

16-03 Payroll Liabilities

Status: Corrected
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D
Bertie County, North Carolina

Schedule 6Expenditures of Federal and State Awards
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 3017

State Federal
Federal Pass-through (Direct and
Grantor/Pass-through CFDA D NI y { 2 RaEsihrough) State Local
Grantor/Program Title Number Number Expenditures Expenditures Expenditures
Federal Awards:
U.S. Dept. of Agriculture
Food and Nutrition Service
t4aaSR cUiKNRdzZAK GKS bo/ o 5SLiid
Services:
Division of Social Services:
Administration:
SNAP Cluster
State Administrative Matching Grants for
Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program 10.561 XXXX $ 401,305% $ 401,30
Fraud Administration 10.561 XXXX 1,763 - 1,7¢
Total SNAP 403,068 - 403,0€
Total U.S. Dept. of Agriculture 403,068 - 403,0€
U.S. Dept. of Housing and Urban Development
Passed-through N.C. Dept of Commerce:
2012 Community Development Block Grant 14.228 XXXX 34,714 -
Total U.S. Dept. Housing and Urban Development 34,714 -
U.S. Dept. of Health and Human Services
Administration on Aging and Adult Services
Passed-through Mid-East Commission:
Council of Government
Special Programs for the Aging
Aging Cluster:
Access Title 11-B 93.044 XXXX 51,470 3,028 6,0t
Congregate Nutrition:
Title 111-C1 93.045 XXXX 46,074 2,710 5,4:
Home Delivered Meals
Title 111-C2 93.045 XXXX 28,844 1,697 3,3¢
Nutrition Services Incentive Program Supplement 93.053 XXXX 14,963 .
Total Aging Cluster 141,351 7,435 14,8¢€
Passed-through the N.C. Dept. of Health and
Human Services:
Division of Social Services:
Foster Care and Adoption Cluster:
Title IV-E Foster Care 93.658 XXXX 4,532 3,958 1,2¢
Title IV-E Foster Care Trn 93.658 XXXX 2,772 - 1,97
Title IV-E Foster Care/Off Trn 93.658 XXXX 25,638 - 25,6¢
Title 1V-E Foster Care and Extended 93.658 XXXX 18,106 4,520 4,5
Title IV-E Max Level I11 93.658 XXXX 60 -
Title IV-E Family Foster Max 93.658 XXXX 19 B
Title 1V-E Adopt Subsidy and Vendor 93.659 XXXX 58,852 14,655 14,6t
Title 1V-E Adoption Training 93.659 XXXX 4,031 - 1,3¢
Title 1V-E Adoption/Off Trn 93.659 XXXX 3,849 - 3,8¢
Title 1V-E Optional Adoption/Off Trn 93.659 XXXX 1,892 - 1,8¢
Total Foster Care and Adoption Cluster 119,751 23,133 55,17
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Bertie County, North Carolina

Schedule 6Expenditures of Federal and State Awards
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 3017

State Federal
Federal Pass-through (Direct and
Grantor/Pass-through CFDA D NI y { 2 RaEsihrough) State Local
Grantor/Program Title Number Number Expenditures Expenditures Expenditures
Federal Awards:
Administration for Children and Families
Passed-through the N.C. Dept. of Health and
Human Services:
Child Care Development Fund Cluster:
Division of Social Services:
/ KAt ROFINB 58@St2LISyid CdzyR ¢ 93.596 XXXX 85,005 -
Division of Child Development
/I KAtR /FNB FyR 58@S8t2LySyd cC 93.575 XXXX 298,079 -
/I KAtR /FNB FyR 58@S8t2LSyd cC 93.596 XXXX 112,824 -
/| KAftR /FNB FyR 5808t 21LIvSyid C 93.596 XXXX 36,512 -
Total Child Care Fund Cluster 532,420 -
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 93.558 XXXX 94,250 -
Foster Care Title IV-E 93.658 XXXX 9,458 4,719
State Appropriations XXXX - 1,278
TANF-MOE XXXX - 55,085
Total Subsidized Child Care Cluster 636,128 61,082
Division of Social Services:
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families - Work First Services 93.558 XXXX 156,423 - 139,13
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families - Work First 93.558 XXXX 26,229 - 38,7¢
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families - Payments & Penalti 93.558 XXXX 114,882 -
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families - Special Children Ad 93.558 XXXX - 36,000
Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Block Grant:
Low-Income Home Energy Assistance (LIHEAP) 93.568 XXXX 130,323 -
Administration 93.568 XXXX 22,648 -
Energy Assistance Payments - Direct Benefit Payments 93.568 XXXX 131,300 -
Stephanie Tubbs Jones Child Welfare Services Program 93.645 XXXX 1,127 - 3
{20AFt {SNBAOSa .t201 DNIyi 93.667 XXXX 154,518 15,870 56,7¢
{20A1t {SNBAOSa .t201 DNI Yy 93.667 XXXX 5,191 - 7.
{20AFf {SNBAOSa .t201 DNIyi 93.667 XXXX 13,031 - 4,3¢
{20AFf {SNBAOSa .t201 DNIyi 93.667 XXXX 2,175 - 3
Child Support Enforcement - IV-D Administration 93.563 XXXX 397,268 - 204,65
Child Support Enforcement - IV-D Offset Fees ESC 93.563 XXXX 63 5
Child Support Enforcement - 1V-D Offset Fees 93.563 XXXX 1,004 (10) 5.
1,156,182 51,865 445,65
Health Care Financing Administration
Direct Benefit Payments:
Medical Assistance Program 93.778 XXXX 27,366,854 15,346,725
27,366,854 15,346,725
Division of Medical Assistance
Direct Benefit Payments:
Children's Health Insurance Program 93.767 XXXX 413,894 1,002
Division of Facility Services
Office of Emergency Medical Services
Division of Social Services:
Administration:
Children's Health Insurance Program 93.767 XXXX 40,316 34
Adult Care Home Case Management 93.778 XXXX 23,961 9,288 14,67
Medical Assistance Program Transportation Administration 93.778 XXXX 40,492 - 40,4¢
State County Special Assistance 93.778 XXXX 35,241 - 11,7¢
Medical Assistance Program 93.778 XXXX 907,077 - 307,13
1,047,087 9,322 374,11
Office of Administration for Community Living
Medicare Improvements for Patients and Providers 93.071 XXXX 1,283 -
Total U.S. Dept. of Health and Human Services 30,882,530 15,500,564 889,8C
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Bertie County, North Carolina

Schedule 6Expenditures of Federal and State Awards
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 3017

State Federal
Federal Pass-through (Direct and
Grantor/Pass-through CFDA D NI y { 2 RaEsihrough) State Local
Grantor/Program Title Number Number Expenditures Expenditures Expenditures
Federal Awards:
U.S. Department of Justice
Bureau of Justice Assistance
Direct Program:
Law Enforcement Bulletproof Vest Partnership Program 16.607 XXXX 3,697 -
Equipment Grant 16.607 XXXX 24,500 -
Equipment Grant 16.607 XXXX 7,500
35,697 -
U.S. Department of Homeland Security
Disaster Grants - Public Assistance (Presidentially Declared 97.036 XXXX 38,583 -
Disasters)
Disaster Grants - Public Assistance (Presidentially Declared 97.036 XXXX 123,888
Disasters)
Total Dept of Homeland Security 162,471 -
U.S. Department of Agriculture
Passed-through the NC Rural Development
Water and Waste Disposal Systems for Rural Communities 10.760 XXXX 1,526,038 -
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Passed-through the NC Dept of Environmental Equality
Drinking Water State Revolving Funds
H-AIA-D-2016-00000036-2347-536919 66.468 XXXX 53,950 -
Total Federal Awards 33,098,468 15,500,564 1,292,87
State Awards:
N.C. Dept. of Environment and Natural Resources
{2Af FYR 21 GSNI/2y&aSNBI A2y XXXX - 23,298
Coastal Zone Management Administration Awards 11.419 XXXX - 250
Division of Parks and Recreation
Parks and Recreation Trust Fund XXXX - 500,000
Total Dept. of Environment and Natural Resources - 523,548
N.C. Dept. of Health and Human Services
Division of Social Services:
{GFGSk/ 2dzyde {LISOALEt ! aaradl
benefit payments XXXX - 322,431 322,42
SAA/SAD HB 1030 XXXX - 15,844 12,9z
State Foster Care Benefits Program XXXX - 608 6!
SFHF Maximization XXXX - 112 1.
CWS Adopt Subsidy & Vendor XXXX - 12,360 3,4¢
Division of Aging and Adult Services:
Passed through Mid-East Commission
Council of Government
In-Home Services - State Funds XXXX - 123,375 13,7C
Caregiver Match XXXX - 5,644 6.
Home Delivered Meals - State Funds XXXX - 10,907 1,2:
Total Division of Aging and Adult Services - 139,926 15,5¢
Total Dept. of Health and Human Services - 491,281 355,1C
N.C. Dept. of Administration
Veterans Service XXXX - 2,000
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Bertie County, North Carolina
Schedule 6Expenditures of Federal and State Awards
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 3017

State Federal
Federal Pass-through (Direct and
Grantor/Pass-through CFDA D NI y (i 2 RaEsihrough) State Local
Grantor/Program Title Number Number Expenditures Expenditures Expenditures
State Awards:
N.C. Dept. of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention
Juvenile Crime Prevention Program XXXX - 98,067
N.C. Dept. of Transportation
Elderly and Disabled Transportation Assistance (DOT-16CL) XXXX - 54,895
Work First/Transitional Employment (DOT-16CL) XXXX - 7,432
Rural General Public Transportation(DOT-16CL) XXXX - 56,853
Total N.C. Dept. of Transportation - 119,180
N.C. Dept. of Public Instruction
Passed-through from N.C. Dept. of Public Instruction:
Public School Building Capital Fund - Lottery Proceeds XXXX - 495,000
NC Dept. of Commerce
Passed-through from Mid East Commission:
Senior Health Insurance Information Program XXXX - 1,750
NC Rural Economic Development Center
Water and Sewer Supplemental Grants Program XXXX - 21,757
Total State Awards - 1,752,583 355,1C
Total Federal and State Awards $ 33,098,468% 17,253,147 $ 1,647,97

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Financial Awards:

1 Basis of Presentation

Theaccompanyingcheduleof expendituresof federal and Stateawards(SEFSA)ncludesthe federaland Stategrant activity of Bertie Countyunder the
programsof the federal governmentand the State of North Carolinafor the year ended June30, 2017. Theinformation in this SEFSAs presentedin
accordancewith the requirementsof Title 2 USCodeof FederalRegulationsPart 200, Uniform AdministrativeRequirements CostPrinciples,and Audit
Requirementgor FederalAwardsandthe StateSingleAudit ImplementationAct. Becausehe Schedulgresentsonly a selectedportion of the operationsof
Bertie County, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net position or cash flows of Bertie County.

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditureseportedin the SEFSAre reported on the modified accruabasisof accounting.Suchexpendituresare recognizedollowingthe costprinciples
containedin the Uniform Guidancewherein certaintypes of expendituresare not allowableor arelimited asto reimbursement.Bertie Countyhaselected
not to use the 10-percent de minimus indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

3 Cluster of Programs

The following are clustered by the NC Department of Health and Human Services and are treated separately for State audit requirement purpose:
Pass-through

CFDA Grantor's Federal State
Program Title Number Number Expenditures Expenditures
Subsidized Child Care and Foster Care and Adoption XXXX XXXX $ 636,128 $ 61,082

4 Loans Outstanding

Bertie Countyhad the following loan balancesoutstandingat June30, 2017 for loansthat the grantor/pass-througtgrantor hasstill imposedcontinuing
compliancerequirements.Loansoutstandingat the beginningof the yearand loansmade duringthe yearare includedin the SEFSAThebalanceof loans
outstanding at June 30, 2017 consist of:

Pass-through

CFDA Grantor's Federal State
Program Title Number Number Expenditures Expenditures
Water and Waste Disposal Systems for Rural Communities 10.760 XXXX $ 1,526,038 $ -
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Sl Certified Public Accountants

January 302018

To theCommissionerand Management of
Bertie CountyNorth Carolina

DearCommissioners and Management

We are pleased to present the results of our audit of @@&l7 financial statements oBertie
County.

This report to theCommissionerand Managemensummarizes our audit, the reporssued and
various analyses and observations related to the dzy ac&@niing and reporting. The document
also contains the communications required by our professional standards.

Our audit was designedo express an opinion on thé 2 dzy’ A0& Xiidancial statements. We
considered the 2 dzy ¢ude@tdand emerging business needs, along with an assessment of risks
that could materially affect the financial statements, and aligned our audit procedures accordingly.
We conducted the audit with the objectivity and independence that you, @@mmissionersnd
Management, expect. We received the full support and assistantefizy ie&sddiel.

At Jeff Best CPA, PLI@ are continually evaluating the quality of duNR2 FSa a3 A2yl £ aQ 42N
to deliver audit services of the highest quality that will meet or exceed your expectations. We
encourage you to provide any feedback you believe is appropriate to ensure that we do not
overlook a single detail as it relatesttee quality of our services.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of @@mmissionersManagement and
others within theorganizationrand should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

We appreciate this opportuty to work with you. If you have any questions or comments, please
contact me aR52-943-2723 orjbest@jeffbestcpa.com

Very truly yours,

Jeff Best, CPA

Jeff Best, CPA
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Required Communications

As discussed with thEommissioners and Management during our planning process, our audit plan
represented an approach responsive to the assessment of risk for the County. Specifically, we
planned and performed our audit to:

1 Perform an annual audit, as required by North Camlseneral Statutes, in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in tB®vernment Auditing Standardssued by the
Comptroller General of the UnitedISti S&= Ay 2NRSNJ 2 SELINB&a |y
financial statements for the year ended June 3017.

1 Conduct an audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contain€&bwernment
Auditing Standardsissued by the Comptroller General of the United States; &tld 2 US
Code of Federal RegulatioRart 200,Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles,
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awafdsiform Guidance), and the State Single Audit
LYLX SYSydlradaz2zy 100 |yR A&aadzS with btypedNatr 2y O
compliance requirements described in the OMB Uniform Guidamzk the Audit Manual
for Governmental Auditors in North Carolinssued by the Local Government Commission,
that could have a direct and material effect on each of the Cadrity Y 22 NJ F SRS NI f
programs for the year ended June 2017,

1 Communicate directly with the Commissioners and Management regarding the results of
our procedures;

1 Address with the Commissioners and Managetramy accounting and financial reporting
issues;

1 Anticipate and respond to concerns of the Commissioners and Management; and

1 Other auditrelated projects as they arise and upon request.
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Required Communications
2S KI @S |dZRAGSR GKS TFAYILIYOALt adlaSySyita 27
year ended June 3@017 and have issued our report thereon datéanuary 302018.Professional
standards require thiawe provide you with the following information related to our audit:

MATTER TO BE COMMUNICATED \ 't 5L¢ChwQ{ w9{th
l dzRA G2 NQRa& NBalLl2yaAo  As stated in our engagement letter datdday 4,
Accepted Auditing Standards 2017, our responsibility, as described [

professional standards, is to express an opin
about whether the financial statements, of th
governmental  activities, the  businetge
activities, the aggregate discretely present
component unit, each major fund,and the
aggregate remaining fund information present
prepared by management with your oversight &
fairly presented, in all material respects,

conformity with accounting principles genera
accepted in the United States of America (GAA
Our audit of the financial statements does n(
relieve you or management of your responsibilitie

As part of our audit, we considered the interrn
control of the County. Such considerations wg
solely for the purpose of determining our aug
procedures and not toprovide any assuranc
concerning such internal control.

Our audit also consisted of issuing reports regarg
GKS . 2FNRQa AYOGSNYI f
Government Auditing Standardsnd compliance
with certain compliance requirements as it relat
G2 GKS . 2FNRQa YI 22N ¥
in accordance with the OMB Uniform Guidance ¢
the State Single Audit Implementation Act.

/] T ASYyGQa NBalLlRyaAohtf ) Management, with oversight from those charg
with governance, isesponsible folestablishing ang
maintaining internal controls, including monitorin
ongoing activities; for the selection and applicati
of accounting principles; and for the fg
presentation in the financial statements of financ
position, results of operations, andash flows in
conformity with the applicable framework
Management is responsible for the design 4
implementation of programs and controls {
prevent and detect fraud.

Planned scope and timing of the audit Our initial audit plan was not significantiltered
during our fieldwork.

Management judgments and accountint f+ § 38 388 (KS F2ff2dhi
estimates Policies, Judgments and Sensitive Estimates
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MATTER TO BE COMMUNICATED \
The process used by management in form
particularly sensitive accounting estimates a
GKS oFaira F2N GKS | d
the reasonableness of those estimates.

Required Communications

' 5L¢hwQ{ w9{th
I 2YYSyGa 2y vdzd tAGeéod

Potential effect on the financial statements g
any significant risks and exposures

Major risks and exposures facing the Cournty |
how they are disclosed.

No such risks or exposures were noted.

Significant accounting policies, including critic
accounting policies and alternative treatment
within generally accepted accounting principle
YR GKS | dzRA 2 NQduali§ dgf
accounting principles

1 The initial selection of and changes
significant accounting policies or the
application; methods used to account f
significant unusual transactions; ar
effect of significant policies i
controversial or emerging aas for
which there is a lack of authoritatiy
guidance or consensus.

1 The auditor should also discuss {
| dzR A ju@gh&nhiabout the quality,
not just the acceptability, of the County
accounting policies as applied in
financial reporting. The disssion
should include such matters
consistency of accounting policies a
their application, and clarity ani
completeness of the financi
statements, including  disclosure
Critical accounting policies and practig
applied by the County in itinancial
statements and our assessment
YIylI3SYSyiQa RA & (
such policies and practices (including ¢
significant  modifications to  suc
disclosures proposed by us but rejec
by management), the reasons wl
certain policies and practiseare or are
not considered critical, and how curre
and anticipated future events impa
those determinations;

Alternative treatments within GAAPfor
accounting policies and practices related

Management is responsible for the selection arsz
of appropriate accounting policies. The signific
accounting policies used by the Board are descri
in Note 1 to the financial statement®uring the
2017 fiscal year, the County implemented Statem
73 of the Governmental Accounting Standa
Board, Accounting and Financial Reporting f
Pensions and Related Assets that are not within

Scope ofGASB tatement 68, and Amendments tg
Certain Provisions o6ASB tatements 67 and 68.

We noted no transactions entered into by t
County during the yar for which there is a lack ¢
authoritative guidance or consensus. All signific
transactions have been recognized in the finan
statements in the proper period.
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Required Communications

MATTER TO BE COMMUNICATED \ 't 5L¢ChwQ{ w9{th
material items, including recognitiof
measurement, preseation and disclosurg
alternatives, that have been discussed w
client management during the current au
period, the ramifications of the use of su
alternative disclosures and treatments, a
the treatment preferred by the auditol
Furthermore, if theaccounting policy selecte
by management is not the policy preferred
us, discuss the reasons why managem
selected that policy, the policy preferred
us, and the reason we preferred the ot

policy.

Significant difficulties encountered in the audit| None.

Any significant difficulties, for example
unreasonable logistical constraints or lack
cooperation by management

Disagreements with management None.
Disagreements, whether or not subsequer
resolved, about matters significant to th
financial statements or audits report. This
does not include those that came about bas
on incompletedcts or preliminary informatian

Other findings or issues None.

Matters significant to oversight of the financi
reporting practices by those charged wi
governance. Foexample, an entity's failure t
obtain the necessary type of audit, such as {
under Government Auditing Standards,
addition to GAAS.

Matters arising from the audit that were None.
discussed with, or the subject o
correspondence with, management

Business conditions that might affect risk
discussions regarding accounting practices
application of auditing standards.

Corrected and uncorrected misstatements tf S
All significant audit adjustments arising from tl , dzR A
audit, whether or not recorded by the Coun|
that could individually or in the aggregate haj
a significant effect on the financial statemen
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Required Communications

MATTER TO BE COMMUNICATED \

We should also inform the County abg
uncorrected misstateents aggregated by u
during the current engagement and pertainil
to the latest period presented, that wel
determined by management to be immateri
both individually and in the aggregate, to tf
financial statements taken as a whole. A
internal contol deficiencies that could hay
prevented the misstatements.

P 5LChwQ{ w9{th

Major issues discussed with management prif
to retention

Any major accounting, auditing or reportir
issues discusseauith management in connectio
with our initial or recurring retention.

None.

Consultations with other accountants

When management has consulted with oth
accountants about significant accounting
auditing matters.

None of which we are aware.

Written representations {SS dalyl3aSySyidi wSLINBa
A description of the written representations tl

auditor requested (or a copy of th

representation letter).

Internal control deficiencies {SS GLYGSNYIt [/ 2yiGNERt
Any significant deficiencies or mater|

weaknessesin the design or operation ¢

AYGaSNYI§ O2y (NPt 0K I

attention during the audit.

Fraud and illegal acts

Fraud involving management, or the Coun
those responsible for internal controls,
causing a material misstatement of the financ
statements, where the auditor determines the
is evidence that such fraud may exist. Any ille
FOGa O2YAy3a G42 GKS |
senior management and any other illegal ac
unless cleayl inconsequential.

We are unaware of any fraud or illegal acts involy
management or causing material misstatement
the financial statements.

Parties in interest and prohibited transactions

Any parties in interest in the County, prohibit
transactiors as defined by ERISA, and ot
reportable transactions.

No prohibited transactions were  note(
Transactions with parties in interest and oth
reportable transactions were properly disclosed
the notes to the financial statements, in accordar
with GAAP.

Other information in documents containing
audited financial statements

¢ KS SEGSNY € I dzR A (0 3

information in a document containing audite

Our responsibity related to documents (includin
annual reports, websites, etc.) containing t
financial statements is to read the other informatiq
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Required Communications

MATTER TO BE COMMUNICATED \ 't 5LChwQ{ w9{th
financial statements, as well as any procedu to consider whether:
performed and the results. f  Such information is materially inconsiste

with the financial statements; and
1 We believe suchnformation represents g
material misstatement of fact.
We have not been provided any such items to d

and are unaware of any other documents th
contain the audited financial statements.
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Accounting Policies, Judgments and Sensitive
Estimates & Commentsn Quality

We are required to communicate our judgments about the quality, not just the acceptability, of the
Countys accounting principles as applied in its financial reporting. We are also required to communicate
critical accounting policies and sensitive accougtiestimates. TheCounty may wish to monitor
throughout the year the process used to compute and record these accounting estimates. The table

below summarizes our communications regarding these matters.

COMMENTS ON
JUDGMENT& QUALITY OF
ACCOUNTING POLICY SENSITIVE ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATE POLICY &
APPLICATION
Capital Assets | Based upon our audit The [ 2 dzy'| TheCountyQ a iR
procedures, with respect t( estimate of thelin accordance with
GKS [/ 2dzyieQa useful life of its| all applicabe
we noted that it estimates capital assets. accounting
the annual provision fol guidelines
depreciation expense ol The estimated
estimated useful life of the useful lives of
capital asset in accordand /| 2dzy G & Qa
with all applicable standard assets are base
and guidelines. on a detailed
management
The County calculate review.
depreciation expense usin
the straightline method.

Allowance for | The County estimates th ¢ KS /| 2| ¢ KS [/ 2dzy ¢
Doubtful allowance accountsof the estimate of its| in accordance with
Accounts water districts in allowance for| all applicable

accordance with applicabl doubtful accounts accounting

standards and guidelines. is based on guidelines.
historical  water

The County calculates th revenues and af

allowance for doubtful analysis of the

accounts in each distric collectability  of

based on an analysis of th individual

collectability of individual accounts.

accounts.
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Accounting Policies, Judgments and Sensitive
Estimates & Commentsn Quality

COMMENTS ON
CRITICA JUDGMENTS & QUALITY OF
ACCOUNTING POLICY POLICY SENSITIVE ACCOUNTING
' ESTIMATE POLICY &
APPLICATION
Compensated | The County estimates th X ¢ KS /| 2[¢KS [ 2dzy ¢
Absences accrued liability at yeaend estimate of its| in accordance with
for amounts owed to its accrued liability| all appliable
employees for compensate for compensated accounting
FoaSyoSa oaxz absences is base| guidelines.
in accordance with al upon the
applicable standards an established
guidelines. compensation
levels at yeaend
The County calculates th which may differ
annual liability at the from the actual
prevailing rates of amounts.
compensation.
Local The County estimate X ¢ KS /| 2| ¢ KS [/ 2dzy i
Governmental | retirement  benefits in estimate of its| in accordance with
9 YLJX 2 é {accordance with al retirement all applicable
Retirement applicable standards an benefits is baseq accounting
guidelines. on an actuany guidelines.
performed
The  County disclose periodically.

retirement benefits basec
on actuarial assumptiong
These assumptions may
change in the futurg
depending on future
operating conditions.

Other The County estimate X ¢ KS | 2| ¢ KS [/ 2dzy g
Postemployment postemployment benefits ir estimate of its| in accordance with
Benefits accordance with al postemployment | all applicable
applicable standards an benefits is baseq accounting
guidelines. on an actuary that guidelines.
is performed
The County disclose every three years.
postemployment  benefits
based on actuaria
assumptions. Thes

assumptions may change
the future depending on
future operating conditions.

- 142-



Accounting Policies, Judgments and Sensitive
Estimates & Commentsn Quality

COMMENTS ON
CRITICA JUDGMENTS & QUALITY OF
ACCOUNTING POLICY POLICY SENSITIVE ACCOUNTING
' ESTIMATE POLICY &
APPLICATION
Law The County estimate X ¢ KS /| 2| ¢ KS [/ 2dzy/iq
Enforcement | retirement benefits in estimate of its| in accordance with
Officers Speciall accordance with al retirement all applicable
Separation applicable standards an benefits is baseq accounting
Allowance guidelines. on an actuany guidelines.
performed
The  County  disclose periodically.

retirement benefits basec
on actuarial assumptiong
These assumptions me
change in the futurg
depending on future
operating conditns.
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Summary of Audit Adjustments

During the course of our audit, we accumulate differences between amounts recorded by the
County and amounts that we believe are required to be recorded under GAAP. Those adjustments
are either recorded (corrected) by the County or passed (uncorrected).

See attached schedules.

QUALITATIVE MATERIALITY CONSIDERATIONS

In evaluating the materiality of audit differences when they do arise, we consider both quantitative
and qualitative factors, for example:

T

Whether the difference arises from an item capabfeprecise measurement or whether it
arises from an estimate, and, if so, the degree of imprecision inherent in the estimate.

Whether the difference masks a change in earnings or other trends.

Whether the difference changes a net decrease in assetsldition, or vice versa.

2 KSGKSN) 6KS RAFFSNBYOS O2yOSNya Fy |NBI 27
0SSy ARSYUGATFTASR a LXFe@Ay3d | aA3ayATFTAOFYyd NRf
Whether the difference affects compliance with reguligtoequirements.

2 KSGKSN) GKS RAFTFSNBYOS KIa (GKS STFFE@oi 2F A\
example, by satisfying requirements for the award of bonuses or other forms of incentive
compensation.

Whether the difference involves concealment of amawful transaction.
Whether the difference involves concealment of a prohibited transaction, or transaction

with a party in interest, as defined by GAAP or any applicable federal, state, or local
laws.
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Summary of Audit Adjustments

Regional Water Districts Fund

Financial Statement EffectdAmount of Ov¢g
Change in
Description Factual (F), Work- Fund Fund
(Nature) of Audit | Judgmental (J), paper Total Working Balance/Net Balance/ Net
Difference (AD) | or Projected (P) Cause Ref. | Total Assets | Liabilities Cap. Position Revenues Expen. Position
Reported amounts did
Understated not agree to the
Accounts Payable | Factual (F) subsidiary ledger [5101.1] 0 -4,873 4,873 4,873 0 -4,873 -4,873
Total 0 -4,873 4,873 4,873 0 -4,873 -4,873
Less audit adjustments subsequently booked
Net unadjusted ADO6current year ( 0 -4,873 4,873 4,873 0 -4,873 -4,873
Ef fect of unadjusted ADdprior ye‘_
Combined current year and prior year AD (rollover method) 0 -4,873 4,873 4,873 0 -4,873 -4,873
Financial statement caption totals 30,639,318 13,481,595 -402,238 17,157,723 2,463,482 2,696,297 -122,394
Current year AD as % of F/S captions (iron curtain method) 0.00% -0.04% -1.21% 0.03% 0.00% -0.18% 3.98%
Current and prior year AD as % of F/S captions (rollover method) 0.00% -0.04% -1.21% 0.03% 0.00% -0.18% 3.98%
Adjusting Journal Entries JE
Prior Period Adjustment - Finding 17-01
810000-175000 Fixed Assets - Equipment 47,589 -
810000-392900 Fund Balance - 47,589
47,589 47,589
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Management Representation Letter
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